SRRy

NEWARK &
SHERWQOQOD
DISTRICT COUNCIL
Castle House
Great North Road
Newark
NG24 1BY
Tel: 01636 650000
www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk
Monday, 12 May 2025
Chair: Councillor J Hall
Vice-Chair: Councillor L Tift
To: All Members of the Council
MEETING: Full Council
DATE: Tuesday, 20 May 2025 at 6.00 pm

Civic Suite, Castle House, Great North Road, Newark,

VENUE: NG24 1BY

You are hereby requested to attend the above Meeting to be held at the time/place
and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the
business on the Agenda as overleaf.

If you have any queries please contact Nigel Hill on Tel: 01636 655243 Email: Nigel.hill@newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk.



http://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/

10.

11.

12.

13.

AGENDA

Page Nos.
Notification to those present that the meeting will be recorded and
streamed online
Apologies for absence
Election of Chair of the Council for 2025/2026
Chair to Sign Declaration of Acceptance of Office
Election of Vice-Chair of the Council for 2025/26
Vice-Chair to Sign Declaration of Acceptance of Office
Declarations of Interest by Members and Officers
Minutes from the meeting held on 6 March 2025 and the Extraordinary 5-42
Meeting held on 19 March 2025
Communications which the Chairman, Leader, Chief Executive or Portfolio
Holders may wish to lay before the Council
In accordance with Rule No. 3.1 to receive the presentation or the debating
of any Petitions from Members of the Council (if any)
Questions from Members of the Public and Council
In accordance with Rule No. 3.3.3 the following questions have been
submitted to the Council:
Question from Councillor Pater Harris:
“The Bus Improvement Grant for 2025-6 is allocated by the East Midlands
Combined County Authority. The capital element of this grant is
equivalent to over £130,000 for Southwell. How is the Leader of the Council
monitoring this expenditure to make sure that this money is spent on
capital improvements on Southwell's bus services?”
Question from Councillor Matthew Spoors:
“What is the Council’s understanding of the impact of the withdrawal of the
sustainable farming Initiative, and what will its response be?”
Political Composition of the Council and Allocation of Seats on Committees 43 - 46

to Political Groups

To Allocate Chairs, Vice-Chairs and Members to Committees etc. 47 - 48



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Community Plan 2023 - 2027

Review of the Council's Constitution

Appendix A - Revised Financial Procedure Rules

Appendix B - Revised Contract Procedure Rules

Appendix C - Revised Petitions Scheme

Appendix D - Revised Council Procedure Rules

Appendix E - Proposed Motion Template

Appendix F - Proposed Motion Amendment Template

Appendix G - Proposed Licensing Committee Terms of Reference
Appendix G(i) - Proposed Licensing Committee Terms of Reference
- Showing Changes

Appendix H - Proposed Planning Policy Board Terms of Reference
Appendix | - Proposed Acquisitions and Disposals Policy
Appendix J - Proposed Planning Committee Terms of Reference

Call-In Annual Report

Notices of Motion (if any)

Minutes for Noting

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(i)
(k)

Cabinet - 11 March 2025

Cabinet - 1 April 2025

Policy and Performance Improvement Committee - 10 March 2025
Policy and Performance Improvement Committee - 14 April 2025
Planning Committee - 13 March 2025

Audit and Governance Committee - 16 April 2025

Audit & Governance Committee - 7 May 2025

General Purposes Committee - 20 March 2025

Licensing Committee - 20 March 2025

Executive Shareholder Committee - 11 March 2025

Planning Committee - 8 May 2025

49 -78
79 -85
86 -120
121 -167
168 -173
174-179
180
181
182 - 185
186 - 193
194 - 195
196 - 207
208

209 - 210

211-213

214 - 219

220- 225

226 - 229

230-232

233 -236

237 -242

243 - 245

246 - 248

249 - 253

To Follow



19.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

None



Agenda Iltem 8

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Full Council held in the Civic Suite, Castle House, Great North
Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Thursday, 6 March 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor J Hall (Chair)
Councillor L Tift (Vice-Chair)

Councillor N Allen, Councillor A Amer, Councillor A Brazier, Councillor
L Brazier, Councillor C Brooks, Councillor | Brown, Councillor R Cozens,
Councillor S Crosby, Councillor LDales, Councillor A Freeman,
Councillor S Forde, Councillor P Harris, Councillor S Haynes, Councillor
R Holloway, Councillor J Kellas, Councillor J Lee, Councillor K Melton,
Councillor S Michael, Councillor D Moore, Councillor E Oldham,
Councillor P Peacock, Councillor CPenny, Councillor M Pringle,
Councillor P Rainbow, Councillor N Ross, Councillor S Saddington,
Councillor T Smith, Councillor M Shakeshaft, Councillor M Spoors,
Councillor P Taylor, Councillor T Thompson, Councillor T Wendels and
Councillor T Wildgust

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor D Darby, Councillor P Farmer, Councillor RJackson and
ABSENCE: Councillor K Roberts

55 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair advised the Council that the meeting was being recorded and streamed
online in accordance with usual practice.

Councillor J Lee advised that he would be recording parts of the meeting.

56 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

The interests previously declared by Members in Agenda Item No. 17 — Minutes for
Noting — were noted.

57 MINUTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 11 FEBRUARY 2025

AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 February 2025 be approved as
a correct record and signed by the Chair (Councillor J Lee abstained from
voting).

58 COMMUNICATIONS WHICH THE CHAIR, LEADER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OR PORTFOLIO
HOLDERS MAY WISH TO LAY BEFORE THE COUNCIL

The Chair thanked everyone that had attended her Civic Service last month which had
been a great success and informed the Council of her plans for the ‘Shine a light on
the District’ event in which she would embark on a challenge to travel to every corner
of the District on foot and by bike to raise monies for her chosen charities.

The Vice-Chair informed Members that she had represented the Council at the

Agenda Page 5



59

60

Nottinghamshire County Council ‘Day of Reflection’, to remember those that had lost
their lives during the Covid-19 pandemic

The Leader of the Council provided an update on Local Government Reorganisation
following a meeting he had attended by all Nottinghamshire Council Leaders, Chief
Executives, and PWC who had been commissioned to provide independent analysis of
what reorganisation could look like, based on local evidence in line with the
government’s criteria for the creation of unitary authorities. It had been agreed that
all the Nottinghamshire local authorities would continue to work together in line with
the interests of residents and keep three options open as to how unitary authorities
could be configured. Those options would form the debate at the Extraordinary
Council meeting which had been convened for 19 March 2025. The Chief Executive
added that he would arrange two briefing sessions for Members on 10 and 11 March
2025 to update further on the latest position.

The Leader also informed Council that Newark, including Balderton, had been selected
by the government to develop plans for up to £20m in funding to help drive growth
over a ten-year period. The ‘Plan for Neighbourhoods’ scheme was a £1.5 billion
government investment in 75 local areas across the country. He reported that plans
for an initial four years of investment would need to be submitted to the government
by the winter this year, with delivery funding to commence in April 2026. He
confirmed that more details would be made available to Members in due course.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing informed the Council that the Housing Community
Chest had been rebranded and renamed and officially launched as “Grant for Local
Opportunities and Wellbeing” “GLOW”. The grant scheme ran in the same way as the
Community Chest and was available to Members and Community Groups throughout
the year. More details regarding this could be obtained from the Tenant Engagement
Team. The Portfolio Holder also congratulated the ICT Business Unit, who were
finalists for the Housing Technologist Awards, for their work on housing project
management.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCIL

In accordance with Rule Numbers 3.3.2 and 3.3.3, two questions had been submitted
to the Council, one by a member of the public and one by Councillor J Lee. Details of
the questions put forward and the response given by Councillors R Cozens and
Councillor P Taylor are attached as Appendix A to the minutes.

REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX SETTING FOR 2025/26

The Council considered the report of the Leader of the Council relating to the Revenue
Budget and Council Tax Setting for 2025/26.

The report indicated that, in setting the level of Council Tax for 2025/2026, it was
necessary to consider the requirements of the Council Tax Collection Fund for
2025/2026. This incorporated the District Council’s Council Tax Requirement, Parish
Council Precepts and the Council Tax requirements of Nottinghamshire County
Council, the Nottinghamshire Police & Crime Commissioner and the Nottinghamshire
Fire & Rescue Service.

Agenda Page 6



The Cabinet, at its meeting held on 18 February 2025, recommended that the District
Council’s Net Budget Requirement for 2025/26, should be £20,900,860.

It was reported that all Parish Council precepts had been received and totalled
£4,091,219.49. The individual Parish Council precepts were set out in the report.

Nottinghamshire County Council had set a precept on Newark & Sherwood District
Council’s Collection fund for 2025/2026 of £80,936,000. The Nottinghamshire Police &
Crime Commissioner had set a precept on Newark & Sherwood District Council's
Collection fund for 2025/2026 of £12,649,587.43 and the Nottingham and
Nottinghamshire Fire & Rescue Service had proposed a precept on Newark &
Sherwood District Council’s Collection fund for 2025/2026 of £4,152,875.36.

In accordance with Rule 3.4.3 (b) written notice had been received that an
amendment would be proposed and seconded. Councillor J Kellas accordingly
proposed and Councillor S Michael seconded that:

“As outlined in Section 3 of the report, that the revenue estimates for 2025/26 and
schedule of fees and charges, as submitted in the Council’s Budget book be approved
subject to the following changes as outlined below:

1.0 Council reduces the proposed increase in council tax from the maximum
increase allowable of 2.99%, to a lower and more conservative increase of
1.94%, whereby:

1.1 Proposal 3(g) will change to £8,484,323 being the amount at 3(c) less the
amount at 3(d) plus the amount at 3(e) less the amount at 3(f) calculated by the
Council as the net Council Tax requirement for the year.

1.2 Proposal 3(h) will change to £198.60 being the amount at 3(g) above divided by
the amount at 2(a), calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 34(2)
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in
those part of its area which no special item relates.

1.3 Proposal 3(j) will change to £294.37 being the amount at 3(g) above plus the
amount at 3(i) divided by the amount at 2(a) calculated by the Council in
accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax
for the year.

1.4 Proposal 3(f) will change to £316,301 being the original proposal for 3(f) less the
difference between the original proposal for 3(g) and the amended 3(g) as
above.

2.0 The revenue estimates for 2025/2026 and schedule of fees and charges, as
submitted in the Council's Budget book be approved subject to removing the
requested funding of £45,000 at row 6 of paragraph 3.23 of the Budget Book to
‘support the action plan for Motion for the Ocean’ recognising that:

2.1 The discussion during item 11 of the Cabinet agenda paper on Tuesday 21

Agenda Page 7



2.2

2.3

3.0

4.0

January 2025 acknowledged that this Council has already completed an
impressive amount of work in this area. The discussion included a
congratulatory message from an Ocean Expert and Co-founder of motion for the
ocean who outlined how incredibly proud they are of all that this Council has
achieved with trailblazing work, and as a leading light in this area.

Iltem 11 of the Cabinet agenda paper on Tuesday 21 January 2025 clarified that
other funds are proffered for activities around the commitment to increase
ocean literacy.

Iltem 11 of the Cabinet agenda paper on Tuesday 21 January 2025 clarified that
the £45,000 was to finance a touring theatre company to perform an experience
of the ocean to all primary schools in the district, without assessing anticipated
uptake, desire from local schools, alignment to curriculum, development of life
skills, or measurable outcomes to demonstrate value for money.

Council allocates the sum of £39,000, funded by the removal of the £45,000 at
paragraph 2.0 of this amendment to establish a pilot Members Ward Fund for
the financial year 2025-26, whereby each individual member is allocated a sum
of £1,000 to support charities, community groups and public bodies working
within their wards for the benefit of residents.

Council allocates the sum of £6,000, funded by the removal of the £45,000 at
paragraph 2.0 of this amendment for further tree planting within the district,
including tree planting for flood alleviation schemes to assist in preventing
future flooding”.

Members debated the proposed amendment, during which the Leader of the Council
advised that he was supportive to levy a lower Council tax at 1.94%. Therefore, a
recorded vote (in accordance with Procedure Rule 5.4) on Paragraphs 1.0 of the
amendment was taken as follows:

Councillor Vote
Neil Allen For
Adrian Amer For
Alice Brazier For
Lee Brazier For
Celia Brooks For
Irene Brown For
Rowan Cozens For
Susan Crosby Abstain
Linda Dales For
Simon Forde For
Andy Freeman For
Jean Hall For
Peter Harris Against
Simon Haynes For
Rhona Holloway For
Jack Kellas For

Agenda Page 8



Johno Lee For
Keith Melton Abstain
Sylvia Michael For
David Moore For
Emma Oldham For
Paul Peacock For
Claire Penny For
Mike Pringle For
Penny Rainbow For
Neil Ross For
Sue Saddington For
Maurice Shakeshaft For
Tom Smith For
Matthew Spoors Against
Paul Taylor For
Tina Thompson Abstain
Linda Tift For
Timothy Wendels For
Tim Wildgust For

The proposed amendments at Paragraph 1.0 were therefore AGREED with 30 votes
for, 2 against and three abstentions.

A second recorded vote in respect of Paragraph 2.0 of the amendment was taken as
follows:

Councillor Vote
Neil Allen For
Adrian Amer Against
Alice Brazier Against
Lee Brazier Against
Celia Brooks Against
Irene Brown For
Rowan Cozens Against
Susan Crosby Against
Linda Dales For
Simon Forde Against
Andy Freeman Against
Jean Hall Against
Peter Harris Against
Simon Haynes For
Rhona Holloway For
Jack Kellas For
Johno Lee For
Keith Melton Against
Sylvia Michael For
David Moore Against
Emma Oldham Against

Agenda Page 9



Paul Peacock Against
Claire Penny Against
Mike Pringle Against
Penny Rainbow For
Neil Ross Against
Sue Saddington For
Maurice Shakeshaft Against
Tom Smith For
Matthew Spoors Against
Paul Taylor Against
Tina Thompson Against
Linda Tift Against
Timothy Wendels For
Tim Wildgust For

This amendment was therefore declared lost with 13 votes for and 22 against. Given
this amendment was lost, the elements contained on Paragraphs 3.0 and 4.0 to the
amendment were nullified with no vote being required.

In accordance with Rule 3.4.3 (b) written notice had been received that a further
amendment would be proposed and seconded. Councillor J Lee accordingly proposed
and Councillor M Spoors seconded that:

“Council approves the proposals under Section 3 of the report, subject to the addition
of £19,500 for the establishment of a Councillor Community Fund. This initiative
would provide each elected member with £500 per year over the next two years to
support local projects and initiatives within their respective wards. This addition to be
funded from the Change Management Reserve.

The rationale for the amendment being:

1. Direct Community Benefit

- This amendment enables elected members to allocate funds to initiatives that reflect
the specific needs of their communities.

- It ensures a fairer and broader investment across the district.

2. Increased Local Engagement

- By distributing funds to councillors, local residents will have a greater say in how
public money is spent.

- This strengthens community engagement and ensures investments align with local
priorities.

3. Addressing Resident Concerns

- This amendment ensures taxpayer money is spent in alignment with public
sentiment and community needs.

4. Long-Term Positive Impact

- The Councillor's Community Fund supports sustainable, localised investment,
allowing each elected member to back projects that benefit their constituents.

- Examples include local sports clubs, community centres, small infrastructure
improvements, and grassroots initiatives”.

Agenda Page 10



This amendment, on being put to the meeting was declared lost with 15 votes for and
20 against.

The Council considered the substantive motion proposed by Councillor P Peacock and
seconded by Councillor R Cozens and it was AGREED (with 33 votes for, 1 against and
1 abstention) that Council:

(a) note the proposals under section 2 of the report;

(b) approve the proposals under section 3 of the report, subject to the agreed
amendment at paragraphs 1.0 - 1.4 as proposed by Councillor J Kellas, and the
consequential amendments to the Council report and budget book;

(c) note section 4, 5 and 6 of the report;
(d) note the proposal in section 7 of the report; and
(e) note the determination in section 8 of the report.

(The full revised recommendations are set out as Appendix B to these minutes).

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 5.6.1, a recorded vote was taken as follows:

Councillor Vote
Neil Allen For
Adrian Amer For
Alice Brazier For
Lee Brazier For
Celia Brooks For
Irene Brown For
Rowan Cozens For
Susan Crosby Abstain
Linda Dales For
Simon Forde For
Andy Freeman For
Jean Hall For
Peter Harris Against
Simon Haynes For
Rhona Holloway For
Jack Kellas For
Johno Lee For
Keith Melton For
Sylvia Michael For
David Moore For
Emma Oldham For
Paul Peacock For
Claire Penny For
Mike Pringle For
Penny Rainbow For
Neil Ross For

Agenda Page 11



61

62

Sue Saddington For
Maurice Shakeshaft For
Tom Smith For
Matthew Spoors For
Paul Taylor For
Tina Thompson For
Linda Tift For
Timothy Wendels For
Tim Wildgust For

CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET 2025/26 TO 2028/29

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive / Director —
Resources and Section 151 Officer which set out the proposed the General Fund
Capital Programme for the period 2025/26 to 2028/29. Following the Cabinet’s
consideration of the Capital Programme at its meeting on 18 February 2025 and in
accordance with Financial Regulation 6.2.3, the final programme was recommended
to Council for approval. Attached as Appendix 1 to the report was the report
submitted to the Cabinet on 18 February 2025 which detailed the resources available,
the Council’s existing committed programme and the priority schemes identified.

The General Fund Capital Programme for 2025/26 to 2028/29 proposed investment of
£51.240m over the 4-year programme. The major schemes in the programme were
set out in the report.

AGREED  (with 33 votes for and 1 vote against, Councillor K Melton being absent for
the vote) that:

a) the General Fund schemes shown in Appendix A to the report be
approved as committed expenditure in the Capital Programme;

b)  the Capital Programme be managed in accordance with Financial
Regulation 6.2.3;

c) in accordance with the delegation to the Section 151 Officer in the
Council’s Constitution to arrange financing of the Council’s Capital
Programme, the Capital Programme for the financial years 2025/26
to 2028/29 be financed to maximise the resources available, having
regard to the provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act
1989 and subsequent legislation; and

d) anychanges above the limit delegated to the Section 151 Officer (i.e.
£10,000), either in funding or the total cost of the capital scheme, be

reported to the Cabinet for consideration.

2025/26 TO 2028/29 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive / Director —

Resources and Section 151 Officer which sought approval'&ggﬁ&aupggggkf?m



63

Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for the four financial years between 1 April 2025 and 31
March 2029 (2025/26 to 2028/29). The main aims of the MTFP were to deliver the
Council’s Community Plan objectives, clearly present the Council’s current predictions
of its financial position, and to enable Members to make decisions which ensured the
Council’s financial sustainability. Updating the MTFP was an essential pre-requisite to
the annual budget setting process.

The MTFP showed that the Council was able to set a balanced budget for 2025/26 but
would need to reduce expenditure and/or increase income in order to mitigate future
anticipated shortfalls in funding. The Council would need to continually consider how
best to manage demand for its services, as well as continually monitoring and
reviewing how best to deliver services.

In accordance with Rule 3.4.3 (b) written notice had been received that an
amendment would be proposed and seconded. Councillor J Kellas accordingly
proposed, and Councillor S Michael seconded that:

“Council approves the Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) for the four financial
years between 1 April 2025 and 31 March 2029 (2025/26 to 2028/29) subject to an
amended annual increase of 1.94%, hence replacing the 2.99% annual increase
proposed within the original report with a 1.94% annual increase as per previous
iterations of the MTFP”.

Given the debate and subsequent decision on the revenue budget, Cuncillor Peacock
indicated his support for the amendment, which on being put to the meeting was
declared carried with 34 votes for and 1 against.

In accordance with Rule 3.4.3 (b) written notice had been received that a further
amendment would be proposed and seconded. Councillor J Lee accordingly proposed,
and Councillor M Spoors seconded that:

“Council approves the MTFP for 2025/26 to 2028/29, subject to the addition of
£19,500 in 2026/27 for a Councillor Community Fund”.

On being put to the meeting this amendment was declared lost with 2 votes for, 31
against and 2 abstentions.

The Council considered the substantive motion proposed by Councillor P Peacock and
seconded by Councillor R Cozens, as amended, and it was AGREED (with 33 votes for
and 1 against - Councillor A Brazier not being present at the time of the vote) that
Council approves the MTFP for the four financial years between 1 April 2025 and 31
March 2029 (2025-26 to 2028-29) subject to an amended annual increase of 1.94%,
hence replacing the 2.99% annual increase proposed within the original report with a
1.94% annual increase as per previous iterations of the MTFP.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2025/26

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive / Director -
Resources and Section 151 Officer which sought approval for the Treasury
Management Strategy, which incorporated the Borrowing Strategy, Investment

Agenda Page 13



64

65

Strategy and Treasury Prudential Indicators, which had all been updated in
accordance with latest guidance and in line with legislative requirements. The
strategies were attached as Appendix A to the report. The Audit & Governance
Committee had considered all of the strategies at their meeting held on 18 February
2025 and recommended these to Full Council for approval.

Councillor P Harris raised a concern around the increase maturity structure of
borrowing by 10% given the high interest period. As Chair of the Audit & Governance
Committee, Councillor R Holloway advised she would respond to those concerns.
AGREED (with 34 votes for and 1 against) that Council approves:
a) the Treasury Management Strategy 2025/26, incorporating the
Borrowing Strategy and the Annual Investment Strategy, contained

within Appendix A to the report;

b)  the Treasury Prudential Indicators and Limits, contained within
Appendix A to the report; and

c) the Authorised Limit Treasury Prudential Indicator contained within
Appendix A to the report.

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2025/26

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive / Director —
Resources & Section 151 Officer which sought approval for the Capital Strategy
2025/26 which incorporated the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Capital
Prudential Indicators, updated in accordance with latest guidance and with legislative
requirements. The strategies were attached as appendices to the report. The Audit &
Governance Committee had considered the proposed Capital Strategy 2025/26 at
their meeting held on 18 February 2025 and recommended it to Full Council for
approval.

AGREED (unanimously) that Council approves:
a) the Capital Strategy 2025/26 contained at Appendix A to the report;

b)  the Capital Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2025/26, contained
within Appendix A to the report;

c¢) the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement as
contained within Appendix C to the report, which set out the

Council’s policy on MRP; and

d) the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy, contained within
Appendix D to the report.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2025/26

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive / Director —

Agenda Page 14



66

67

Resources & Section 151 Officer which sought approval for the Investment Strategy
2025/26 which met the requirements of statutory guidance issued by the Department
of Levelling Up, Housing & Communities. The Audit & Governance Committee had
considered the proposed Investment Strategy 2025/26 at their meeting held on 18
February 2025 and recommended it to Full Council for approval.

Councillor P Harris asked what were the risks associated with equity investment and
how that would be monitored and sustained. Councillor R Hollway agreed to provide a
written response.

AGREED (unanimously) that Council approve:

a) the Non-Treasury Investment Strategy 2025/26 attached as
Appendix A to the report; and

b) the Investment Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2025/26,
contained within Appendix A to the report.

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2025/26

The Council considered the report of the Director — Customer Services &
Organisational Development which sought approval of the Pay Policy Statement
(attached as Appendix A to the report) for 2025/26. In accordance with Section 38(1)
of the Localism Act 2011, the Council was required to produce a Pay Policy Statement
for each financial year. The Cabinet, at their meeting held on 18 February 2025,
recommended the Pay Policy Statement to the Council for adoption.

It was noted that the pay award for 2025/26 was still to be finalised but once agrees
the Pay Policy Statement would be revised to reflect new pay rates. In addition to
issues on pay, the report also refereed to ongoing challenges around recruitment and
retention.

AGREED (unanimously) that the Pay Policy Statement for 2025/26 be approved.

COUNCIL TAX SECOND HOME PREMIUM AND SHORT-TERM EMPTY DISCOUNT

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive / Director —
Resources & Section 151 Officer which provided an update on the current position
relating to second homes in the District and enabled Members to consider options to
charge a premium on these properties. It also enabled Council to consider changing
the discount available for short-term empty properties.

In a report to Cabinet on 6 December 2012, it was agreed to implement a local
discount of 100% for vacant (empty and unfurnished) properties for a maximum
period of up to four weeks and thereafter no discount. It was also agreed to remove
the 10% discount for second homes and levy the full 100% charge. As of 1 December
2024, the Council was levying second home charges for 183 properties in respect of
the 2024/25 charge period.

The proposal was to apply a 100% second home premium (the maximum permitted

Agenda Page 15



68

level) with effect from 1 April 2026. The proposal would best support Council and
Government policy in helping to reduce the number of empty homes by giving the
highest incentive to owners to bring the properties back in to use, by either selling or
renting the property.

Members referred to the Council still being able to apply some discretion in terms of
these charges given there would always be exceptional circumstances to consider.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

(a) the position in relation to second homes and short-term
empty properties be noted;

(b) approve a levy on second homes with effect from 1 April 2026,
in line with recent legislative changes and to amend the
discount for short-term empty properties from 1 April 2025.

During the debate of this item, the Chair indicated that the meeting duration had
expired. Therefore, in accordance with Rule 2.7.2 a motion to continue for a further
hour was put to the Meeting and agreed.

NOTICES OF MOTION

Warmer Homes in Newark and Sherwood

In accordance with Rule No. 3.4.3 Councillor K Melton moved and Councillor M Spoors
seconded a motion to the following effect:

Council notes that:
1. The incoming Labour Government has announced a plan to ensure it
can..”
lift over one million households out of fuel poverty by
consulting on boosting minimum energy efficiency standards for all
renters by 2030, delivering warmer homes and cheaper bills.”
Minister for Energy Consumers Miatta Fahnbulleh — November 2024
2. In October 2024 ... “The National Wealth Fund (NWF), Barclays, and
the Lloyds Banking Group partnered to provide loans for social
housing energy efficiency projects. The loans are intended to help
housing associations meet their net zero targets and improve the
quality of life for residents.”
3. The MCS* Foundation, whose vision is to “Make every home in the UK Carbon free
" is working with our East Midlands Regional organisation N2D2 and the regional
mayor, Claire Ward, to help establish decarbonisation projects in the East Midlands.
4. Newark and Sherwood District Council has initiated a few small-scale grant-aided
projects to decarbonize some social homes. However, a date has not yet been set for
the decarbonization and insulation of the majority of our 5500 social homes.

Council reaffirms its commitment to using the UN Sustainable Development
Goals as a guide, and roadmap, for generating Local Action that works towards

achieving the UN SDGs. Agenda page 16



69

69a

69b

69c

69d

69e

In view of the accelerating speed of global over-heating and the consequent

impact of extreme weather events (e.g. very cold winters), plus the availability of
funding streams which mean decarbonisation and insulation

work should now be undertaken without all capital expenditure responsibility falling
to a Local Authority, this Council now resolves:-

A. To instruct the Director of Housing Health and Wellbeing to
investigate accelerating decarbonisation of NSDC
housing stock and incorporating decarbonisation of NSDC housing stock into the
Council’s decarbonisation objectives across the District.
B. To instruct the Director of Housing Health and Wellbeing to explore
available funding options to fulfil objective A as soon as possible.
C. Toinvestigate the implications of all NSDC new build social housing
in the District being built to net zero carbon standards.

(*MCS = Microgeneration Certification Scheme)

In accordance with Rule 4.6.1 Councillor P Peacock moved and Councillor J Kellas
seconded an amendment to the motion as follows:
“That this Council now resolves to:

A. To continue to investigate accelerating decarbonisation of NSDC housing stock and
incorporating decarbonisation of NSDC housing stock into the Council’s
decarbonisation objectives across the District.

B. To continue to explore available funding options to fulfil objective A as soon as
possible.

C. Toinvestigate the implications of all NSDC new build social housing
in the District being built to net zero carbon standards.

D. To establish a Policy & Performance Improvement Committee working group to
assess progress on A, B and C and receive findings from the ongoing work of the
Carbon Trust and to make recommendations to Cabinet from those findings.”

As the mover of the original motion, Councillor K Melton indicated his acceptance of
the amendment which therefore became an alteration of the motion in accordance
with Rule 4.7.1 and was debated by the Council.

The altered motion, on being put to the vote, was agreed unanimously.

MINUTES FOR NOTING

CABINET - 18 FEBRUARY 2025

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE - 10 FEBRUARY 2025

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE - 17 FEBRUARY 2025

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 13 FEBRUARY 2025

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE - 19 FEBRUARY 2025
Agenda Page 17




Meeting closed at 9.31 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 18



APPENDIX A
FULL COUNCIL MEETING — 6 MARCH 2025

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

In accordance with Rule No. 3.3.2 the following question was submitted to the Council from
Mr Laurence Goff:

Emily Blagg 90t Anniversary of Her Death On 7t April 1935 — 2025

Is it time to now recognise, acknowledge an exceptional intellectual woman of her life work
in and around Newark? Would you agree it is time that Mrs Emily Blagg can be remembered
with a Blue Plaque that can be on display at Newark Palace Theatre, Blagg and Johnson,
Newark Cemetery, the two house she lived in: The Lodge 23 London Road around the corner
from Lime Grove; 2 The Park Newark; and where she lived the rest of her life at 131 Lime
Grove.

Her contribution had a profound impact and has transformed Newark with her life work and
story having been told on TV programmes like Bargain Hunt, with many repeats also at Newark
Advertiser, Blagg and Johnson, Newark Library, Newark Palace Theatre and on the internet.

A wonderful and incredible woman, her legacy must live on for what she done for Newark and
putting us on the world's map of history marking. As part of International Women’s Day on
Saturday 8th March 2025, let us now put this tribute right so other woman can be inspired by
her achievements.

Would you agree that this wonderful and incredible woman’s legacy must live on for what she
done for Newark? As part of International Women’s Day, let us now put this tribute right so
other woman can be inspired by her achievements.

Reply from Councillor Rowan Cozens — Portfolio Holder for Heritage, Culture & the Arts
Emily Blagg’s profound legacy is alive and well in Newark.

Despite the pandemic, this remarkable woman’s achievements were highlighted as part of the
Palace Theatre’s centenary celebrations in 2020.

And that was only right as it was thanks to her that generations have been able to visit the
magnificent theatre that she built in the heart of the town.

Now, during the 90" anniversary of her passing, we have been contacted by various parties
keen to explore the possibility of securing a blue plaque to commemorate her.

The blue plague scheme is not administered by Newark and Sherwood, but by Historic England
and awards are very hard won.

Outside of London, where the scheme has only been in operation for a short number of years,
plaques have focussed on individuals known nationally and internationally who have ‘made a
significant contribution to human welfare or happiness; and/or have made an exceptional
impact in their field, community or on society at large’.

Agenda Page 19



We have registered for the application process and irrespective of the outcome, will continue
to celebrate the impact she made on Newark.

Supplemental Question from Mr Laurence Goff

Would you agree more inspirational women need to be recognised like Emily Blagg, would
you agree with me to have a special award in her honour.

Reply from Councillor Rowan Cozens — Portfolio Holder for Heritage, Culture & the Arts
Welcome further discussions.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

In accordance with Rule No. 3.3.3 the following question was submitted to the Council from
Councillor Johno Lee:

Given that we are moving towards a unitary system where services will likely be amalgamated
rather than separated, is now really the right time to be relocating the camera system hub?
Has there been any communication with other councils either by yourself or by Councillor Paul
Peacock about whether this is a financially wise decision in the context of future service
integration?”

Reply from Councillor Paul Taylor — Portfolio Holder for Public Protection & Community
Relations

| would like to thank Clir Lee for this question.

It gives me the opportunity to share with you how much we have achieved in reducing ASB
Since | have been in post as Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Community Relations.

At the end of January, ASB overall across the district is down 15.4% year on year.

In Castle ward it is down 37%, in Beacon Ward 37% and Devon ward 29% Those wards
collectively make up what we would know as Newark town centre.

Within your ward Balderton North and Coddington where we have delivered safer streets 5,
ASB is down by 58% despite you have opposed almost every intervention.

Even with those fantastic reductions in ASB | am not going to be complacent when it comes to
protecting the people of Newark and Sherwood Safety.

Bringing the CCTV control room back to Newark will deliver a step change in protecting the
safety of the people of Newark and Sherwood. | certainly am not willing to put their safety at
risk so that you can play petty politics.

We are already a year into our two year notice period. There are two reasons why we made
the decision to give notice that we intended to leave the control room CCTV partnership.

First and foremost we need a control room covering the district which is efficient and effective
and is proactively monitored. The current system is not the New control room in Newark will
be.

Agenda Page 20



We need a state of the art system which is monitored in real time and can deliver a step change
in performance in order to move it from being reactive to proactive.

Regarding the timing, devolution is unlikely to happen until 2028 at the earliest. It would then
take at least 4 years until the new unitary authority got round to reviewing CCTV based on
what has happened in Northamptonshire. At the moment we don’t even know what the new
unitary council will consist of.

To cancel opening a new CCTV control room in Newark would risk leaving the public without
the protection of CCTV for around 6 years . You may be willing to risk public safety in order to
play petty politics, | am not.

| regularly talk with leading members involved in public protection across Nottinghamshire and
none of them have raised any concern about our development of a new proactive CCTV system
for Newark.

We have even had a senior councillor from another Nottinghamshire Council visit our ASB
summits to see the work we are doing around ASB because they know how much we are
achieving in Newark and Sherwood. We have also had a research team from the Home Office
visit Newark to look at how we are being so successful in reducing ASB.

| would like to finish this answer by reminding ClIr Lee that when we made the decision to
continue with giving Newark a state-of-the-art CCTV system located back in Newark you had
the opportunity to have the decision called in and fully debated at Full Council. You chose not
to do so and instead chose to play political games. You keep on with your silly games and | will
continue with protecting the public of Newark and Sherwood.

Agenda Page 21



FULL COUNCIL MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6 MARCH 2025 APPENDIX B

ITEM 8 - REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX SETTING FOR 2025/26

AGREED (with 33 for, 1 against and 1 abstention) that:

2.1 It be noted that the following amounts have been determined for the year 2025/2026
in accordance with regulations made under Section 31(B) of the Local Government

Finance Act 1992:-

(a) 42,720.66

(b)  £47,762,186

being the amount calculated by the Council in accordance with regulation 3
of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 1992,
as its Council Tax Base for the year;

being the net business rate yield after transitional arrangements and rate
retention;

(c) Part of the Council’s Area

ToTAL LocAL
PARISH TAX BASE
1 Alverton 26.82
2 Averham 121.41
3 Balderton 3,080.34
4 Barnby in the Willows 110.25
5 Bathley 118.08
6 Besthorpe 83.07
7 Bilsthorpe 1,143.81
8 Bleasby 403.74
9 Blidworth 1,180.89
10 Bulcote 177.03
11 Carlton-on-Trent 102.96
12 Caunton 208.26
13 Caythorpe 141.30
14 Clipstone 1,692.90
15 Coddington 569.70
16 Collingham 1,272.78
17 Cotham 44.73
18 Cromwell 110.34

Agenda Page 22



ToTAL LocAL

PARISH TAX BASE
19 Eakring 208.80
20 East Stoke 74.07
21 Edingley 191.43
22 Edwinstowe 2,047.68
23 Egmanton 131.67
24 Elston 285.03
25 Epperstone 275.94
26 Farndon 823.41
27 Farnsfield 1,335.24
28 Fiskerton-cum-Morton 428.76
29 Girton and Meering 57.15
30 Gonalston 53.91
31 Grassthorpe 29.43
32 Gunthorpe 315.09
33 Halam 205.11
34 Halloughton 39.96
35 Harby 125.28
36 Hawton 31.77
37 Hockerton 107.01
38 Holme 43.38
39 Hoveringham 175.86
40 Kelham 87.03
41 Kersall 20.97
42 Kilvington 14.22
43 Kirklington 170.73
44 Kirton 133.02
45 Kneesall 96.30
46 Langford 42.39
47 Laxton & Moorhouse 117.54
48 Lowdham 1,011.87

Agel

1da Page 23



ToTAL LocAL

PARISH TAX BASE
49 Lyndhurst 7.65
50 Maplebeck 45.45
51 Meering -
52 Newark 9,294.84
53 North Clifton 74.43
54 North Muskham 418.32
55 Norwell 230.31
56 Ollerton and Boughton 3,057.84
57 Ompton 21.15
58 Ossington 40.59
59 Oxton 270.36
60 Perlethorpe-cum-Budby 75.60
61 Rainworth 1,954.35
62 Rolleston 165.15
63 Rufford 236.25
64 South Clifton 128.97
65 South Muskham 194.94
66 South Scarle 98.10
67 Southwell 3,053.16
68 Spalford 41.31
69 Staunton 29.61
70 Staythorpe 45.09
71 Sutton-on-Trent 555.93
72 Syerston 96.93
73 Thorney 102.78
74 Thorpe 35.10
75 Thurgarton 252.81
76 Upton 199.89
77 Walesby 446.13
78 Wellow 194.22

Agel

1da Page 24



ToTAL LocAL
PARISH TAX BASE
79 Weston 145.89
80 Wigsley 53.01
81 Winkburn 50.40
82 Winthorpe 287.01
83 Fernwood 1,421.28
84 Kings Clipstone 127.35
Total Rounded 42,720.66

Parishes Grouped For Precept Purposes

Averham, Kelham, Staythorpe 253.53
Kneesall, Kersall, Ompton 138.42
Winthorpe, Langford 329.40
East Stoke, Thorpe 109.17

being the amounts calculated by the Council, in accordance
with regulation 6 of the Regulations, as the amounts of its
Council Tax base for the year for dwellings in those parts of
its area to which one or more special items relate.

The revenue estimates for 2025/2026 and schedule of fees and charges, as submitted
in the Council's Budget book be approved;

That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 2025/2026
in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992:-

(a) £57,162,110.00 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) to (4) of
the Act;

(b) £36,261,250.00 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3)(a) to (d)
of the Act;

(c) £20,900,860.00 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above
exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with section 31A(4) of the Act, as
its Council Tax requirement for the year;

(d) £12,906,738.00 being the amount of Government Grants (£2,060,920)
and net retained Business Rates (including pool surplus)

Agenda Page 25



(e) £173,900.00

()  £316,301.00

(g) £8,484,323.00

(h)  £198.60

(i)  £4,091,219.00

(£10,845,818) which the Council estimates will be
payable for the year into its general fund;

being the amount which the Council has estimated in
accordance with regulations issued under Section 97(3)
of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 as its
proportion of the deficit on the Council Tax Collection
Fund;

being the amount that the Council has determined to
contribute to usable reserves;

being the amount at 3(c) above less the amount at 3(d)
above plus the amount at 3(e) above less the amount at
3(f) above calculated by the Council as its’ net Council
Tax requirement for the year.

being the amount at 3(g) divided by the amount at 2(a),
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax
for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to
which no special item relates.

being the aggregate amount of all special items referred
to in Section 34(1) of the Act, the Council resolves there
being no other special items;

(i) £294.37 being the amount at 3(g) above plus the amount at 3(i)
above divided by the amount at 2(a) above calculated by
the Council in accordance with Section 31B(1) of the Act,
as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year;

(k)

BASIC TAX
PARISH (£)

1 Alverton

198.60
2 Averham *
3 Balderton

323.17
4 Barnby in the Willows

246.14
5 Bathley

213.78
6 Besthorpe

300.32

Agenda Page 26



BASIC TAX
PARISH (£)

7 Bilsthorpe

282.59
8 Bleasby

249.13
9 Blidworth

281.63
10 Bulcote

260.74
11 Carlton-on-Trent

276.61
12 Caunton

232.45
13 Caythorpe

259.46
14 Clipstone

301.85
15 Coddington

230.73
16 Collingham

239.01
17 Cotham

198.60
18 Cromwell

208.12
19 Eakring

239.31
20 East Stoke ok
21 Edingley 269.12
22 Edwinstowe

306.82
23 Egmanton

240.37
24 Elston

307.27

Agenda Page 27



BASIC TAX
PARISH (£)

25 Epperstone

266.11
26 Farndon

276.63
27 Farnsfield

266.85
28 Fiskerton-cum-Morton

221.37
29 Girton and Meering

220.03
30 Gonalston

198.60
31 Grassthorpe

198.60
32 Gunthorpe

276.91
33 Halam

237.60
34 Halloughton

198.60
35 Harby

250.41
36 Hawton

239.52
37 Hockerton

245.32
38 Holme

198.60
39 Hoveringham

294.13
40 Kelham *
41 Kersall *x
42 Kilvington

198.60

Agenda Page 28



BASIC TAX
PARISH (£)
43 Kirklington
254.24
44 Kirton
258.74
45 Kneesall ok
46 Langford Hokk
47 Laxton & Moorhouse
239.69
48 Lowdham
283.59
49 Lyndhurst
198.60
50 Maplebeck
198.60
51 Meering
198.60
52 Newark
338.37
53 North Clifton
225.58
54 North Muskham
243.74
55 Norwell
241.65
56 Ollerton and Boughton
374.93
57 Ompton *ox
58 Ossington
198.60
59 Oxton
276.27
60 Perlethorpe-cum-Budby
222.41
61 Rainworth
234.42

Agenda Page 29



BASIC TAX
PARISH (£)

62 Rolleston

260.95
63 Rufford

215.53
64 South Clifton

222.25
65 South Muskham

270.02
66 South Scarle

253.95
67 Southwell

295.14
68 Spalford

198.60
69 Staunton

198.60
70 Staythorpe *
71 Sutton-on-Trent

250.73
72 Syerston

198.60
73 Thorney

229.73
74 Thorpe ok ok ok
75 Thurgarton

268.04
76 Upton

243.12
77 Walesby

312.57
78 Wellow

240.82
79 Weston

232.30

Agenda Page 30



BASIC TAX
PARISH (£)
80 Wigsley
217.46
81 Winkburn
198.60
82 Winthorpe Hkx
83 Fernwood
274.17
84 Kings Clipstone
284.11
Parishes Grouped for Parish Purposes Basic Tax (£)
* Averham, Kelham, Staythorpe 219.62
*k Kneesall, Kersall, Ompton 221.49
*okk Winthorpe, Langford 241.10
Fkkk East Stoke, Thorpe 232.95

being the amounts given by adding to the amount at 3(h) above the amounts of the
special item or items (if any) relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council's area
mentioned above divided in each case by the amount at 2(b) above, calculated by
the Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in parts of its area including those parts to
which one or more special items relate.

The table below shows the basic level of tax for all property bands in each parish,
including parish charges where appropriate. This is shown on the following two pages.

Part of the Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H
Council's
area, being
the Parishes
of:-

£ £ f £ f f £ f
Alverton 132.40 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
Averham * * E3 E3 * * * *
Balderton 215.45 251.35 287.26 323.17 394.99 466.80 538.62 646.34

Agenda Page 31




Barnby in the

4 | Willows 164.09 | 191.44 218.79 246.14 300.84 355.54 410.23 492.28
5 | Bathley 142.52 166.27 190.03 213.78 261.29 308.79 356.30 427.56
6 | Besthorpe 200.21 | 233.58 266.95 300.32 367.06 433.80 500.53 600.64
7 | Bilsthorpe 188.39 | 219.79 251.19 282.59 345.39 408.19 470.98 565.18
8 | Bleasby 166.09 | 193.77 221.45 249.13 304.49 359.85 415.22 498.26
9 | Blidworth 187.75 | 219.05 250.34 281.63 344.21 406.80 469.38 563.26
10 | Bulcote 173.83 202.80 231.77 260.74 318.68 376.62 434.57 521.48
Carlton-on-
11 | Trent 184.41 | 215.14 245.88 276.61 338.08 399.55 461.02 553.22
12 | Caunton 154.97 | 180.79 206.62 232.45 284.11 335.76 387.42 464.90
13 | Caythorpe 172.97 | 201.80 230.63 259.46 317.12 374.78 432.43 518.92
14 | Clipstone 201.23 | 234.77 268.31 301.85 368.93 436.01 503.08 603.70
15 | Coddington 153.82 | 179.46 205.09 230.73 282.00 333.28 384.55 461.46
16 | Collingham 159.34 | 185.90 212.45 239.01 292.12 345.24 398.35 478.02
17 | Cotham 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
18 | Cromwell 138.75 | 161.87 185.00 208.12 254.37 300.62 346.87 416.24
19 | Eakring 159.54 | 186.13 212.72 239.31 292.49 345.67 398.85 478.62
20 | East Stoke o o Yo oo Yoy Yoy Yo oy
21 | Edingley 179.41 | 209.32 239.22 269.12 328.92 388.73 448.53 538.24
22 | Edwinstowe 204.55 | 238.64 272.73 306.82 375.00 443.18 511.37 613.64
23 | Egmanton 160.25 | 186.95 213.66 240.37 293.79 347.20 400.62 480.74

Agenda Page 32




24 | Elston 204.85 | 238.99 273.13 307.27 375.55 443.83 512.12 614.54
25 | Epperstone 177.41 206.97 236.54 266.11 325.25 384.38 443.52 532.22
26 | Farndon 184.42 | 215.16 245.89 276.63 338.10 399.58 461.05 553.26
27 | Farnsfield 177.90 | 207.55 237.20 266.85 326.15 385.45 444.75 533.70
Fiskerton-
28 | cum-Morton 147.58 | 172.18 196.77 221.37 270.56 319.76 368.95 442.74
29 | Girton 146.69 171.13 195.58 220.03 268.93 317.82 366.72 440.06
30 | Gonalston 132.40 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
31 | Grassthorpe 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
32 | Gunthorpe 184.61 | 215.37 246.14 276.91 338.45 399.98 461.52 553.82
33 | Halam 158.40 | 184.80 211.20 237.60 290.40 343.20 396.00 475.20
34 | Halloughton 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
35 | Harby 166.94 | 194.76 222.59 250.41 306.06 361.70 417.35 500.82
36 | Hawton 159.68 | 186.29 21291 239.52 292.75 345.97 399.20 479.04
37 | Hockerton 163.55 | 190.80 218.06 245.32 299.84 354.35 408.87 490.64
38 | Holme 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
39 | Hoveringham 196.09 | 228.77 261.45 294.13 359.49 424.85 490.22 588.26
40 | Kelham * * * * * * * *
41 | Kersall ** ** "ok ** * % * % "k * ok
42 | Kilvington 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
43 | Kirklington 169.49 | 197.74 225.99 254.24 310.74 367.24 423.73 508.48

Agenda Page 33




44 | Kirton 172.49 | 201.24 229.99 258.74 316.24 373.74 431.23 517.48
45 Kneesa” % %k % %k * %k * %k % % % % * %k % %k
46 Langford * % % * % % * % % * % % * % % * % % * % % * % %
Laxton &
47 | Moorhouse 159.79 186.43 213.06 239.69 292.95 346.22 399.48 479.38
48 | Lowdham 189.06 | 220.57 252.08 283.59 346.61 409.63 472.65 567.18
49 | Lyndhurst 132.40 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
50 | Maplebeck 132.40 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
51 | Meering 132.40 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
52 | Newark 225,58 | 263.18 300.77 338.37 413.56 488.76 563.95 676.74
53 | North Clifton 150.39 175.45 200.52 225.58 275.71 325.84 375.97 451.16
North
54 | Muskham 162.49 189.58 216.66 243.74 297.90 352.07 406.23 487.48
55 | Norwell 161.10 187.95 214.80 241.65 295.35 349.05 402.75 483.30
Ollerton and
56 | Boughton 249.95 291.61 333.27 374.93 458.25 541.57 624.88 749.86
57 Ompton % %k % %k * %k * %k % %k % %k * %k % %k
58 | Ossington 132.40 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
59 | Oxton 184.18 | 214.88 245.57 276.27 337.66 399.06 460.45 552.54
Perlethorpe-
60 | cum-Budby 148.27 172.99 197.70 222.41 271.83 321.26 370.68 444.82
61 | Rainworth 156.28 182.33 208.37 234.42 286.51 338.61 390.70 468.84
62 | Rolleston 173.97 | 202.96 231.96 260.95 318.94 376.93 434.92 521.90
63 | Rufford 143.69 167.63 191.58 215.53 263.43 311.32 359.22 431.06
64 | South Clifton 148.17 172.86 197.56 222.25 271.64 321.03 370.42 444.50

Agenda Page 34




South

65 | Muskham 180.01 | 210.02 240.02 270.02 330.02 390.03 450.03 540.04
66 | South Scarle 169.30 | 197.52 225.73 253.95 310.38 366.82 423.25 507.90
67 | Southwell 196.76 | 229.55 262.35 295.14 360.73 426.31 491.90 590.28
68 | Spalford 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
69 | Staunton 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
70 | Staythorpe * * * * * * * *

Sutton-on-
71 | Trent 167.15 | 195.01 222.87 250.73 306.45 362.17 417.88 501.46
72 | Syerston 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
73 | Thorney 153.15 | 178.68 204.20 229.73 280.78 331.83 382.88 459.46
74 Thorpe % %k %k k % %k %k k % %k %k k % %k %k k % %k %k k % %k %k k %k %k %k % % %k %k k
75 | Thurgarton 178.69 | 208.48 238.26 268.04 327.60 387.17 446.73 536.08
76 | Upton 162.08 | 189.09 216.11 243.12 297.15 351.17 405.20 486.24
77 | Walesby 208.38 | 243.11 277.84 312.57 382.03 451.49 520.95 625.14
78 | Wellow 160.55 | 187.30 214.06 240.82 294.34 347.85 401.37 481.64
79 | Weston 154.87 | 180.68 206.49 232.30 283.92 335.54 387.17 464.60
80 | Wigsley 144.97 | 169.14 193.30 217.46 265.78 314.11 362.43 434.92
81 | Winkburn 132.40 | 154.47 176.53 198.60 242.73 286.87 331.00 397.20
82 Winthorpe %k %k %k %k %k %k % %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k %k
83

Fernwood 182.78 | 213.24 243.71 274.17 335.10 396.02 456.95 548.34
84 |

Kings 189.41 | 220.97 252.54 284.11 347.25 410.38 473.52 568.22

Clipstone

Parishes joint for Precept purposes

Agenda Page 35




Averham,
* Kelham,
Staythorpe 146.41 170.82 195.22 219.62 268.42 317.23 366.03 439.24
Kneesall,
*ok Kersall,
Ompton 147.66 172.27 196.88 221.49 270.71 319.93 369.15 442 .98
s Winthorpe,
Langford 160.73 187.52 214.31 241.10 294.68 348.26 401.83 482.20
***x | East Stoke,
* Thorpe 155.30 181.18 207.07 232.95 284.72 336.48 388.25 465.90
being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 3(i) above by the number
which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is
applicable to dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for
the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.
4. it be noted for the year 2025/2026 that the Nottinghamshire County Council has stated
the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each valuation band shown below;
Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H
£ f f £ f f £ £
1,263.03 | 1,473.53 1,684.04 1,894.54 2,315.55 2,736.56 3,157.57 3,789.08
5. it be noted for the year 2025/2026 that the Nottinghamshire Police and Crime
Commissioner has stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council in
accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each
valuation band shown below;
Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H
£ £ f £ f f £ £
197.40 230.30 263.20 296.10 361.90 427.70 493.50 592.20
6. it be noted for the year 2025/2026 that the Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service

has proposed the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council in accordance
with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each valuation band

shown below; and

Agenda Page 36




Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
64.81 75.61 86.41 97.21 118.81 140.41 162.02 194.42
7. having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3(i) and 4, 5 and 6

above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts as the amount of Council Tax for the year
2025/2026 for each valuation band shown on the following pages:

Proposal 7

Part of the
Council's area, Band A Band B Band C BandD BandE Band F Band G Band H

being the
Parishes of:-
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
1 | Alverton 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
2 | Averham 1,671.65 | 1,950.26 | 2,228.87 | 2,507.47 | 3,064.68 | 3,621.90 | 4,179.12 | 5,014.94
3 | Balderton 1,740.69 | 2,030.79 | 2,320.91 | 2,611.02 | 3,191.25 | 3,771.47 | 4,351.71 | 5,222.04
Barnby in the
4 | Willows 1,689.33 | 1,970.88 | 2,252.44 | 2,533.99 | 3,097.10 | 3,660.21 | 4,223.32 | 5,067.98
5 | Bathley 1,667.76 | 1,945.71 | 2,223.68 | 2,501.63 | 3,057.55 | 3,613.46 | 4,169.39 | 5,003.26
6 | Besthorpe 1,725.45 | 2,013.02 | 2,300.60 | 2,588.17 | 3,163.32 | 3,738.47 | 4,313.62 | 5,176.34
7 | Bilsthorpe 1,713.63 | 1,999.23 | 2,284.84 | 2,570.44 | 3,141.65 | 3,712.86 | 4,284.07 | 5,140.88
8 | Bleasby 1,691.33 | 1,973.21 | 2,255.10 | 2,536.98 | 3,100.75 | 3,664.52 | 4,228.31 | 5,073.96
9 | Blidworth 1,712.99 | 1,998.49 | 2,283.99 | 2,569.48 | 3,140.47 | 3,711.47 | 4,282.47 | 5,138.96
10 | Bulcote 1,699.07 | 1,982.24 | 2,265.42 | 2,548.59 | 3,114.94 | 3,681.29 | 4,247.66 | 5,097.18
Carlton-on-
11 | Trent 1,709.65 | 1,994.58 | 2,279.53 | 2,564.46 | 3,134.34 | 3,704.22 | 4,274.11 | 5,128.92
12 | Caunton 1,680.21 | 1,960.23 | 2,240.27 | 2,520.30 | 3,080.37 | 3,640.43 | 4,200.51 | 5,040.60
13 | Caythorpe 1,698.21 | 1,981.24 | 2,264.28 | 2,547.31 | 3,113.38 | 3,679.45 | 4,245.52 | 5,094.62
14 | Clipstone 1,726.47 | 2,014.21 | 2,301.96 | 2,589.70 | 3,165.19 | 3,740.68 | 4,316.17 | 5,179.40
15 | Coddington 1,679.06 | 1,958.90 | 2,238.74 | 2,518.58 | 3,078.26 | 3,637.95 | 4,197.64 | 5,037.16
16 | Collingham 1,684.58 | 1,965.34 | 2,246.10 | 2,526.86 | 3,088.38 | 3,649.91 | 4,211.44 | 5,053.72
17 | Cotham 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
18 | Cromwell 1,663.99 | 1,941.31 | 2,218.65 | 2,495.97 | 3,050.63 | 3,605.29 | 4,159.96 | 4,991.94

Agenda Page 37




19 | Eakring 1,684.78 | 1,965.57 | 2,246.37 | 2,527.16 | 3,088.75 | 3,650.34 | 4,211.94 | 5,054.32
20 | East Stoke 1,680.54 | 1,960.62 | 2,240.72 | 2,520.80 | 3,080.98 | 3,641.15 | 4,201.34 | 5,041.60
21 | Edingley 1,704.65 | 1,988.76 | 2,272.87 | 2,556.97 | 3,125.18 | 3,693.40 | 4,261.62 | 5,113.94
22 | Edwinstowe 1,729.79 | 2,018.08 | 2,306.38 | 2,594.67 | 3,171.26 | 3,747.85 | 4,324.46 | 5,189.34
23 | Egmanton 1,685.49 | 1,966.39 | 2,247.31 | 2,528.22 | 3,090.05 | 3,651.87 | 4,213.71 | 5,056.44
24 | Elston 1,730.09 | 2,018.43 | 2,306.78 | 2,595.12 | 3,171.81 | 3,748.50 | 4,325.21 | 5,190.24
25 | Epperstone 1,702.65 | 1,986.41 | 2,270.19 | 2,553.96 | 3,121.51 | 3,689.05 | 4,256.61 | 5,107.92
26 | Farndon 1,709.66 | 1,994.60 | 2,279.54 | 2,564.48 | 3,134.36 | 3,704.25 | 4,274.14 | 5,128.96
27 | Farnsfield 1,703.14 | 1,986.99 | 2,270.85 | 2,554.70 | 3,122.41 | 3,690.12 | 4,257.84 | 5,109.40
)8 Fiskerton-cum-

Morton 1,672.82 | 1,951.62 | 2,230.42 | 2,509.22 | 3,066.82 | 3,624.43 | 4,182.04 | 5,018.44
29 | Girton 1,671.93 | 1,950.57 | 2,229.23 | 2,507.88 | 3,065.19 | 3,622.49 | 4,179.81 | 5,015.76
30 | Gonalston 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
31 | Grassthorpe 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
32 | Gunthorpe 1,709.85 1,994.81 | 2,279.79 | 2,564.76 | 3,134.71 | 3,704.65 | 4,274.61 | 5,129.52
33 | Halam 1,683.64 | 1,964.24 | 2,244.85 | 2,525.45 | 3,086.66 | 3,647.87 | 4,209.09 | 5,050.90
34 | Halloughton 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
35 | Harby 1,692.18 | 1,974.20 | 2,256.24 | 2,538.26 | 3,102.32 | 3,666.37 | 4,230.44 | 5,076.52
36 | Hawton 1,684.92 | 1,965.73 | 2,246.56 | 2,527.37 | 3,089.01 | 3,650.64 | 4,212.29 | 5,054.74
37 | Hockerton 1,688.79 | 1,970.24 | 2,251.71 | 2,533.17 | 3,096.10 | 3,659.02 | 4,221.96 | 5,066.34
38 | Holme 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
39 | Hoveringham 1,721.33 | 2,008.21 | 2,295.10 | 2,581.98 | 3,155.75 | 3,729.52 | 4,303.31 | 5,163.96
40 | Kelham 1,671.65 | 1,950.26 | 2,228.87 | 2,507.47 | 3,064.68 | 3,621.90 | 4,179.12 | 5,014.94
41 | Kersall 1,672.90 | 1,951.71 | 2,230.53 | 2,509.34 | 3,066.97 | 3,624.60 | 4,182.24 | 5,018.68
42 | Kilvington 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
43 | Kirklington 1,694.73 | 1,977.18 | 2,259.64 | 2,542.09 | 3,107.00 | 3,671.91 | 4,236.82 | 5,084.18
44 | Kirton 1,697.73 | 1,980.68 | 2,263.64 | 2,546.59 | 3,112.50 | 3,678.41 | 4,244.32 | 5,093.18
45 | Kneesall 1,672.90 | 1,951.71 | 2,230.53 | 2,509.34 | 3,066.97 | 3,624.60 | 4,182.24 | 5,018.68
46 | Langford 1,685.97 | 1,966.96 | 2,247.96 | 2,528.95 | 3,090.94 | 3,652.93 | 4,214.92 | 5,057.90

Laxton &
47 | Moorhouse 1,685.03 | 1,965.87 | 2,246.71 | 2,527.54 | 3,089.21 | 3,650.89 | 4,212.57 | 5,055.08
48 | Lowdham 1,714.30 | 2,000.01 | 2,285.73 | 2,571.44 | 3,142.87 | 3,714.30 | 4,285.74 | 5,142.88
49 | Lyndhurst 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90

Agenda Page 38




50 | Maplebeck 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
51 | Meering 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
52 | Newark 1,750.82 | 2,042.62 | 2,334.42 | 2,626.22 | 3,209.82 | 3,793.43 | 4,377.04 | 5,252.44
53 | North Clifton 1,675.63 | 1,954.89 | 2,234.17 | 2,513.43 | 3,071.97 | 3,630.51 | 4,189.06 | 5,026.86
54 | North Muskham | 1,687.73 | 1,969.02 | 2,250.31 | 2,531.59 | 3,094.16 | 3,656.74 | 4,219.32 | 5,063.18
55 | Norwell 1,686.34 | 1,967.39 | 2,248.45 | 2,529.50 | 3,091.61 | 3,653.72 | 4,215.84 | 5,059.00
Ollerton and
56 | Boughton 1,775.19 | 2,071.05 | 2,366.92 | 2,662.78 | 3,254.51 | 3,846.24 | 4,437.97 | 5,325.56
57 | Ompton 1,672.90 | 1,951.71 | 2,230.53 | 2,509.34 | 3,066.97 | 3,624.60 | 4,182.24 | 5,018.68
58 | Ossington 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
59 | Oxton 1,709.42 1,994.32 | 2,279.22 | 2,564.12 | 3,133.92 | 3,703.73 | 4,273.54 | 5,128.24
Perlethorpe-
60 | cum-Budby 1,673.51 | 1,952.43 | 2,231.35 | 2,510.26 | 3,068.09 | 3,625.93 | 4,183.77 | 5,020.52
61 | Rainworth 1,681.52 1,961.77 | 2,242.02 | 2,522.27 | 3,082.77 | 3,643.28 | 4,203.79 | 5,044.54
62 | Rolleston 1,699.21 | 1,982.40 | 2,265.61 | 2,548.80 | 3,115.20 | 3,681.60 | 4,248.01 | 5,097.60
63 | Rufford 1,668.93 | 1,947.07 | 2,225.23 | 2,503.38 | 3,059.69 | 3,615.99 | 4,172.31 | 5,006.76
64 | South Clifton 1,673.41 | 1,952.30 | 2,231.21 | 2,510.10 | 3,067.90 | 3,625.70 | 4,183.51 | 5,020.20
65 | South Muskham | 1,705.25 | 1,989.46 | 2,273.67 | 2,557.87 | 3,126.28 | 3,694.70 | 4,263.12 | 5,115.74
66 | South Scarle 1,694.54 | 1,976.96 | 2,259.38 | 2,541.80 | 3,106.64 | 3,671.49 | 4,236.34 | 5,083.60
67 | Southwell 1,722.00 | 2,008.99 | 2,296.00 | 2,582.99 | 3,156.99 | 3,730.98 | 4,304.99 | 5,165.98
68 | Spalford 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
69 | Staunton 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
70 | Staythorpe 1,671.65 | 1,950.26 | 2,228.87 | 2,507.47 | 3,064.68 | 3,621.90 | 4,179.12 | 5,014.94
71 | Sutton-on-Trent | 1,692.39 | 1,974.45 | 2,256.52 | 2,538.58 | 3,102.71 | 3,666.84 | 4,230.97 | 5,077.16
72 | Syerston 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
73 | Thorney 1,678.39 | 1,958.12 | 2,237.85 | 2,517.58 | 3,077.04 | 3,636.50 | 4,195.97 | 5,035.16
74 | Thorpe 1,680.54 | 1,960.62 | 2,240.72 | 2,520.80 | 3,080.98 | 3,641.15 | 4,201.34 | 5,041.60
75 | Thurgarton 1,703.93 | 1,987.92 | 2,271.91 | 2,555.89 | 3,123.86 | 3,691.84 | 4,259.82 | 5,111.78
76 | Upton 1,687.32 | 1,968.53 | 2,249.76 | 2,530.97 | 3,093.41 | 3,655.84 | 4,218.29 | 5,061.94
77 | Walesby 1,733.62 | 2,022.55 | 2,311.49 | 2,600.42 | 3,178.29 | 3,756.16 | 4,334.04 | 5,200.84
78 | Wellow 1,685.79 | 1,966.74 | 2,247.71 | 2,528.67 | 3,090.60 | 3,652.52 | 4,214.46 | 5,057.34
79 | Weston 1,680.11 | 1,960.12 | 2,240.14 | 2,520.15 | 3,080.18 | 3,640.21 | 4,200.26 | 5,040.30
80 | Wigsley 1,670.21 | 1,948.58 | 2,226.95 | 2,505.31 | 3,062.04 | 3,618.78 | 4,175.52 | 5,010.62

Agen

a Page 39




81 | Winkburn 1,657.64 | 1,933.91 | 2,210.18 | 2,486.45 | 3,038.99 | 3,591.54 | 4,144.09 | 4,972.90
82 | Winthorpe 1,685.97 | 1,966.96 | 2,247.96 | 2,528.95 | 3,090.94 | 3,652.93 | 4,214.92 | 5,057.90
83 | Fernwood 1,708.02 1,992.68 | 2,277.36 | 2,562.02 | 3,131.36 | 3,700.69 | 4,270.04 | 5,124.04
84 | Kings Clipstone 1,714.65 | 2,000.41 | 2,286.19 | 2,571.96 | 3,143.51 | 3,715.05 | 4,286.61 | 5,143.92
Parishes joint for Precept purposes
Averham,
Kelham,
* Staythorpe 1,671.65 1,950.26 | 2,228.87 | 2,507.47 | 3,064.68 | 3,621.90 | 4,179.12 | 5,014.94
Kneesall,
*k Kersall, Ompton 1,672.90 | 1,951.71 | 2,230.53 | 2,509.34 | 3,066.97 | 3,624.60 | 4,182.24 | 5,018.68
Winthorpe,
kK Langford 1,685.97 | 1,966.96 | 2,247.96 | 2,528.95 | 3,090.94 | 3,652.93 | 4,214.92 | 5,057.90
**x | East Stoke,
* Thorpe 1,680.54 | 1,960.62 | 2,240.72 | 2,520.80 | 3,080.98 | 3,641.15 | 4,201.34 | 5,041.60

determine that the Council’s basic amount of council tax for 2025/26 is not excessive in
accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB Local Government Finance Act 1992
and that the referendum provisions in Chapter4ZA do not apply for 2025/26. As the billing
authority, the Council has not been notified by a major precepting authority that its relevant
basic amount of Council Tax for 2025/26 is excessive and that the billing authority is not
required to hold a referendum in accordance with Section 52ZK Local Government Finance Act

1992.

Agenda Page 40




NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of Full Council held in the Civic Suite, Castle House,
Great North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Wednesday, 19 March 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor J Hall (Chair)

Councillor L Tift (Vice-Chair)

Councillor N Allen, Councillor A Amer, Councillor L Brazier, Councillor
| Brown, Councillor R Cozens, Councillor L Dales, Councillor D Darby,
Councillor P Farmer, Councillor A Freeman, Councillor S Forde,
Councillor S Haynes, Councillor R Holloway, Councillor R Jackson,
Councillor J Kellas, Councillor J Lee, Councillor K Melton, Councillor
S Michael, Councillor D Moore, Councillor E Oldham, Councillor
P Peacock, Councillor CPenny, Councillor M Pringle, Councillor
P Rainbow, Councillor K Roberts, Councillor N Ross, Councillor
S Saddington, Councillor T Smith, Councillor M Shakeshaft, Councillor
M Spoors, Councillor T Wendels and Councillor T Wildgust

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor A Brazier, Councillor CBrooks, Councillor S Crosby,
ABSENCE: Councillor P Harris, Councillor P Taylor and Councillor T Thompson

70

71

72

NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair advised the Council that the meeting was being recorded and streamed
online in accordance with usual practice.

Councillor J. Lee notified the Council that he would be recording parts of the meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

Councillor J. Lee declared an interest as a Members of Nottinghamshire County
Council and the Nottinghamshire & City of Nottingham Fire and Rescue Authority.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION IN NOTTINGHAM AND NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

The Leader of the Council presented a report which outlined the contents of the
Governments English Devolution White Paper which set out the requirements for
local government reorganisation and the specific plans to be developed in Nottingham
and Nottinghamshire. The report outlined the work undertaken to respond to those
requirements, and to endorse the submission of an interim plan for the area of
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire which was required to be submitted to the
Government by 21 March 2025.

The interim plan at appendix C to the report, had been developed by officers across
the nine Councils in Nottinghamshire with independent support and advice from PWC.

In presenting the report, the Leader of the Council confirmed his intention to
withdraw recommendation (b) from the report as it was not necessary at this stage to
express a preference for any options.

Agenda Page 41



In the debate, the Council considered the process and timescales being proposed by
the Government, noted that at least one other local authority in the county were
supporting a three unitary councils model, and supported a full public consultation
exercise prior to any new model being implemented.

AGREED (with 32 votes for and 1 against) that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

the interim plan for local government reorganisation in Nottingham and
Nottinghamshire as attached at Appendix C to the report be endorsed for
submission to Government by 21 March 2025;

the reference within the interim plan, seeking support from Government for
adjustments to District/Borough boundaries where they are considered to provide
more “sensible geography” be noted, but acknowledging that such adjustments
would be unlikely to take effect until after the establishment of the new unitary
Councils;

the Council engage with Town and Parish Councils in the development of the next
phase of work, recognising the importance of ‘sub-structures’ that will sit beneath
the new unitary Councils; and

the Council continue to work collaboratively with other Nottinghamshire
authorities with a view to developing a proposal for a single tier of local
government in Nottinghamshire for submission to Government by 28 November
2025.

Meeting closed at 6.27 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 42



Agenda Item 12

NEWARK &
SHERWOOQOD

nme DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to: Annual Meeting of the Full Council — 20 May 2025

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Peacock, Strategy, Performance & Finance

Director Lead: John Robinson, Chief Executive

Lead Officer: Nigel Hill, Business Manager Elections & Democratic Services, Ext. 5243

Report Summary

Political Composition of the Council and allocation of seats on

Report Title .
P Committees
In accordance with the Constitution, to consider the allocation of
Purpose of Report seats to political groups in accordance with the political balance

rules.

That the Council approve the allocation of seats to political groups

Recommendations . . .
in accordance with Appendix A to the report.

To ensure the Council complies with Section 15 of the Local
Government & Housing Act 1989 and the Local Government
(Committees & Political Groups) Regulations 1990.

Reason for
Recommendation

1.0 Background

1.1 Section 15 of the Local Government & Housing Act 1989 requires the Council to consider
the political composition of the Council. The Act, together with Local Government
(Committees & Political Groups) Regulations 1990, require local authorities to allocate
seats on Committees of a local authority on a proportional basis, in accordance with the
number of seats on the Council held by each political group.

1.2 Thie seats held by each political group on the Council are as follows:-

Political Group Membership | Percentage of Council (rounded)
Conservative 11 28.21

Labour 10 25.64

Independents for Newark & District | 6 15.38

Liberal Democrats 3 7.69

Green 2 5.14

Newark & Sherwood Independents | 2 5.14

Agenda Page 43



1.3 There are also five independent non-aligned Members on the Council as follows:

Independent Non-Aligned Members | Percentage of Council (rounded)
Cllr Amer 2.56
Cllr Brown 2.56
Clir Dales 2.56
Clir Holloway 2.56
Clir Lee 2.56

1.4 Under the Leader / Executive model of governance only certain Committees are
required to reflect the political balance. There are a total of 77 seats on Committees
which must comply with political balance rules as follows:

Committee No. of
Members
Policy & Performance Improvement Committee 15
Planning Committee 15
Licensing Committee 15
General Purposes Committee 15
Audit & Governance Committee 12
Board of Gilstrap Trustees 5
Total 77 seats

1.5 Based on these arrangements the following calculations can be made in terms of
allocation of seats on Committees:

Rounded

Conservative 77 x 28.21% 21.72 22* 23
Labour 77 x 25.64% 19.74 20
Independents for Newark & District 77 x 15.38% 11.84 12
Liberal Democrats 77 x7.69% 5.92 6
N&S District Independents 77 x5.14% 3.95 4
Green 77 x5.14% 3.95 4
Ind N/A (Amer) 77 x 2.56% 1.97 2
Ind N/A (Brown) 77 x 2.56% 1.97 2*1
Ind N/A (Dales) 77 x 2.56% 1.97 2*1
Ind N/A (Holloway) 77 x 2.56% 1.97 2
Ind N/A (Lee) 77 x 2.56% 1.97 2

77

*Following discussions with groups and the Independent Non-aligned Members.

1.6 The allocation of seats on Committees to each political group calculated above, gives
seats to the independent non-aligned Members, but the allocation of these seats is at
the discretion of the Full Council and currently Councillors Irene Brown and Linda
Dales only have one seat each on Committees.

Agenda Page 44



1.7 The matrix at Appendix A of the report sets out the proposed allocation of seats to
political groups.

2.0 Implications
In writing this report and in putting forward recommendations, officers have considered

the following implications: Data Protection, Digital and Cyber Security, Equality and
Diversity, Financial, Human Resources, Human Rights, Legal, Safeguarding and
Sustainability and where appropriate they have made reference to these implications
and added suitable expert comment where appropriate.

Legal Implications (LEG2425/2827)

2.1 Full Council is the appropriate body to consider the content of this report. There is no
legal requirement for Non-aligned Independent Members to be allocated Committee
seats.

Background Papers and Published Documents

Except for previously published documents, which will be available elsewhere, the documents
listed here will be available for inspection in accordance with Section 100D of the Local
Government Act 1972.

None

Agenda Page 45



APPENDIX A

ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS

o . = - = - > 4
) 4] c &= c c v c 8 c
2 - S¥ .| —% |5 _ ¢ o 9 o 3 g 9 @ 3 3 o Total Seats
S 5 ss8| ®BS | =883 g S E T2 |28 T2 T3 .
Committee E 2 & 25 g o §§*E 3 o gf“ g @ ga. g2 g 4 By Committee
(2] 2 g [
g 3 & Z0 JQE, 2289 0] o g U o < o >
o T = a v B T > e > T > B -
S g S £ £2 £Z | £2 £S5 | £

D
*NOE The Audit & Governance Committee includes one independent co-opted member acting in an advisory capacity

+No?3 The Board of Trustees of the Gilstrap Charity includes up to four non-voting co-opted Members (Newark Wards)



Agenda Iltem 13

NEWARK &
SHERWOOQOD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

i

Report to: Annual Meeting of the Full Council — 20 May 2025
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Peacock, Strategy, Performance & Finance
Director Lead: John Robinson, Chief Executive

Lead Officer: Nigel Hill, Business Manager Elections & Democratic Services, Ext. 5243
Report Summary
Report Title To allocate Chairs, Vice-Chairs and Members to Committees etc.

To agree the composition of the Council’s Committees and make

P fR t
trpose ol Repor appointments to the positions of Chair and Vice-Chairs.

That the Council approve the appointments of the Chairs and Vice-
Chairs on Committees and the appointment of other Members to
Committees etc. as per the schedule to be circulated at the
meeting.

Recommendations

1.0 Background

1.1 The previous report on the agenda set the structure of Council Committees for 2025/26
and allocated seats to groups in accordance with the political composition of the Council
as per the requirements of Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

1.2 The Council also appoints Members to other committees, joint committees, boards and
working groups which do not need to meet the requirements of Section 15 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989.

1.3 The full schedule of appointments will be circulated at the meeting once they have been
received from the political groups.

2.0 Proposal

2.1 The Council are asked to make the appointments of the Chairs and Vice-Chairs on
Committees as set out in the table below and agree the other appointments which
will be set out on the schedule to be circulated.

Committee Chair Vice-Chair

Policy &  Performance | Councillor Mike Pringle | Councillor Neil Ross
Improvement Committee
Planning Committee Councillor Andrew Councillor David Moore
Freeman

Agenda Page 47



Licensing and  General | Councillor Jean Hall Councillor Linda Tift
Purposes Committees
Audit & Governance | Councillor Rhona | Councillor Sylvia Michael
Committee Holloway

Board of Gilstrap Trustees Councillor Adrian Amer

2.2 The Leader has confirmed to keep Cabinet Member appointments and the Cabinet
scheme of delegation unchanged.

3.0 Implications
In writing this report and in putting forward recommendations officers have considered

the following implications; Data Protection, Digital and Cyber Security, Equality and
Diversity, Financial, Human Resources, Human Rights, Legal, Safeguarding and
Sustainability and where appropriate they have made reference to these implications
and added suitable expert comment where appropriate.

3.1 Legal Implications (LEG2425/7538)

Full Council is the appropriate body to consider the content of this report in
accordance with paragraph 1.1 of the Full Council Procedure Rules in Part D of the
Council’s Constitution.

Background Papers and Published Documents
Except for previously published documents, which will be available elsewhere, the documents
listed here will be available for inspection in accordance with Section 100D of the Local

Government Act 1972.

None.

Agenda Page 48



Agenda Iltem 14

NEWARK &
SHERWOOQOD

enne DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to: Annual Meeting of the Full Council — 20 May 2025

Director Leads:  John Robinson, Chief Executive
Deborah Johnson, Director - Customer Services & Organisational
Development

Lead Officers: Carl Burns, Transformation & Service Improvement Manager
Rowan Bosworth-Brown, Senior Transformation & Service Improvement
Officer, Ext. 5824

Report Summary
Report Title Community Plan 2023 - 2027

To approve the refreshed Community Plan 2023-2027

Purpose of Report (Appendix 1).

That Council approve the refreshed version of the Community

R .
ecommendations Plan, for continued implementation between 2025 — 2027.

The Community Plan 2023-2027 is the key document which will
set the vision and direction of the Council during a four-year

Reason for term. As such it is necessary that this document is refreshed

Recommendations throughout the four-year term, to ensure the plan reflects the
projects and initiatives which are ongoing or yet to be
delivered.

1.0 Background

1.1 The Community Plan is the key direction setting document used to outline the priorities
and vision of the Council for a four-year term. The current Community Plan has been in
place formally since December 2023, when it was approved by Full Council.

1.2 One of the key items of feedback from the LGA Peer Challenge was to review the
Community Plan with a particular focus on reducing the number of actions. The Council
was also encouraged to focus to a greater extent on those functions that were core
business, investing less resource on responsibilities that belonged to partners. As a
result, Portfolio Holders, Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs undertook a comprehensive
review of the Community Plan and developed a refreshed version.

1.3 The refreshed Community Plan was subsequently presented to the Policy and

Performance Improvement Committee (PPIC) at the meeting held 10 March 2025 where
it was endorsed unanimously for referral to Cabinet.

Agenda Page 49



1.4

1.5

2.0
2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

All members who were not directly involved in the refresh of the Community Plan, were
invited to attend a session held with the Chief Executive on 24 March 2025 to discuss
the refreshed Community Plan and the proposed changes.

On 1 April 2025, Cabinet agreed to approve the refreshed Community Plan 2023-2027
for submission to Full Council.

Proposal/Details of Options Considered
It is recommended that the Council approve the refreshed Community Plan, which
outlines the vision, priorities and key actions for the period 2023-2027.

Implications

In writing this report and in putting forward recommendations, officers have considered
the following implications: Data Protection, Digital and Cyber Security, Equality and
Diversity, Financial, Human Resources, Human Rights, Legal, Safeguarding,
Sustainability, and Crime and Disorder and where appropriate they have made
reference to these implications and added suitable expert comment where appropriate.

Financial Implications (FIN24-25/6470)

Many of the actions within the Community Plan do not require additional financial
resources due to the nature of the actions. For the actions that require additional
budget, this budget has been included within the 2025/26 budget or within the 2025/26-
2028/29 Medium-Term Financial Plan.

Legal Implications (LEG2425/2827)
Full Council is the appropriate body to consider the content of this report; the

Community Plan is part of the Policy Framework that is reserved to Full Council for
approval under Part C of the Council’s Constitution, Responsibility for Functions.

Background Papers and Published Documents

Except for previously published documents, which will be available elsewhere, the documents
listed here will be available for inspection in accordance with Section 100D of the Local
Government Act 1972.

Cabinet Meeting 01.04.25

Agenda Page 50


https://democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/documents/s22576/01.04.25%20-%20Community%20Plan%20Refresh.pdf

COMMUNITY PLAN ﬂ it

2023 -2027 .

REVISED: APRIL 2025

NEWARK &

Agend*
SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES SHERWOOD

>



S




NEWARK &
SHERWOOL

2 DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONTENTS

Welcome to Newark and Sherwood’s Community Plan

Introduction b
Our vision 5
Our purpose and our values 6
Our district 7
How the Council works 9
How will we finance our plans? 10
Our Ambitions 13
Ambition 1: Break down barriers to opportunity to enable residents and 14
businesses to prosper and fulfil their potential

Ambition 2: Increase the supply of housing, in particular decent homes that 15
residents can afford to buy and rent, as well as improving housing standards

Ambition 3: Improve health and wellbeing, with an emphasis on communities 17
with lower levels of life expectancy

Ambition 4: Reduce crime and anti-social behaviour, improving community 18
feelings of safety

Ambition 5: Promote, maximise and celebrate the diversity of Newark and 19
Sherwood's heritage, culture and community spirit

Ambition 6: Reduce the impact of climate change and protect and enhance 21
green spaces

Ambition 7: Be a top performing, modern and accessible Council that get its 22
everyday services right for the residents and businesses that it serves

Our performance 24
Have your say 26
Contact us 28

Agenda Page 53

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 3




WELCOME TO NEWARK AND SHERWOOD'S

COMMUNITY PLAN
2023 - 2027

Welcome to this updated version of Newark and Sherwood’s Community Plan.

The plan covers the period up until May 2027 and sets out what the Council intends to achieve and
how we will go about doing that.

Since the plan was first put together, a new national Government has been elected and there have
already been a number of new policies and priorities introduced that are having an impact on our
organisation and our local community. The first Mayor of the East Midlands has been elected and
on the horizon is the most significant set of changes proposed for local government in 50 years, with
plans to replace the current two-tier system of County and Borough/District Councils with unitary
local councils. We've also had a number of changes to our own political make-up and hosted an
external Corporate Peer Challenge that has identified a number of improvements to act upon.

This refreshed Community Plan takes stock of these and other changes in our operating
environment and provides an agenda for action. At the time of writing, it takes us to a pointin time
that looks likely to be the end of Newark and Sherwood District Council as it is currently configured.
Of course, we can be confident that the services we currently provide will be continued in part

or in their entirety by our successor Council but this particular Community Plan has an eye to the
legacy we want to leave — high quality services that offer good value for money and a Council that
genuinely lives out its values — Welcoming and responsive; ambitious and forward thinking; caring
and compassionate; commercial and business-like; professional and trustworthy.

In seeking to improve the quality of life for our local community and act in their best interests,

we regularly go beyond the boundaries of our own organisational responsibilities. Flooding,
re-settlement of refugees, health and well-being, business support, community events,
environmental education, even the provision of leisure centres, all of these are non-statutory
services for Newark and Sherwood District Council. It's part of our culture, part of what makes

us an ambitious and responsive Council that we've stretched our remit, and the reality is that
some discretionary services have come to be regarded as mandatory by the people we serve. But
the recommendations from our Peer Challenge have encouraged us to take stock, to revisit our
priorities and to scale back on activity that is not our core business. This doesnt mean that we won't
take aninterest in the full range of factors that impact on peoples’ quality of life. Instead, that we
should place greater emphasis on influencing others rather than expending our own resources on
things that are the proper responsibility of others.

Delivery of the plan will be reviewed every quarter and will require the continued support of our
excellent partners and colleagues.

John Robinson ,' Councillor Paul Peacock

Chief Executive of Newark and Leader of Newark and

Sherwood District Council Sherwnod District Council
Y = ) g Y

A




OUR VISION

The ethos of Newark and Sherwood District Council is *Serving People,
Improving Lives'. We exist for the benefit of others and we are accountable
for making things better. We accept this responsibility and recognise that our
Community Plan can only be achieved by working in partnership with others
and at a variety of different levels — sometimes street based, sometimes
regionally, nationally and internationally.

Our Council wants to make a positive difference - now and for future generations. We're passionate
for everyone within our community to fulfil their potential and our aspiration is to remove the barriers
to opportunity that prevent this from happening.

We are proud to represent Newark and Sherwood and although not everyone will agree with
everything that we do, we are a Council that is true to its values: welcoming, ambitious, responsive,
professional and value for money.

Agenda Page 55

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 5




OURPURPOSE AND OUR VALUES

We want to serve our local community in the best way we possibly can. As public servants we

place a great emphasis on adopting a public sector ethos and seek to embody this in the way

that we interact with you and with each other. The Council's purpose and values make it clear
what we are here to do and how we will go about it.

Caring and compassionate:

Sensitive to the different needs and circumstances of others; seeks to
empower people to fulfil their potential.

Commercial and business-like:

Careful and creative with resources; securing value for money.

Professional and trustworthy:

Open, honest and transparent. Consistently delivering on promises;
providing good quality and demonstrating integrity.

Welcoming and responsive:

Approachable, friendly and inclusive. Open to feedback and challenge and
swift to act.

‘SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES'

Agenda Page 56 }



OURDISTRICT

Welcome to our district, we are proud to be home to 122,900 people with a total of 53,300
households over 651square kilometres. The population of Newark and Sherwood has
increased by 7% between 2011 and 2021, meaning our population has grown more quickly
when compared with the population nationally. The population of residents aged 65 years
and over has increased the most (by 26.7%) with the number of residents in all age groups 50
and over being higher than the national average. In contrast those aged 15 year and under
has increased by 1.3%, with the number of residents in all age groups 14 and below being lower
than the national average.

Despite the growing population, as of 2021 Newark and Sherwood is the 12th least densely
populated local authority area out of 35 in the East Midlands.

13.9% of households in the district are socially rented, which is 3.2% lower than the national
average. However, there are 7,814 socially rented households within Newark and Sherwood,
and of those 5,534 (70.82%) properties are owned by Newark and Sherwood District Council.

STRENGTHS

Newark and Sherwood is a district which has much to celebrate and be proud of.

The district is fortunate enough to have access to green spaces throughout the district, including five
green flag parks as of 2023, as well as a number of green space visitor destinations which are detailed
in the map of the district, which you can find on the next page.

The district also has a number of historic visitor destinations, Sherwood Forest is a historic and ancient
woodland that is associated with the world-renowned legend of Robin Hood and draws many visitors
into the district. Newark and Sherwood is also the home of the National Civil War Centre and Newark
Castle and Gardens.

Looking at the residents who call Newark and Sherwood home, we know that 69.8% of households own
their own home, either outright or with a mortgage, loan or shared ownership and this is 7.5% higher
than the national average. Newark and Sherwood District Council is the largest social landlord in the
district, with 69.24% of all socially rented properties being owned and maintained by the Council.

= |

j f =

CASTLE HOUSE

<s=us 1 A R
EEERET

WARK & -
Q gﬁsawooo E E
DISTRICT COUNCIL

el

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES




CHALLENGES

Whilst there is much to celebrate and be proud of, it is recognised that there are challenges
experienced by residents within the district.

There is educational disparity across the district, which varies by ward. For example, there are
2,059 residents concentrated in one ward who do not hold a formal qualification compared to 258
residents in a different ward. This theme continues when looking at numbers of residents who hold a
level 4 qualification; 3,295 of residents who hold a level 4 qualification are concentrated in one ward
compared to 592 residents in a different ward.

Employment rates are a challenge within the district. In 2021, 58.4% of the working age population of
the district was in employment or actively seeking employment which is 2.5% lower than the national
average. As such, we understand that the percentage of the working age population who were
employed and not actively seeking employment, is lower than the national average.

The health of our residents presents some challenges. 44.7% of residents would describe their health
as very good, which is 3.8% lower than the national average. There are several factors which shape

the conditions in which we are born, grow, live, work and age. These factors result in the differences
between people or groups caused by social, geographical, biological or economical influences which
can both cause advantages and disadvantages to health. The gap in life expectancy across the district
is 91 years for men and 9.4 years for women, this means the residents living in one particular area will
live on average 9 years less than those in another.

o=

Thores by Estate to Gainsborough

to Worksop
& Doncaster

oncaster

North Clifton e

Ry

g

f TS
®Walesby S i
° uth Clifton e
Sherwood Forest SN
A Bl Somon eKirton ® Normanton-on-Trent
r} . [A607 o Lxton Visitor Centre
o cone FeBolghitne LB et W EXIEE
ﬁ;‘;’i-s. U . |*Ollerton T — OSutton—on-Trené
Ash ®Girto
Y Waternjl
EXYHE dwinstowe o Wellow ® Besthorpe
Kings Ruffprd Asa South Scarle
Sherwood Forest Farm Park ® Clipstone o Country Park '@ OMpto eCarlton-on-Tr@nt
L ) eRufford ® Knkesall to Lincoln
. . lle Norwell
Clipstone o Q Lol Kersal .
p: e Parcs ol Erzor‘::/vm;? '. Collfngham
L]
(A¢14] aliioe yi
#Bisthorpe © Caunton ¢ Holme b ;
o Lockwel Hill Activity Centre W
is [A46! : g
Kirklington Newark Castle
A SR White Post Farm fentre - Hockerton 7

Pleasiraparke  ® Fardsfield Ab6178) North Muskhame o Wintho
d h *Jumicar o Hockerton Housing Project i

iwortl Edingl . Kelham pam ) Bwark Showground & Air Museum

. 'ngﬁ)’ ¢ par e Myseum o todl
orwood Par > ;
Halam e o o [PEOR Averham  freiepris amidnzcon
Normanton fTqWorkhouse 9
@il Newarkyon-Trent
Southwell | £ oRacecourse [A46] o Barnby in
= {olleston & ton  the Willows
i Isgerton. & ®Farndon
ighorm ® Morton

O:
oOX'g rr‘\urgarton . e Hleasby xn
Epperstone e [AG12]
A6097
Gonalston e y
Lowdham ringham

y Farm

Colltiry Park®] o Syerston

to NottinghamLeicester

Sconce and
Devon Park
&

Agenda Page 58



HOW THE COUNCIL WORKS

Newark and Sherwood District Council are represented by 39 elected members. The current
political make-up of the Council is shown below. As no single political group has a majority
of seats (20) on the Council, a collective has been formed between the Labour group and the
Independents for Newark and District who between them provide the political leadership of
the Council.

] Labour - 25.64% ] Conservatives - 28.21%

Independents for Newark and District - 15.38%

pietetetet | AreTen

414 Il

N Unaligned Independent - 12.82% ] Green Party - 5.13%
Liberal Democrats - 7.69% Newark and Sherwood District

Y T

M

™M

Councillors are elected by the community to represent local peoples interests and undertake
a wide range of responsibilities. These include identifying priorities, making decisions on how
to spend public money and responding to residents’ concerns. They have regular contact with
the general public through Council meetings, telephone calls or surgeries. Surgeries provide
an opportunity for any ward resident to go and talk to their Councillor face-to-face and these
take place on a regular basis. Councillors appoint a Leader and Deputy Leader to provide
political leadership and direction for the Council as a whole. Each year, Councillors also
appoint a Chairman to undertake civic responsibilities on behalf of the whole Council.

Find out more about our Councillors, including the Councillor representative for each ward

here:
Your Councillors - Newark and Sherwood District Council (newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk)

All Councillors meet together as the “Full Council” and these meetings are open to the public.

Agenda Page 59

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 9




HOW WILL WE FINANCE OUR PLANS?

The Council funds its ambitions and priorities through several different routes, four of which
are outlined below:

Fees and Charges: This is made up of a number of different types of fees and charges,
some of which are mandatory (for example certain types of planning fee or certain types
of licencing fee) and some are discretionary (such as lorry park charging or entry fee to the
National Civil War Centre).

Business Rates — All businesses have a rateable value (the estimated annual rental value

for a property) which is set by the Valuation Office Agency. Central Government annually
sets a multiplier, which generates how much each business must pay in Business Rates by
multiplying the multiplier by the rateable value. The Council then collects those funds and
retains 50%, which is split 40% to this Council, 9% to Nottinghamshire County Council and 1%
to Nottinghamshire Fire Authority.

BREAKDOWN PER £1 OF COUNCIL TAX
Local Town and Parish Council - £0.04
Nottinghamshire Fire Service - £0.04

Newark and Sherwood District Council
-£0.08

Nottinghamshire Police and Crime
Commissioner - £0.12



Council Tax — This is a tax on domestic properties based on the estimated value of a property.
Each property in the district is then levied with a charge based on their size and proximity to
services and is allocated a band on a scale from A-H. Only around 8% of the total Council

Tax collected goes to Newark and Sherwood District Council. The remaining 92% funds a
number of other preceptors and their operations. The chart shows where each £1 of your
Council Tax goes in respect of the 2023/24 financial year. The charges are reviewed annually
by each of the authorities during February and March for the forthcoming year, and hence the
proportions can change depending on what each authority approves.

More information, and updated proportions visit www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/counciltax

Central Government grants — The Council receives a number of grants directly from Central
Government to assist with both general funding (through grants such as the Revenue Support
Grant (RSG) and New Homes Bonus) and specific funding (through grants such as the
Homelessness Grant). Any external funding that is received assists the Council in delivering
its ambitions and priorities and ensures that a smaller burden is placed on the local Council
Taxpayer.

The Council has produced a Medium-Term Financial Plan, which describes how the ambitions
and priorities set out in this document will be financed over the medium term. This document
is refreshed annually to reflect the changing economic environment in respect of various
external factors. From the changes described above in funding arrangements, through

to economic fluctuations in interest rates and inflation, it is important to ensure that our
ambitions and priorities remain sustainable.

The latest approved Medium-Term Financial Plan, together with future amendments and
previous history is available on our website at www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/budgets

An integral part of the Council’s funding plans has been the approval of a Commercialisation
Strategy in January 2022, which provides support for front line services by creating
efficiencies and increasing income. Work continues over the medium term to drive forward the
organisation and ensure that service delivery is efficient, effective and offers good value for
money.

The original Commercialisation Strategy is available on our website at www.newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk/councilstrategies Future updates on the progress of projects underpinned
by this strategy are reported within the Medium-Term Financial Plan each financial year.

In respect of the social housing landlord responsibilities that the Council undertakes, it holds
a ring-fenced account to maintain the income and expenditure. The Council produces a 30-
year Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan, which details the projects and activities
undertaken in support of the Councils Housing stock. This is reviewed annually to account for
changes and assumptions made around internal and external factors that may affect the
financial viability of the plan. This ensures that the priorities and commitments made around
Housing services can be met and informs future investment decisions.

E e

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES L



SERVICES WE PROVIDE FOR OUR COMMUNITIES,

EVERY DAY

“Local government touches the lives of everybody, every day.” — Local Government Association

As alocal authority, we are responsible for providing a range of essential services which
impact on the lives of our residents and businesses across the District every day. Each year
we set a budget which enables the Council to provide these essential services and more. Most
often these services are taking place in the background of our day to day lives, sometimes
without our residents and businesses even being aware of it. This includes services such as
refuse collection, street cleansing, parks and grounds maintenance, customer services,
environmental protection, environmental health inspections, Council housing services,
homelessness and resettlement support, communications, development of planning policy
and the facilitation of property development, as well supporting the local economy to
grow - to name a handful of the services our teams are working hard to deliver for you, our
communities, every day.

1 COMMUNITY
PROTECTION
OFFICER




AMBITION1

Break down barriers to opportunity to enable residents and
businesses to prosper and fulfil their potential

AMBITION 2

Increase the supply of housing, in particular decent homes that
residents can afford to buy and rent, as well as improving housing
standards

AMBITION3

Improve health and wellbeing, with an emphasis on communities with
lower levels of life expectancy

AMBITION 4

Reduce crime and anti-social behaviour, improving community
feelings of safety

AMBITIONS

Promote, maximise and celebrate the diversity of Newark and
Sherwood’s heritage, culture and community spirit

AMBITION 6

Reduce the impact of climate change and protect and enhance green
spaces

AMBITION 7

Be a top performing, modern and accessible Council that get its
everyday services right for the residents and businesses that it serves

OO0

Agenda Page 63
SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 13




Develop and deliver a new Sustainable Economic
Development and Visitor Economy Strategy
2025-2030.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Maximise local economic opportunities in green
and land management sectors.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Redevelop the Clipstone Holdings site.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Corporate Property
Business Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Increase the number and coordination
of apprenticeship and work experience
opportunities across the public sector.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

HR and Training Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Support local communities to develop the
necessary skills in order to benefit from the
pipeline of major infrastructure developments.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Work with partners to identify options and
sources of funding to improve public transport.

Planning Policy and
Infrastructure Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Continue to progress the regeneration scheme
in Ollerton Town Centre.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Agenda Page 64




AMBITION 2

Increase the supply of housing, in particular decent homes that residents

can afford to buy and rent, as well as improving housing standards.

Lead Director/ Portfolio Holder

Officer

Housing Strategy and

Deliver the Housing Strategy, 2023-2028. Regeneration Business Housing
Manager
Develop new homes for open market sale or Chief Executive Officer Strategy, Performance

rent through Arkwood Developments Ltd. and Finance

Implement and embed our new Housing
Management System, as part of a wider
programme of improvements to Housing Repairs
and Empty Homes Services.

Housing Maintenance
and Asset Management Housing
Business Manager

Housing Maintenance

Undertake stock condition surveys for and Asset Management
Council Housing and private rented stock; Business Manager Housi
use the findings to develop investment and ousing
improvement plans. Public Protection Business

Manager

Deliver phase 6 of the Council house building Director of Housin
programme, which will provide circa 50 new Health and WeIIbe?r'1 Housing
Council homes. 9

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES



Lead Director/
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Deliver phase 1of the estate regeneration

Housing Strategy and

scheme at Yorke Drive. Efc?:é\ge;?tlon Bsless AU
Undertake an options appraisal for 'Housing Egﬁ'&%gg::%%ﬁﬂggs Housin
with Care' in conjunction with partners. Mognager 9
Ensure ongoing compliance with regulatory . .

standards, including the preparation for the DIiEEier € Flaelis, Housing

inspection by the regulator of social housing.

Health and Wellbeing

Explore applying the principles of the Boughton
Community Hub to more areas, to coordinate
services with partners in the community, building
on existing support networks.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Health, Wellbeing &
Leisure

Renew Council homes' heating systems to
improve affordability for tenants and reduce
carbon emissions in line with government
funding opportunities.

Housing Maintenance
and Asset Management
Business Manager

Housing




Explore options to further develop and uplift
play parks in the district enabling free play and
exercise, making sure the offer is as inclusive
and as varied as possible.

Including continuing to support Newark Town
Council in the delivery of improvement plans
at Sherwood Avenue Park, aimed at achieving
green flag status.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate and the
Environment

Complement the implementation of our ‘Health
and Wellbeing Strategy’ with activities to reduce
health inequalities in targeted areas.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Health, Wellbeing and
Leisure

Develop plans to raise the profile of

cycling within the district and seek funding
opportunities for the Council and its partners
to improve cycling, wheeling and walking
infrastructure.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Planning Policy and
Infrastructure Business
Manager

Health, Wellbeing and
Leisure

Sustainable Economic
Development

Implement the 'Playing Pitch Strategy’ and
‘Sport and Recreational Facilities Strategy’,
including the provision of 5 new 5G sports
pitches.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Health, Wellbeing and
Leisure

Investigate external investment opportunities
with the aim of improving health and wellbeing
facilities across the district.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Health, Wellbeing and
Leisure

Continue to progress the Clipstone regeneration
scheme.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Develop action plans to implement the Open
Space Strategy and Playing Pitch Strategy
audits, focusing on localities with significant
shortfalls.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Health, Wellbeing &
Leisure

Ve | o -7
U \o |

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES

~ a0
A QUC




=

Reduce opportunities for crime and anti-social
behaviour, by reviewing infrastructure and
encouraging behavioural change across the
district with the aim of improving feelings of
safety.

Public Protection Business
Manager

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Public Protection and
Community Relations

Design and implement an annual targeted
programme of nights of action and focus weeks.

Public Protection Business
Manager

Public Protection and
Community Relations

Continue to work with partners to support
businesses, providing education and intervening
where necessary in order to prevent anti-social
behaviour.

Public Protection Business
Manager

Public Protection and
Community Relations

Assist in the delivery of ‘Rural Crime and ASB
Prevention’ with additional target hardening at
Sherwood Forest Corner.

Public Protection Business
Manager

Public Protection and
Community Relations

Deliver the new enhanced in-house CCTV
control room.

Public Protection Business
Manager

Public Protection and
Community Relations

Work with statutory authorities to improve flood
mitigation and resilience across the district

Public Protection Business
Manager

Public Protection &
Community Relations

Agenda Page 68




AMBITIONS

Promote, maximise and celebrate the diversity of Newark and

Sherwood’s heritage, culture and community spirit.

Lead Director/
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Deliver the Newark Castle Gatehouse scheme.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Heritage and Culture
Business Manager

Heritage, Culture and the
Arts

Deliver the National Portfolio Organisation
(NPO) activity plan. Championing and
promoting the arts, culture and heritage
through the enjoyment of music and arts from
different cultures.

Heritage and Culture
Business Manager

Heritage, Culture and the
Arts

Lead the delivery of the Newark Cultural Heart
Events programme.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Heritage, Culture and the
Arts

Complete the development of 32 Stodman
Street and explore further opportunities to
revitalise town centres through residential
development.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Corporate Property
Business Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Explore options for implementing a youth
Council and youth awards.

Democratic Services
Business Manager

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Public Protection and
Community Relations

Work with partners to look at opportunities for
music and the arts.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Heritage, Culture and the
Arts

Health, Wellbeing and
Leisure

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES

Agenda Page 69




Lead Director/
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Develop opportunities to maximise the visitor
offer linked to Sherwood Forest.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Heritage, Culture and the
Arts

Install the Kiddey Sculptures.

Heritage and Culture
Business Manager

Heritage, Culture & the
Arts

Deliver physical transformation of Newark
Market and Market Square.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Develop 14 Market Place Newark, as part of the
wider transformation of the Town.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Corporate Property
Business Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Deliver a Parish Council conference.

Democratic Services
Business Manager

Public Protection &
Community Relations

Work alongside Bilsthorpe Parish Council and
other partners, to continue to support the
development of the Bilsthorpe Community Hub.

Housing Strategy and
Regeneration Business
Manager

Public Protection &
Community Relations




Implement weekly food waste collections
with WRAP (Waste and Resources Action
Programme) and Nottinghamshire County
Council.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate and the
Environment

Provide opportunities for residents’ involvement
in parks and green spaces.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate and the
Environment

Deliver the Council's Tree Strategy, enabling
the exploration of options to develop new
community woodland and wildlife spaces and
support the improvement of air quality.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate and the
Environment

Play an active role in biodiversity net gain for the
district, including the potential to own our own
biodiversity offset sites, as well as looking at
how our own developments can contribute.

Planning Development
Business Manager

Corporate Property
Business Manager

Climate and the
Environment

Further develop and deliver a Council-wide
decarbonisation plan for our built assets/deliver
a programme of prioritised decarbonisation
actions, in response to the Carbon Trust report
2025, following engagement with stakeholders.

Director of Communities
and Environment

Climate and the
Environment

Deliver the Brunel Drive Masterplan.

Director of Communities
and Environment

Climate and the
Environment

Implement the ‘Local Area Energy Plan’.

Director of Communities
and Environment

Climate and the
Environment

Work in conjunction with the statutory
authorities to promote good river and waterway
health.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate and the
Environment

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES

Agenda Page 71




Explore coordinating and enhancing open
space, including biodiversity and sports
provision in the south of Newark. Including by
developing plans and costed proposals for the
Middle Beck Green Basin.

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Develop a new Local Plan for Newark &
Sherwood, promoting action to tackle climate
change though sustainable design policies,
protecting existing open space and securing
new open space as part of development and
securing biodiversity improvements though
appropriate policies and projects.

Planning Policy and
Infrastructure Business
Manager

Sustainable Economic
Development

Explore opportunities for commercial glass
collection, with an ambition to run the service as
close to breakeven as possible.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate & the Environment

Improve recycling levels by promoting positive
behavioural changes, through community
events, targeted communication and
enforcement.

Environmental Services
Business Manager

Climate & the Environment

Take the lead to develop a more joined-up
approach to the management of the public
realm, focusing on key areas in town centres and
estates where appropriate.

Environmental Services
Business Manager Housing
Services Business Manager

Economic Growth and
Visitor Economy Business
Manager

Climate & the Environment

Housing Sustainable
Economic Development

Agenda Page 72




AMBITION 7

Be a top performing, modern and accessible Council, that get its

everyday services right for the residents and businesses that it serves.

Lead Director/
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Seek to secure the very best option for Newark
and Sherwood arising from the reorganisation
of local government.

Chief Executive

Strategy Performance and
Finance

Develop and implement an action plan arising
from the ‘Corporate Peer Challenge.

Transformation and
Service Improvement
Manager

Strategy Performance and
Finance

Through the Commercialisation Strategy and
action plan, continue to seek out and generate
new sources of income, whilst retaining our
public service ethos.

Financial Services Business
Manager

Strategy Performance and
Finance

Develop a package of measures to recruit
and retain staff, including a review of the
pay grading structure and the Council's job
evaluation scheme.

HR and Training Business
Manager

Strategy Performance and
Finance

Finalise and implement the Communications
and Marketing Strategies.

Communications and
Marketing Manager

Strategy Performance and
Finance

Expand and embed a broader range of
customer satisfaction measures to drive
performance improvement.

Customer Services
Business Manager

Transformation and
Service Improvement
Manager

Strategy Performance and
Finance

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVINGLIVES

Agenda Page 73




OUR PERFORMANCE

Why does the Council measure performance?

Monitoring performance across the Council is key to understanding if we are delivering on the
promises we have made and that we're meeting the needs of our residents.

Performance management is used as a tool to drive improvement rather than simply used

as a counting device. We acknowledge the value of understanding our performance, as this
knowledge allows us to embed and disseminate good practice and quality service delivery as
well as identifying and tackling areas for improvement.

How does the Council measure performance?

The Councils performance is measured in a variety of ways, to ensure that we understand

if we're putting the right resource into delivering against the right priorities. This is done by
analysing data and progress against key activities, as well as building a picture of the context
of performance using district statistics, customer feedback and workforce information.

Agenda Page /4




Some of the key methods we use to measure our performance are described below:

What we do:

Listening to

our residents

Key
performance
indicators

(KPI's)

Community
Plan
performance
reporting

Finance
performance
reporting

Governance

delivery against
the activities
outlined in the
plan.

We do this These are set Quarterly reports | Quarterly At least six of
by reviewing once every are presented to | reports are the Policy and
customer four years in committee and presented to Performance
comments, line with the published online. | committee Improvement
feedback and Community and published | Committee (PPIC)
How often complaints. plan and online. are held each year.
o We also reviewed when
wedoit: undertake the Community
consultation Planis Quarterly meetings
and surveys. refreshed of Performance
annually. Cabinet held each
year.
To capture KPI's are We report on We report The PPIC provide a
district wide developed performance on financial ‘scrutiny’ function
views of to enable against the performance and has an integral
residents, using | performance to | Community Plan | to consider role in improving the
this feedback be measured as this provides | the forecast/ work of the Council
to allow us to and tracked. visibility of actual outturn | through outcome
drive service KPl’s also performance position for focused challenge
improvement enable the against key each financial | and development
and deliver Council’s activities. This year for the of strategies and
services that performance enables us to Council’s policies.
meet the needs | to be disseminate General Fund
Why we do of residents. benchmarked good practice and Housing
it against and quality Revenue Performance
national service delivery | Account Cabinet meetings
indicators. as well as revenue are held in order
identifying and and capital for Cabinet to
tac!<|ing areas budgets. review the Council’s
for improvement. performance and
identify areas of
high performance
and areas where
improvement is
required.
Surveys such These are used | This report Resource is key | The role of PPIC is
as the Resident | to measure the | examines how to delivering on | a ‘critical friend’
Survey gather success of the | the Council has our Community | to Cabinet, both
. the views Community been performing | Plan committees review
How it of residents Plans aims. against the actions and the Councils
relates which then Community Plan. | commitments. | performance
to the informs the It examines data against the
. development of to look at the Community Plan.
Community | ¢ Community performance of
Plan: Plan. key services and

SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES




HAVE YOUR SAY

RESIDENT PANEL

The Resident Panel is a group of people from across the district who would like to share
their views on the area they live in and help shape the future of Newark and Sherwood.
The panel has been created because we want to understand the views and experiences
of residents in the district and use this understanding to ensure that our Council
services are the best they can be.

Any resident of the district, over the age of 18, can join the panel to have their say on
the Council’s services, plans, proposals and development of their local area.

TENANT ENGAGEMENT
COMMUNITY LINK GROUPS

Following feedback from our tenants we have launched Community Link Groups to
give tenants, leaseholders and residents the opportunity to further shape their local
community.

Taking place at locations across the district, the Groups provide an essential forum for
tenants and leaseholders to raise issues and ideas that are important to them and are
specific to their local community with officers and councillors from the District Council
and partner organisations such as Nottinghamshire Police.

To find out when the next Community Link Group is taking place, please visit our
website: www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/communitylinkgroups/

Agenda Page 76




CONSULTATIONS

We also regularly consult on Council services, plans and decisions. Visit our
consultations page to have your say: www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/consultation.

Agenda Page 77
SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES 27



SERVING PEOPLE, IMPROVING LIVES NEWARK &

SHERWOQOD

—awmes DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONTACT US...

Our residents, tenants and businesses can contact us in a number of ways.

R 01636 650000
N customerservices@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

Q Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, Nottinghamshire NG24 1BY

@ www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

n /NSDCouncil @NSDCouncil @NSDCouncil m ©@Newark and Sherwood District Council




Agenda Iltem 15

NEWARK &
SHERWOQOD

awas DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to:

Annual Full Council Meeting - 20 May 2025

Relevant Committee Chair: Councillor Rhona Holloway, Audit & Governance Committee

Director Lead:

Lead Officer:

Report Title

Purpose of Report

Recommendations

Sue Bearman, Assistant Director - Legal & Democratic Services
and Monitoring Officer

Nigel Hill, Business Manager - Elections and Democratic Services
and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Ext. 5243

Report Summary

Review of the Council’s Constitution

To consider proposals for amendments to the Council’s
Constitution following consideration by the Audit & Governance
Committee.

That Full Council: -

a) adopts the Constitutional amendments set out in Appendices
A, B, C, D, H, I and J and paragraph 2.8 of the report;

b) subject to the approval of a) above, notes the adoption of
templates for motions and amendments as illustrated in
Appendices E and F to the report;

c) adopts the terms of reference for a new Licensing Committee
as set out in Appendix G of the report, to be implemented with
effect from 15 July 2025;

d) confirms for the Licensing Committee Terms of Reference in
the Constitution to be updated accordingly once the
Committee has approved any revisions to its Scheme of
Delegation;

e) approves a reduction in membership of the Audit &
Governance Committee to 9 Members with effect from 15
July 2025 for a trial period, and adding two further meetings
of the Committee to the Schedule of Meetings;

f) approves the addition of ‘Principal Legal Officer’ to the
Officers listed in the Council’s Constitution as having authority
to seal legal documents on behalf of the Council;

g) notes that a further report will be brought to the Full Council
meeting on 15 July 2025 to consider a revised allocation of
seats on committees, if the changes recommended at c) and
e) above are approved; and

Agenda Page 79



h) approves the convening of the Independent Remuneration
Panel to undertake a desktop review of the affected
Members’ Special Responsibility Allowances, if the proposed
changes to Committees are agreed.

Reason for

Recommendation

1.0

11

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

To ensure the Constitution is up to date and fit for purpose.

Background

The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for overview of the Constitution
and the Work Programme includes an annual review. The Committee held three
informal working parties between October 2024 and March 2025 to consider potential
changes to the Constitution and following their meeting held on 7 May 2025 resolved
to recommend several amendments to Full Council for approval.

In addition, at its meeting of 18 February 2025, the Cabinet considered the findings of
the Local Government Association Peer Challenge and agreed the formation of a
working group tasked with an action plan to address those findings. At its first meeting
on 25 February 2025, the group agreed for the Audit & Governance Committee to
action the following recommendation: ‘review Audit, Governance, Overview &
Scrutiny functions of the Council to maximise councillor engagement and council
productivity’. This recommendation has been considered by the Audit & Governance
Committee as part of its review of the Constitution.

At its meeting of 7 May 2025, the Audit & Governance Committee also considered
updates, proposed by the Business Manager - Financial Services, to the Financial
Regulations and the Contract Procedure Rules, both of which are Constitutional
documents. The Financial Procedure Rules (FPR’s) set out the principles, roles and
processes involved in Finance at the Council. The Contract Procedure Rules (CPR’s) set
out the principles, roles and processes involved in procurement at the Council.

Proposal/Options Considered

Financial Procedure Rules

The FPRs have been reviewed in conjunction with the Council’s Section 151 Officer to
update where appropriate and clarify relevant sections. There have been no material
changes to the FPR’s as a result of this review. Appendix A to the report shows the
proposed changes to the FPR’s.

Contract Procedure Rules

The main changes within the CPR’s relate to at which points in the procurement
process Welland Procurement (the Council’s contracted procurement service) should
be engaged. It is proposed that on each occasion a procurement is likely to be above
£75,000 Welland must be engaged. There is further clarification regarding the
approval to procure (which is after the budget has been secured) and the approval to

Agenda Page 80



2.3

24

2.5

2.6

award (post the signature of the contract). It also details those officers (and when it is
necessary for those officers) who can sign the contract, bearing in mind that £75,000
is still the limit for having the contract sealed. The CPR’s have also been updated to
reflect the requirements of the Procurement Act 2023. Appendix B to the report
shows the proposed changes to the CPR’s.

Petitions

The Council’s Petition Scheme currently states that it welcomes e-petitions which are
created through our website. While it does not prohibit e-petitions submitted through
alternative platforms, the Scheme does not explicitly say they are accepted. It is
proposed that the Scheme should be amended to allow discretion to be exercised on
the acceptance of e-petitions from other platforms (as we do now in practice). One
minor amendment is also proposed in relation to petitions with more than 1,000
signatures that are actioned prior to the next meeting of Full Council at which they
could be debated. The Petition Scheme, with proposed tracked changes, is Appendix
C to this report (amendments at paragraphs 1.5 and 1.7).

The Full Council Procedure Rules contain provisions about the presentation of
petitions. It is proposed to amend the Procedure Rules to allow for all petitions that
fall under the remit of the Petition Scheme to be presented to Full Council by the
relevant Member. Currently, the rules say that if a petition is to be debated it will not
first be presented by the relevant Member. Two further additions are proposed;
firstly, to clarify that the agreed course of action will normally be to refer the matter
to another Council body or to note the petition; and secondly for the outcome of any
consideration of petitions by the Cabinet, Portfolio Holders or Officers, to be reported
back to Full Council for completeness. The relevant extract of the Full Council
Procedure Rules, with proposed tracked changes, is attached as Appendix D to this
report (paragraph 3.1).

Motions

It is proposed to refine the Constitution’s provisions regarding motions and introduce
the use of a template. The proposed tracked changes to the Full Council Procedure
Rules are shown in Appendix D to the report (paragraph 3.4). This includes a new
3.4.1(c) which seeks to provide clarity for Members on valid motions. The template
which is proposed for use going forward is attached as Appendix E to the report. There
is also a provision recommending that early advice is sought prior to the deadline for
submission of motions.

It is further proposed to introduce a template for amendments to motions, and a
provision for amendments to be submitted to Democratic Services ahead of meetings
where possible (Appendix D paragraph 4.6.2). The template is attached as Appendix
F to the report.

Agenda Page 81



2.7

2.8

2.9

Licensing and General Purposes Committees

The Audit & Governance Committee undertook a review of the terms of reference for
these two Committees. Changes were proposed both for clarification and to remove
functions that are no longer relevant. Members also discussed whether the two
Committees could be combined into one. A number of neighbouring authorities,
including Mansfield District Council, Ashfield District Council and Bassetlaw District
Council have established a single committee for regulatory licensing functions. There
is no statutory requirement to have two separate committees. The historical reason
for having two, is that the committees were set up under different legislation with
slightly different requirements. It was agreed to consult with the Licensing and
General Purposes Committees on combining the committees. Such a report was taken
to this meeting on 20 March 2025 and the Committees supported the proposal to
combine. If Full Council approves the proposal a revised political composition report
will be presented to the next meeting to be held on 15 July 2025 to adjust allocation
of seats to committees, with the changes coming into effect immediately after that.

If a single committee is to focus solely on regulatory licensing functions, some of the
General Purposes Committee’s functions will need to be moved elsewhere. It is
considered that the Audit & Governance Committee would be the most suitable body
to consider these electoral matters. The amount of committee business relating to
these functions is minimal. In 2023-24 there were no reports, and in 2024-25 there
was one report relating to a review of polling districts and polling places, and two
reports relating to a Community Governance Review. The proposed terms of reference
for the single Licensing Committee is attached as Appendix G to the report (Appendix
G(i) shows tracked changes for comparison). The functions that would be moved to
Audit & Governance Committee are highlighted in Appendix G(i), these are: -

e Functions relating to parishes, elections and electoral registration.

e  Functions relating to Polling Station reviews.

e Functions relating to Community Governance Reviews.

e Making recommendations to Council relating to the name and status of areas and
individuals.

e Making recommendations to Council on the promotion or approval of local bill.

e  Making recommendations to the Council as to recommendations to the Secretary
of State on district boundaries, ward boundaries, electoral divisions, wards or
polling districts.

The Council’s Licensing Team is in the process of reviewing and updating the Scheme
of Delegation for Licensing functions which sets out which matters are reserved to
Committee, which are delegated to the Sub-Committee, and which are delegated to
Officers. The Scheme is set out in the Terms of Reference for the Committee. It is
proposed that Full Council confirms for the Terms of Reference in the Constitution to
be updated accordingly once the Committee has approved any revisions to the
Scheme.

Agenda Page 82



2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Audit & Governance Committee
Consideration was given to the current arrangements for the Audit & Governance
Committee including the size of the Committee and whether the functions should be

divided between two separate committees; one for audit and one for governance.

For comparison, arrangements at other Nottinghamshire authorities are as follows: -

Authority Combined or Membership
Separate

Nottinghamshire | Combined 11
Nottingham City | Separate 9 - Audit (2 independent)
Council 8 — Governance (1 independent)
Gedling Borough | Separate 7 — Audit
Council 2 from each group — Standards (2 co-optees)
Bassetlaw Combined 9
Rushcliffe Combined 9 (1 independent)
Broxtowe Combined 13
Ashfield Separate 7 — Audit

7 - Standards
Mansfield Combined 9

There were mixed views expressed by Members of the Audit & Governance
Committee regarding separating the functions into two separate committees. Also,
the timescale for the Government review of the Standards regime is unknown, and it
may be that new requirements will come into effect regarding standards committees
that require changes to the Council’s arrangements. Considering the mixed views and
potential upcoming changes, it is proposed to make some minor changes for a trial
period of this municipal year.

It is proposed to reduce the membership of Audit & Governance Committee to 9. It is
further proposed that for a trial period to add at least 2 extra Committee meetings, to
be dedicated to Governance and Standards matters as far as possible, with other
meetings being dedicated to Audit as far as possible. If Full Council approves the
proposal a revised political composition report will be presented to the next meeting
on 15 July to adjust allocation of seats and add to the Schedule of Meetings, with the
changes coming into effect immediately after that.

Independent Remuneration Panel
If the changes in paragraphs 2.7 and 2.8 are approved by Full Council, the Independent

Remuneration Panel will need to be convened to undertake a desktop review of the
affected Members’ Special Responsibility Allowances.

Agenda Page 83



2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

3.0

Planning Policy Board

The Audit & Governance Committee endorsed proposals from Planning Officers to
increase the membership of the Planning Policy Board to 9, comprising of the Portfolio
Holder for Sustainable Economic Development, 4 Members nominated by the Policy
and Performance Improvement Committee (any Member of Council), and 4 Members
of the Planning Committee including the Chair and Vice-Chair. The rationale for this is
toincrease the geographical coverage and political representation of the membership.
The proposed amendments to the Planning Policy Board are set out in Appendix H.

Acquisitions and Disposals Policy

Officers have refreshed and reviewed this Policy, which is included in the Financial
Governance section of the Constitution. The proposed revised Policy is attached as
Appendix | to the report.

The main changes are summarised below:

e Inclusion of all legislative requirements for disposals by local authorities for ease
of reference and to reduce the risk of omission.

e Clarification on delegations.

e Incorporation of reference to the distinction between General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account assets.

e Addition of reference to ‘appropriation’—the transfer of land between the General
Fund Budget to the Housing Revenue Account Budget.

As this Policy relates to Cabinet and Portfolio Holder decision-making, Officers have
consulted with the Leader before bringing this report to Full Council.

Other

Some minor amendments are required to the Terms of Reference for Planning
Committee to ensure it accurately reflects the contents of the Officer Scheme of
Delegation and the Protocol for Planning Committee. The proposed amendments are
set out in Appendix J to the report.

Finally, the Officer Scheme of Delegation in the Constitution delegates authority to
the Chief Executive, Directors (including the Assistant Director) and Deputy
Monitoring Officer, to seal legal documents on behalf of the Council. Due to hybrid
working arrangements this is not always practical, and it is proposed to extend this
provision to include Principal Legal Officers.

Implications
In writing this report and in putting forward recommendations, officers have

considered the following implications: Data Protection; Digital & Cyber Security;
Equality & Diversity; Financial; Human Resources; Human Rights; Legal; Safeguarding
& Sustainability and where appropriate they have made reference to these
implications and added suitable expert comment where appropriate.

Agenda Page 84



Financial Implications (FIN25-26/7042)

3.1 It is proposed that remuneration for the Chair and the two members of the panel to
be consistent with previous payments. This was previously £1,000 for the Chair and
£600 for the other two members in 2023 when the Panel convened to review new
portfolios. The scope of this review will be more limited; therefore it is anticipated
that costs will be £500 for the Chair and £300 for the other two members. This can be
funded from the annual Change Management budget.

Legal Implications (LEG2425/5629)

3.2 Adoption and alteration of the Constitution is a function reserved to Full Council;
therefore, Full Council is the appropriate body to consider the content of this report.

Background Papers and Published Documents

Except for previously published documents, which will be available elsewhere, the documents
listed here will be available for inspection in accordance with Section 100D of the Local
Government Act 1972.

7 May 2025 Audit & Governance Committee —

e |tem 5— Review of Contract Procedure Rules

e |tem 6 — Review of Financial Procedure Rules

e |tem 10 — Review of the Council’s Constitution
https://democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=298&MId=1179

Agenda Page 85


https://democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=298&MId=1179

Ageng llem 15a

NEWARK &
SHERWQOOD

DISTRICT COUNCIL

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Revised: May 2025

Next revision due: March 2028

Agenda Page 86



APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

INDEX

GENERAL

1.1 Notice to All Employees

INTRODUCTION

21 Complementary Factors

2.2 Financial Implications of Committee Reports
23 Availability

24  Compliance

DEFINITIONS

3.1 Terms

LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Local Government Act 1972 Section 15 - Legal Responsibilities of
Officers

LG Act 1972 Section 117(1) & (2) -Disclosure by Officers of Pecuniary
Interest

LG Act 1972 Section 151 - Officer Responsible for Financial
Administration

LG Act 1988 Section 114 - Reporting under Part VIlI: Responsibility of
the S151 Officer

RESPONSIBILITIES/REGULATORY ROLES

51
5.2
53
5.4
5.5
5.6

Council

Cabinet

Audit and Governance Committee
Section 151 Officer

Internal Audit

Business Managers

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9
6.10

Financial Consultation
Financial Planning and Control
Variation of Estimates
Treasury Management

Bank Accounts and Cheques.
Procurement Cards

Controlled Stationery
Retention of Financial Records
Authorised Signatory List
Taxation

Agenda Page 87



APPENDIX A

7. EXPENDITURE RELATED REGULATIONS
7.1 Employers Records and Payments of Wages and Salaries
7.2  Travelling and Subsistence Claims
73 Members Allowances
7.4 Orders for Goods, Works and Services
7.5  Goods Received
7.6 Invoices
7.7 Petty Cash
7.8 Right to Set Off
7.9 Contracts
8. INCOME RELATED REGULATIONS
8.1 Responsibilities
8.2 General
83 Cash Receipting
8.4 Debtor Accounts — Recovery, Amendment and Write-off
8.5  Gifts and Hospitality
9. PROTECTION OF ASSETS
9.1 Security
9.2 Inventories
9.3 Stores
9.4 Insurance.
9.5 Asset Management.
9.6 Management of Information
9.7 Motor Vehicles
9.8 Reporting of Irregularities
9.9 Whistleblowing Policy
9.10 Information Systems
10. EXTERNAL ARRANGEMENTS
10.1 Partnerships and Shared Services and Collaboration Arrangements
10.2 External Funding
10.3 Work for Third Parties
11.0 CORPORATE DIRECTOR/OFFICER DELEGATIONS
12.0 CONTRACT AND WINDFALL SAVINGS
13.0 FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES

Agenda Page 88



11

2.1

2.11

APPENDIX A

GENERAL

Notice to All Employees

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

These Financial Regulations provide the framework of controls and standards
necessary to achieve the proper administration of the Council's financial affairs.
Financial Regulations are designed to safeguard the interests of the Council, its
Members and its employees. They apply to all elected members (Members),
employees, and temporary and agency staff and to all transactions of the Council.

All Members and officers have a responsibility for taking reasonable action to
provide for the security of the assets under their control and for ensuring that the
use of these resources is legal, properly authorised, provides value for money and
achieves best value.

The Council expects the highest standards of financial probity from its officers
and Members. The Section 151 Officer may report any breach of Financial
Regulations to Cabinet or if sufficiently serious, direct to full Council. Any failure
to comply with these Regulations may result in action being taken in
accordance with the Council’s disciplinary procedures or in the case of
Members referred to the Audit and Governance Committee. If you have any
doubt on their meaning or interpretation, it is advised that you contact the
Section 151 Officer.

It is the responsibility of officers to ensure that they have the necessary
knowledge of the Council’s Financial Regulations to enable their duties to be
undertaken to meet the requirements of these regulations.

These Financial Regulations supersede all previous versions.
If after reading these regulations you require further guidance or clarification, or

if you are not sure how best to comply with the regulations then please contact
your Line Manager, Financial Services or the Head of Internal Audit.

INTRODUCTION

Complementary Factors

These Financial Regulations form part of the Constitution and are complementary to:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Any current or future legislation, and shall not be considered to over-ride any such
legislation affecting the functions of the Council;

The Council’s Standing Orders;

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules;

Any EU Public Procurement Directives;

The Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers;

The Information Technology Regulations (for all matters relating to Information

Agenda Page 89



2.1.2.

2.2

221

2.2.2

2.2.3

2.3

2.3.1

24

24.1

3.1

APPENDIX A

Technology).
(vii) The Council’s Anti-Fraud Strategy.
(viii) The Council’s Guidance for Dealing with Irregularities.
(ix)  The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy.
(x)  Appropriate Guidance Notes issued by the Section 151 Officer

The above documents shall be considered to have the force of financial regulations for
all their related matters. This shall also include any related subsidiary regulations.

Financial Implications of Proposals and Reports to Members

No item having financial consequences shall be placed on a Council, Cabinet or
Committee agenda without obtaining the financial implications and reference number
from the Section 151 Officer. Any report containing new proposals shall include an
independent financial assessment by the Section 151 Officer. This extends to all reports
tabled at the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT).

In general, reports requiring comments of the Section 151 Officer shall be presented to
the Financial Services Business Unit a minimum of 3 working days prior to the
publication of the agenda for the agenda meeting for the relevant Council, Cabinet or
Committee meeting.

Where there are significant financial implications it is a requirement that the Financial
Services Business Unit will be involved in the development of the proposals.

Availability

A copy of these Financial Regulations shall be made available to Members, Officers and
members of the public at all reasonable times.

Compliance

SLT and Business Managers shall be responsible for ensuring that these Financial
Regulations are complied with and are available to all employees within their areas of
responsibility.

DEFINITIONS
Terms

(i) The term Council shall be deemed to include reference to Cabinet, Portfolio
Holders or Officers acting in accordance with delegated authority on behalf of the
Council.

(i)  Where legislation and regulations are referred to in these Financial Regulations,
they are deemed to refer to the latest statutory and regulatory requirements.

(iii) The term Chief Executive relates to the Head of Paid Service for the Council.

(iv) The term Section 151 Officer relates to the Director — Resources/Deputy Chief
Executive (the Responsible Financial Officer). This is a statutory officer appointed
by Full Council to have responsibility for the financial affairs of the Council as
required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Agenda Page 90



4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.2

4.2.1

APPENDIX A

(v) The term Deputy Section 151 Officer relates to the officer nominated by the
Section 151 Officer to undertake the Section 151 responsibilities in the absence
of the Section 151 Officer.

(vi) The term Director relates to Corporate Directors, who form the Strategic
Leadership Team (SLT).

(vii) The term Monitoring Officer relates to the officer appointed by the Council as
required by the Local Government Housing Act 1989.

(viii) The term Duly Authorised Officer relates to an officer with delegated authority
from the relevant Business Manager.

(ix)  The term Head of Internal Audit relates to the officer appointed by the contractor
in consultation with the Section 151 Officer.

LEGAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Local Government Act 1972 Section 115 - Legal Responsibilities of Officers

Officers employed by the Council have a legal responsibility under Section 115 of the
Local Government Act, which states that:

“Every Officer employed by a Local Authority, whether under this Act or any other
enactment, shall at all times during the continuance of his office, or within three months
after ceasing to hold it, and in such manner as the Local Authority directs, make out and
deliver to the Authority, or in accordance with their directions, a true account in writing
of all money and property committed to his charge, and of his receipts and payments,
with vouchers and other documents and records supporting the entries therein, and a
list of persons from whom or to whom money is due in connection with his office,
showing the amount due from or to each”.

Every such officer shall pay all money due from him/her to an officer designated by the
Section 151 Officer or in accordance with their directions.

Local Government Act 1972 Section 117(1) & (2) - Disclosure by Officers of Pecuniary
Interest in Contracts.

Staff involved in contract and purchasing procedures shall be aware of the provisions of
section 117(1) of the Local Government Act 1972 concerning the disclosure by officers
of pecuniary interests in contracts. This provides that “if it comes to the knowledge of
an officer employed whether under this Act or any other enactment by a Local Authority
that a contract in which he/she has a pecuniary interest, whether direct or indirect, (not
being a contract to which he/she is a party), has been or is proposed to be entered into
by the Authority, he/she shall, as soon as practicable, give notice in writing to the
Authority of the fact that he/she is interested therein”. An indirect pecuniary interest
for these purposes is as follows:

(@)  If the officer or any nominee of the officer is a member of a company or other
body with which the contract was or is proposed to be made.

(b) If the officer is a partner or is in the employment of a person with whom the
contract is, or is proposed to be made.

Agenda Page 91



4.2.2

4.2.3

424

4.3

43.1

4.3.2

4.4

44.1

4.4.2

4.4.3

APPENDIX A

(c)  Inthe case of married persons or partners, the interests of one partner, if known
to the other, is deemed to be the interest of the other spouse.

Appropriate officers will be required to complete a declaration form covering any
related third party transactions on an annual basis.

The clause above shall also refer to contracts relating to either of the Council’s wholly
owned companies ActivedToday Ltd and Arkwood Developments Ltd.

Section 117(2) states that “an officer of a Local Authority shall not under colour of his
office or employment, accept any fee or reward whatsoever, other than his proper
remuneration”.

Any Officer who has any direct or indirect pecuniary interest in any contract, or is
offered any fee or reward, whether or not it is accepted, shall notify the Chief Executive,
who shall enter such details into a central register maintained for such purposes. Any
person who fails to comply with Section 117(1) and (2) may render themselves liable to
afine.

Section 117(4) states that “References to a local authority shall include references to a
joint committee appointed under part VI of the Act or any other enactment”.

Local Government Act 1972 Section 151 - Officer Responsible for Financial
Administration.

Under Section 151 “every Local Authority shall make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs, and shall secure that one of their officers (who
in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (Section 6 paragraph
3) must be a member of one or more of the Accountancy Bodies specified in the Act),
has responsibility for the administration of those affairs”.

The Council has appointed the Director — Resources/Deputy Chief Executive as the
Section 151 Officer (the Responsible Finance Officer). Under the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2006, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for determining the accounting
systems and the form of accounts and supporting records. This officer shall also ensure
that all such determinations are observed, and that the accounts and supporting records
are kept up to date.

Local Government Finance Act 1988 Section 114 - Reporting under Part VIII:
Responsibility of the Section 151 Officer.

A requirement is placed upon the Section 151 Officer by Section 114(1) of the Local
Government Act 1988 to make a report to the Council in certain circumstances where
there is the possibility of an illegal payment, or of spending exceeding resources
available.

Making a report falls under two Sections. Section 114(2) states that the Section 151
Officer is required to decide that an act or omission is or could be unlawful.

Under Section 114(2) the duty to send the report starts a “21 day clock” whereby the
Council is required to hold a meeting within this time and until this is done, must

Agenda Page 92



44.4

4.4.5

5.

Council

511

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.14

5.15

5.2

521

5.2.2

523

524

5.25

53

531

5.3.2

APPENDIX A
refrain from the course of action reported.
Section 114(3) requires the Section 151 Officer to issue a report in cases of an
unbalanced budget - real or potential. This report is also subject to the procedure

described in 4.4.3 above.

In the absence of the Section 151 Officer the duties referred to at 4.4.1 to 4.4.4 shall
be performed by the officer acting as the Deputy Section 151 Officer.

RESPONSIBILITIES/REGULATORY ROLES

Council is responsible for setting the Council’s annual General Fund Budget and Council
Tax.

Council is responsible for the setting of the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget and the annual rent.

Council is responsible for approving the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and the 30
year HRA Business Plan.

Council is responsible for approving the Treasury Strategy, Investment Strategy and
Capital Strategy.

Council is responsible for setting the Capital budgets for both the General Fund and the
HRA.

Cabinet

Cabinet are responsible for monitoring the in-year forecast outturn against the budget as
part of the performance framework.

To recommend to Council the annual General Fund and HRA budgets for consideration
and approval.

To recommend to Council the Medium Term Financial Plan for consideration and
approval.

To recommend to Council the HRA 30 year Business Plan for consideration and approval.

To recommend to Council the Capital Programme for both the General Fund and the HRA.

Audit and Governance Committee

The Audit and Governance Committee are responsible for the approval of the Annual
Statement of Accounts.

To recommend to Council the Treasury Strategy, Investment Strategy and Capital

Agenda Page 93



54

APPENDIX A

Strategy.

Section 151 Officer

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Under Section 151 “every Local Authority shall make arrangements for the proper
administration of their financial affairs, and shall secure that one of their officers
(who in accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (Section 6
paragraph 3) must be a member of one or more of the Accountancy Bodies
specified in the Act), has responsibility for the administration of those affairs”.

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 (as amended), the Section 151
Officer is responsible (under the control and general direction of Cabinet and in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 (as amended)) for the
accounts and finances of the Council, including determining the accounting
systems and the form of accounts and supporting records. This officer shall also
ensure that all such determinations are observed, and that the accounts and
supporting records are kept up to date.

The Section 151 Officer shall have regard to any statutory guidance issued by the
appropriate Secretary of State and professional guidance issued by the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

The Section 151 Officer shall advise the Council on all financial matters.

The Section 151 Officer shall present annually to the Council detailed estimates
of the Council's income and expenditure for the following financial year and shall
provide a risk assessment of the Council’s proposed budget.

The Section 151 Officer shall also present to the Audit and Governance
Committee, after the close of each financial year, a Statement of Accounts in
accordance with the latest Accounts and Audit Regulations. The Accounts of the
Council shall be submitted to the Council's External Auditor.

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006 (as amended), the Council is
responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit
covering financial and all other operations of the Council and also require any
Officer or Member of the Council to make available such documents as appear
necessary for the purpose of the audit together with such information and
explanation considered necessary for that purpose. This function is discharged
through the Section 151 Officer together with The Senior Leadership Team.

The Section 151 Officer shall periodically present to Cabinet and the Audit and
Governance Committee, budgetary control statements showing performance
against the approved estimates of revenue expenditure and income. The
appropriate Business Manager will report on any major variances from planned
budget performance.

Notwithstanding the information available on the on-line Financial Information
System, the Section 151 Officer shall supply to Business Managers, by
arrangement, such cost and other financial statements as may reasonably be
required in the interests of financial control and general management. The

Agenda Page 94



APPENDIX A

production of additional financial and statistical information shall also be
maintained, as considered necessary by the Section 151 Officer, to provide
efficient overall management control.

(x) The Section 151 Officer, in consultation with SLT, shall review the Financial
Regulations periodically and shall have regard to their relevance and practical
application in changing circumstances. A motion to add to, vary or revoke these
Financial Regulations shall, unless the addition, variation or revocation has
previously been considered by Cabinet, stand adjourned to the next meeting of
the Council when the motion shall proceed whether or not it has been
considered.

5.5 Internal Audit

55.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

554

The Council will comply with the current Accounts and Audit Regulations, the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local
Government and shall maintain an adequate and effective system of Internal Audit of the
accounts and other operations of the Council.

The Head of Internal Audit shall be responsible for the operation of the internal audit
function, agreed with the Section 151 Officer covering financial and all other operations
of the Council and value for money studies as required, considering the efficient,
effective and economic use of resources. The Head of Internal Audit shall periodically
report to SLT and the Section 151 Officer and will provide reports to the Audit and
Governance Committee on progress made concerning on-going investigations and
reviews and audits completed.

The Section 151 Officer or his authorised representative shall have authority for the
purpose of the Internal Audit function to:

(i) Enter any Council premises or land at all reasonable times.

(i) Have access to all records, documents, files (including information held
electronically) and correspondence relating to any financial and other business of
the Council which the Section 151 Officer considers necessary to fulfil his duties
under S151 of the Local Government Finance Act 1972. No record shall be
removed by audit staff without notification to the appropriate Business Manager,
or relevant senior officer. This authority also shall apply to all records, documents
and files maintained by any subsidiary of the Council, and the Mansfield & District
Crematorium.

(iii) Require and receive such explanations as are necessary concerning any matter
under examination, and

(iv) Require any employee of the Council to produce cash, stores or any other Council
property under his control.

Each Director or Business Manager is responsible for ensuring that action is implemented
in response to Internal Audit’s agreed recommendations in accordance with the agreed
timescale. Where an Internal Audit recommendation is not accepted a written
explanation and acceptance of the consequent risk must be provided by the Business

Agenda Page 95



5.5.5

5.6

5.6.1

6.1

APPENDIX A

Manager and reported to the Section 151 Officer. Such an explanation may be reported
to the Audit and Governance Committee.

The Section 151 Officer, or his nominated officer shall:

(i) Approve any new systems for the maintenance of financial records, or records of
assets or any changes to such systems.

(ii) Be notified by Business Managers of any plans for transferring staff duties in order
to allow for the examination of the implications as regards internal control (e.g.
authorisation, separation of duties etc.)

Business Managers

In addition to the general responsibilities described elsewhere in this document, Business
Managers will be responsible for certifying on an annual basis the necessary
requirements to enable the Section 151 Officer to complete the Council’'s Annual

Governance Statement and Letter of Representation to the Council’s External Auditor.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Financial Consultation

There will be consultation between Business Managers and the Section 151 Officer, or
his/her delegated officers from the Financial Services Business Unit, on any matters
concerning the following:

(i) Preparation and submission of estimates of Council expenditure and income.

(ii) Preparation of estimates for any external body or partnership e.g. County Council,
Government Departments etc., the purpose being the adequacy and accuracy of
the estimates.

(iii) It will be the responsibility of the relevant Business Manager to ensure that any
report presented to Cabinet or any other constituted party of the Council or to
the Council which has financial implications shall include the Section 151 Officer’s
observations (See Section 2.2).

(iv) Proposals for and methods of financing specific expenditure not included in the
approved estimates, together with means of approval for such expenditure where
this is not otherwise stipulated.

(v)  Proposals to reduce or cancel income included in approved estimates.

(vi) Applications, bids or submissions by the Council for grant aid or any external
funding or spending power from outside bodies. Consultation must take place

before submitting any such proposal to an outside body.

(vii) Proposals to enter into any joint working arrangement with another local
authority or other partner.

Agenda Page 96



6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.2.1

6.2.2.2

6.2.2.3

6.2.2.4

6.2.2.5

6.2.2.5

APPENDIX A

No financial matter under headings 6.1 (i) to (vii) above shall be concluded without
consultation with the Section 151 Officer.

Financial Planning and Control

A major project, as defined by the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT), cannot
proceed until a project plan is submitted to SLT and approval is received, followed by
approval from Members where appropriate.

Process for Developing the General Fund and HRA Revenue Budget

The process for developing the budget is set out as part of the Budget Strategy reported
to Cabinet each year.

General Fund and HRA Revenue Budgetary Control

Business Managers are responsible for monitoring and regulating the financial
performance of their appropriate service throughout the financial year using the
Council’s online financial management system and performance information
provided by the Section 151 Officer. Where budgets are delegated to Budget Holders
they are charged with the same responsibility.

The Section 151 Officer will provide performance monitoring information on a
monthly basis.

Cabinet will receive a consolidated report detailing the whole Council performance
quaterly. This will also be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee and the
Policy, Performance Improvement Committee.

Where it appears that the amount included under any head of the approved budget is
likely to be exceeded or the budgeted amount of income under any head is unlikely to
be reached then budget officers are required to find savings elsewhere in their budget.
Variations over £100,000, where savings cannot be identified, the Business Manager
must consult with the Section 151 Officer and ultimately take a report to Cabinet.

The Section 151 Officer shall be entitled to receive from each Business Manager such
information as he/she requires in relation to the annual amount of income achieved
and expenditure incurred for inclusion in the Council’s annual Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer shall report to the Audit and Governance Committee and
Cabinet on the accounts of each financial year as soon as is practicable, and in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations applicable at the time.

6.2.3 Capital Estimates

(i) New schemes must be accompanied by the appropriate Appraisal forms, and will
by an agreed date, be scored together to form a list to be approved by SLT before
proceeding to the committed Capital Programme (to be approved by Council).

(i) Cabinet Portfolio Holders may, via the Director of the service, recommend capital
schemes to Cabinet for inclusion within the Council’s Capital Programme. Any

Agenda Page 97



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xi)

(xii)

APPENDIX A

schemes that are recommended, must go through the process detailed at 6.2.3 (i)
prior to being included within the committed capital programme.

In November each year SLT will review a list of proposed schemes for inclusion in
the Cabinet report for the February meeting together with capital financing
proposals.

Cabinet shall consider any recommendations arising from consultation with
Members and will submit recommendations to the Council for the approved
Capital Programme for the following four years, or such other period as the
Section 151 Officer advises.

The Council shall in February for the HRA and March for the General Fund, of each
year, by simple majority, determine the Council’s Capital Programme, having
considered the proposals recommended by Cabinet.

Following approval of the Council's Capital Programme the appropriate Business
Managers are authorised to incur expenditure in respect of all schemes included
in the committed Capital Programme unless otherwise directed by Cabinet or the
Section 151 Officer.

The Section 151 Officer is authorised to arrange the financing of the Capital
Programme so as to maximise the resources available to the Council, having
regard to the provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 or
subsequent relevant legislation.

The Section 151 Officer is authorised to make any necessary adjustments to the
Capital Programme that arise at year-end due to slippage and report these
retrospectively to Cabinet.

Any favourable variances identified within the approved committed Capital
Programme must be reported to Cabinet. Any internal funding that has not been
required will therefore be available for funding other capital schemes.

No third party funding or grant aid may be accepted where matched funding is
required until the source of the matched funding has been identified and
approved by the Cabinet

Any scheme involving matched funding that is not received must be reported to
Cabinet for consideration of whether additional funding should be allocated in
order to continue with the scheme.

The Section 151 Officer will report periodically to Cabinet on any variations to the
Capital Programme for approval.

The Section 151 Officer is required to take all necessary steps to implement the
committed Capital Programme and is authorised, in the event of slippage, to bring
forward schemes from the following year provided that this does not increase the
total commitment and that such changes are reported to Cabinet retrospectively.

Agenda Page 98



6.2.4

6.24.1

6.2.4.2

6.2.4.3

6.3

6.3.1

6.3.2

b)

APPENDIX A

(xiii)  No schemes worth less than £15,000 will be added to the Capital Programme as
the Council’s de minimus limit is set at £15,000 in line with paragraph 9.5.4.
(xiv)  In-Year additions to the Capital Programme will need to be approved by Cabinet.

General Fund and HRA Capital Programme Monitoring

The monitoring of the overall Capital Programme, with regard to the monitoring of
funding, progress, variations, amendments etc. is the responsibility of the Section 151
Officer who can delegate to an appropriate working group.

Regular reports will be made to Cabinet on the overall progress of the Capital
Programme.

It is the individual Business Manager’s responsibility to exercise control over any capital
schemes within their remit and to report any possible significant variations which may
arise to the Section 151 Officer.

Variation of Estimates — General Fund and HRA Revenue

The object should be to avoid the transfer of estimates and this is best achieved by sound
and detailed estimating together with the accurate coding of expenditure during the year
in accordance with the provisions made.

Where it is desired to transfer funds between budget cost headings, the following
procedure shall be adopted and the Financial Services Business Unit is informed in every
case, to effect the necessary amendments in the Council’s Financial Management
System:

Where the transfer of budget is managed within a cost centre, this can be approved
by the Business Manager.

Where the transfer of budget is within more than one cost centre within a Business
Unit, this can be approved by the Business Manager up to an annual cumulative limit
of £25,000. Between £25,000 and £50,000 this should be approved by the Director
responsible for the Business Unit in consultation with the S151 Officer.

Cumulative transfers from a cost centre in excess of £50,000 up to £100,000 should
be approved by the relevant Portfolio Holder(s) of the service in consultation with
the relevant Director and the s151 Officer.

Any transfers above £100,000 should be approved by the Portfolio Holder for Finance
in consultation with the relevant service Portfolio Holder(s) and the s151 Officer
(having also been approved by the relevant director).

Where the transfer of budget is between Business Units within a Directorate, this
can be approved by the relevant Director up to a cumulative limit of £50,000 in
consultation with the S151 Officer.

Cumulative transfers within a Directorate, between Business Units in excess of

£50,000 up to £100,000 must be approved by the Portfolio %?édeehfaraﬁﬁaanaeeingg



d)

6.3.3

b)

c)

6.3.4

6.3.5

APPENDIX A

consultation with S151 Officer (having been previously approved by the relevant
Director).

Any cumulative transfers in excess of £100,000 must be approved by Cabinet.

Where the transfer of budget is between Directorates, up to £50,000 this can be
approved by the relevant Directors, in consultation with the S151 Officer.

Between £50,000 and £100,000 this must be approved by the Portfolio Holder for
Finance in consultation with the S151 Officer and the relevant Directors.

Any individual request above £100,000 must be approved by Cabinet (having been
previously approved by the relevant Directors and the S151 Officer).

Use of Reserves. Where it is desired to add funds to the revenue account from earmarked
reserves, the following procedure shall be adopted and the Financial Services Business
Unit informed in every case, to effect the necessary amendments in the Council’s
Financial Management System:

Where the transfer of budget is up to £50,000 and the transfer is for the specific purpose
and function for which the reserve was established, then this can be authorised by the
S151 Officer in consultation with the relevant Director responsible for the receiving
service. If the transfer is not for the specific purpose and function for which the reserve
was established then the request for transfer will be referred to the Portfolio Holder for
Finance and the s151 Officer, who can either approve the request or refer it to Cabinet.

Where the transfer of budget is between £50,000 and £100,000 and the transfer is for
the specific purpose and function for which the reserve was established, then this can
be authorised by the Portfolio Holder for Finance in consultation with the S151 Officer. If
the transfer is not for the specific purpose and function for which the reserve was
established the transfer must be authorised by Cabinet.

Where the transfer of budget exceeds £100,000 and the transfer is for the specific
purpose and function for which the reserve was established, then this can be authorised
by the Portfolio Holder for Finance in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder(s)
and the S151 Officer. If the transfer is not for the specific purpose and function for which
the reserve was established then the transfer must be authorised by Cabinet.

No transfer shall be undertaken with the purpose of utilising additional income for
expenditure purposes without the express consent of the Section 151 Officer. No transfer
shall be undertaken out of savings on payroll codes without the express consent of the
Section 151 Officer.

There shall be no carry forward of any under-spending on budgets into the following
financial year without the express authorisation of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and
the Section 151 Officer. This includes budgets held on job codes. When considering any
applications for carry forwards, the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Portfolio
Holder for Finance shall consider the overall budget position of the Council.

Agenda Page 100



6.3.6

6.3.7

6.3.8

6.3.9

APPENDIX A
The Section 151 Officer is authorised to introduce additional restrictions on virements.
Variation of Estimates — General Fund and HRA Capital
Where the change is less than £10,000 per scheme within a financial year, it is delegated
to the Section 151 Officer to approve the change in budget, arranging also the

amendment to the financing of the Capital Programme.

Changes of between £10,000 and £150,000 can be approved by Portfolio Holder decision
or Cabinet.

All changes above £150,000 will need to be approved by Cabinet.

6.3.10 All reprofiles of scheme expenditure will need to be approved by Cabinet.

6.3.11 All changes approved above will need to be noted by Cabinet.

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

Treasury Management

The Council has adopted CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of
Practice 2018 as updated from time to time.

All matters relating to Treasury Management shall be subject to the supervision and
control of the Section 151 Officer.

External Borrowing, and all other Treasury Management transactions, shall be
undertaken in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice,
Prudential Code and the rules and procedures laid down in the Council’s Treasury
Management Policy. The Treasury Management Manual shall be considered to be the
Council’s Financial Regulations for Treasury Management transactions and procedures.

Bank Accounts and Cheques

The Section 151 Officer shall arrange for such bank accounts to be kept as may be deemed
necessary. The Section 151 Officer shall be responsible for the operation, supervision and
control of those accounts. No member of staff shall arrange for a bank account to be
opened without the express authorisation of the Section 151 Officer.

No direct debits from the Council’s bank account must be set up without the prior
approval of the Section 151 Officer.

Bank overdraft facilities and the amounts and conditions of bank charges shall be
negotiated and agreed by the Section 151 Officer.

The Officers authorised to sign cheques or transfer money on behalf of the Council, shall
be limited to the Section 151 Officer, Deputy Section 151 Officer or such officers as
authorised by the Section 151 Officer.

Any cheques exceeding £50,000 must bear two authorised signatures, at least one of
which must be a manual signature.

Agenda Page 101



6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

6.5.9

6.5.10

6.5.11

6.5.12

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

6.6.3

6.6.4

6.6.5

6.6.6

6.6.7

APPENDIX A

Where use is made of the on-line banking system for payments to be made out of any of
the Council’s bank accounts electronically, the requirements for authorisation of
payments shall be equivalent to that of 6.5.4 and 6.5.5 above.

All unused cheques shall be held as "Controlled Stationery" and shall be held in a secure
location.

No cheques are to be cancelled except by persons authorised by the Section 151 Officer.

Instructions for stopping cheques shall be notified to the Bank in writing and all
preliminary telephone instructions in this connection shall be confirmed in writing
immediately afterwards by the Section 151 Officer or Duly Authorised Officer.

No replacement cheques shall be issued until the Bank confirm that a stop has been
placed on the original cheque. Confirmation received from the Bank regarding stopped
cheques must be retained for a period approved by the Section 151 Officer.

All Giro credit balances shall be transferred by automatic transfer at regular intervals by
officers authorised by the Section 151 Officer.

Bank accounts shall be reconciled with financial records and cashbooks at least once in
each month and any discrepancies identified and appropriate action undertaken.

Procurement Cards

The Section 151 Officer shall have the authority to approve requests for applications for
procurement cards, including merchant category code blocks, monthly card limits and
single transaction limits.

The Business Manager (Administrative Services) shall administer all applications for
procurement cards. No officer shall apply for procurement cards other than through the
Business Manager (Administrative Services).

All procurement cards must be held securely. Card details and PIN numbers must not be
disclosed other than for the purposes of using the card for payments. Cardholders may
be held personally liable for any expenditure that they cannot account for.

On a monthly basis, a record of card purchases shall be maintained by individual
cardholders and reconciled to the card statement provided by the card issuer. Business
Managers shall approve the monthly record of card purchases and provide a copy to the
Financial Services Business Unit for processing.

Any discrepancies between the card issuer statement and the cardholder’s record of
purchases must be promptly reported to the Business Manager (Administrative Services).

Procurement cards shall only be used for authorised purchases relating to council
business. Under no circumstances shall they be used for personal expenditure.

In all circumstances, every purchase with VAT will require a VAT receipt in order for the

Agenda Page 102



6.7

6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.8

6.8.1

6.9

6.9.1

6.10

6.10.1

6.10.2

6.10.3

APPENDIX A

card statement to be accounted for correctly. Any items that do not include a VAT receipt
will be charged fully to the revenue code.

Controlled Stationery

The term Controlled Financial Stationery refers to stationery which is sequentially pre-
numbered to provide a sound audit trail, usually to record and process items of a financial
nature, the use of which has to be regulated in order to ensure it is restricted to
authorised Officers only.

Within the Council this primarily relates to cheques, income collection sheets, income
receipts, petty cash books and car park tickets.

The Section 151 Officer may designate any item he considers appropriate to be controlled
stationery.

Such stationery must be retained securely at all times and any issues from stock signed
for.

Retention of Financial Records

All financial records, whether in written or printed form or stored electronically and all
records supporting financial transactions in whatever form shall be retained in
accordance with instructions issued by the Section 151 Officer, who shall determine the
Council’s retention requirements in accordance with relevant legislation and shall be
responsible for the Council’s Records Retention and Disposal Policy with respect to
financial records.

Authorised Signatory List

SLT and Business Managers, in consultation with the Section 151 Officer will nominate
authorised signatories for their service for the authorisation of orders, invoices,
timesheets, overtime claims and contracts. The Section 151 Officer may authorise
additional officers to undertake these duties.

Taxation

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for ensuring that adequate procedures are in place
and adequate advice available for Business Units so as to ensure that the Council is at all
times compliant with the specific requirements of the various tax regimes which affect its
operations and delivery of services.

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for maintaining the Council’s tax records, making
all tax payments, receiving tax credits and submitting tax returns by their due date as
appropriate.

All Business Managers will at all times conduct the financial arrangements of their
Business Units, with regard to taxation issues, in accordance with advice or instructions
issued by the Section 151 Officer, and shall provide any related information or documents

upon request. Agenda Page 103



7.1

7.11

7.1.2

7.1.3

7.14

7.1.5

7.1.6

7.2

7.2.1

7.3

7.3.1

APPENDIX A

EXPENDITURE RELATED REGULATIONS

Employers Records and Payments of Salaries and Wages

Business Managers shall be responsible for promptly notifying the Business Manager
Human Resources & Training of all information required to maintain correct records for
all employees of the Council in respect of service, including appointments, terminations,
promotions (including ‘acting up’ allowances and honorariums), qualifying examination
awards, sickness and absenteeism.

Memoranda to the Business Manager Human Resources & Training in respect of 7.1.1
above shall be signed by the Business Manager or Duly Authorised Officer. The Human
Resources Business Unit shall immediately forward such details to the Financial Services
Business Unit to ensure that the correct payment of wages and salaries and other related
items (including deductions) can be made.

Business Managers shall be responsible for arranging the submission of wages time
sheets, staff salary data, overtime claims and claims for standby payments to arrive in the
Financial Services Business Unit in accordance with the prescribed timescale.

Payment of wages/salaries shall only be made to:

(i)  Personnel included in the approved establishment for the service areas of the
Council, or

(i)  Approved temporary or casual personnel who have been properly notified to the
Financial Services Business Unit.

(iii)  Appointments as authorised in sub-paragraph 7.1.6 below.

Business managers will be required to provide positive confirmation of current post
holders prior to the payment of wages and salaries

Appointments other than those included in the approved establishment as amended
from time to time shall be made in accordance with Human Resources Policies.

Consultants

Where a consultant is to be engaged, it is the responsibility of the officer arranging the
contract to determine whether or not payments are to be made to the consultant directly
or to a personal service company (PSC). This is a limited company owned by the
consultant and is commonly used to reduce tax and National Insurance liability. If
payment is to be through a personal service company, advice must be sought from the
S$151 Officer and the Business Manager HR and Training before any appointment is made
in order for an IR35 assessment to be conducted.

Travelling and Subsistence Claims

All claims by Officers for payment of subsistence allowances, travelling and incidental
expenses shall be submitted, duly certified by or on behalf of the Business Manager, on

Agenda Page 104



7.3.2

7.3.3

7.3.4

7.3.5

7.4

7.4.1

7.4.2

7.4.3

7.5

APPENDIX A

the Council’s electronic expense system in accordance with a timetable specified by the
Section 151 Officer.

The names of Officers authorised to certify claims shall be sent to the Section 151 Officer
by each Business Manager. The Section 151 Officer will determine the controls, to be put
in place for electronic systems.

The certification by or on behalf of the Business Manager shall be taken to mean that
the certifying officer is satisfied that the journeys were authorised, the expenses
properly and necessarily incurred, and that the allowances are properly payable by the
Council.

Un-receipted expenditure will only be considered for reimbursement at the discretion of
the Section 151 Officer or his nominated officer where they are satisfied that the
authorising officer has established that a receipt was not available.

Officers claims shall normally be submitted monthly, and any submitted more than six
months after the expenses were incurred shall be paid only with the express approval of
the Section 151 Officer. Business Managers shall ensure that all Officers using their own
vehicles on Council business:

(i) Hold a current full driving licence authorising them to drive the vehicle in
question.
(i) Have a current insurance policy, which indemnifies the Council against all third

party claims (including those of passengers) arising out of the use of the vehicle
in question on the Council’s business.

(iii) Hold a current MOT certificate, where applicable, for the vehicle in question.

(iv) Have paid the appropriate road tax, where applicable, for the vehicle.

Members Allowances
Claims shall be undertaken in accordance with the Members’ Allowance scheme

approved by the Council on a form approved by the Section 151 Officer on the following
basis:

(i) Claims may be submitted at the end of each month.

(ii) Claims for all expenses and travelling in any financial year up to the end of January
must be submitted to the Democratic Services Business Unit by the 5th working
day of March.

(iii) Claims for expenses and travelling during February and March must be submitted
to the Democratic Services Business Unit by the end of April.

Claims will verified by Democratic Services Business Unit prior to being submitted for
approval by the Financial Services Business Unit.

Further guidance concerning Members Allowances is given in the Members handbook
and the latest scheme of Members Allowances approved by Council.

Orders for Goods, Works and Services

Agenda Page 105



7.5.1

7.5.2

7.53

754

7.5.5

7.5.6

7.5.7

7.5.8

APPENDIX A

Each member of SLT and Business Manager shall be responsible for all official orders
issued from their remit ensuring that:

(i) The estimated costs are covered by an approved budget or other prior sanction.
This includes where amendments to orders are necessary, in that this must be
covered by an approved budget.

(ii) There is compliance with Standing Orders and Contract Procedure Rules, and
procurement law and regulations concerning tenders and contracts.

(iii) It can be demonstrated that the purchase represents value for money.
(iv) Order values are not split to avoid having to comply with procurement rules.

All orders must be made through the Council’s Financial Management system and must
be in the name of Newark & Sherwood District Council and in a form approved by the
Section 151 Officer. Wherever possible electronic orders should be raised in advance of
the purchase, and the supplier advised of the relevant purchase order number.

Official orders must clearly show the nature and quantity of the materials, works or
services required, and details of the agreed price (or estimated price), discounts and
terms in relation to packing and delivery.

Official orders shall indicate that invoices/accounts are to be submitted to the Financial
Services Business Unit quoting the relevant purchase order number unless expressly
authorised by the Section 151 Officer.

Official orders and variations to orders shall be authorised only by:

(i) Business Managers.

(i) Duly Authorised Officers, nominated by appropriate Business Managers detailed
in a schedule supplied to the Section 151 Officer showing the financial limits to an
Officer's authority and a specimen signature.

Official orders must be generated for all work, goods, and services to be supplied to the
Council except:

(i) No order shall be issued if the estimated value of the work or services exceeds the
value where a tender process is required in accordance with Contract Procedure
Rules (This value is £75,001). In this instance a formal tender process must be
initiated in consultation with Welland Procurement

(ii) For periodic payments such as rents or rates, for petty cash purchases or such
other exception as the Section 151 Officer may approve.

(iii) Goods and services ordered by use of a Council Procurement Card.
Council orders shall not be used for personal or private purchases.

Business Managers or Duly Authorised Officers must review electronic purchase orders
on a regular basis and cancel those that are no longer required.

Agenda Page 106



7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

7.6.3

7.6.4

7.6.5

7.7

7.7.1

7.7.2

7.7.3

7.7.4

APPENDIX A
Goods Received

The system of checking goods received, or works done, against official orders shall be in
accordance with instructions laid down by the Section 151 Officer and must be adhered
to by all officers.

Where an electronic order has been raised, a Goods Receipt Note should be input to the
Financial Management system as soon as the goods have been checked.

The same Officer must not both authorise an order and certify that goods have been
received or work done.

Where the value of the order is above £15,000 only an authorised officer can allocate a
goods receipt note onto the Council’s online financial management software.

Where goods/works/services have not been supplied to the satisfactory standard of the
Council, no goods receipt note should be added to the system, but a dispute notification
must be made to the Section 151 Officer, in order to denote the invoice is in dispute.

Invoices

Where an invoice is not subject to an electronic order raised on the Council’s Financial
Management system, due to any of the circumstances outlined at 7.5.6, the invoice
should be authorised for payment by one of the following:

(i) SLT

(ii) Business Managers

(iii)  Duly Authorised Officers, nominated by appropriate Business Managers detailed in
a schedule supplied to the Section 151 Officer showing the financial limits to an
Officer's authority and a specimen signature. Business Managers shall be
responsible for promptly notifying the Financial Services Business Unit of
amendments to Duly Authorised Officers.

Before certifying an invoice, the authorising officer shall be satisfied that:

(i) The work, goods or services to which the invoice relates have been received,
carried out, examined and approved.

(ii) The prices, extensions, calculations, trade discounts, other allowances, credits
and tax are correct.

(iii) The relevant expenditure has been properly incurred, and is within the relevant
estimate provision.

(iv) Appropriate entries have been made in registers, inventories, stores records or
stock books, as required, and

(v) the invoice has not been previously passed for payment and is a proper liability
of the Council.

Where any amendment is required to an invoice the supplier must be asked for an
amended invoice or, alternatively, a credit note.

Business Units shall promptly forward any invoices received directly to the Administration

Agenda Page 107



7.7.5

7.7.6

7.7.7

7.7.8

7.7.9

7.7.10

7.8

7.8.1

7.8.2

APPENDIX A

Business Unit after ensuring that the appropriate purchase order has been goods
receipted.

Invoices shall only be paid within the computer-based system timetable. Any invoices for
which there is no purchase order and/or Goods Receipt Note on the Financial
Management system cannot be paid (with the exception of those under circumstances
detailed in 6.4.6) and the relevant Business Unit will be notified to correct the omission.

Business Managers are responsible for ensuring that all necessary data and
authorisations are input to the Financial Management system to guarantee payment of
commercial invoices within 30 days of receipt.

Copy invoices and orders substituted for the original document shall be clearly marked
"copy" and initialled.

No payments made by the Section 151 Officer will be other than by use of official
stationery or by approved electronic means.

The Section 151 Officer will be responsible for the deduction of any tax from payments
to contractors under the provision of the Construction Industry Tax Deduction Scheme.

Any queries on invoices that cause delay in payment must be raised formally with the
supplier. When the invoice is passed to the Financial Services Business Unit for payment
the reason for delay must be provided.

Petty Cash and Post

General

(i) Petty cash is only available under special circumstances. Procurement cards
should be used in the first instance.

(ii) Procedures for Petty Cash Imprest Accounts and Post shall be in accordance with

instructions laid down by the Section 151 Officer. New or temporary
accounts/floats shall not be raised out of income.
(ili) New or temporary accounts/floats can only be raised by Financial Services

Petty Cash Imprest Accounts

(i) A Petty Cash Imprest Account is defined as a fund of cash from which incidental
expenses are paid, which is topped up periodically from central funds. These
transactions should be minor, routine transactions, where raising an official order
and processing an invoice through the Creditor system would be neither realistic
nor cost effective. This differs from a change float which is a sum of money used
to provide change at the start of the day, which is deducted from the total at the
end of the day when calculating the day’s takings. A Petty Cash Imprest Account
should be kept and accounted for separately to a change float.

(ii) Holdings of Petty Cash shall be limited to amounts prescribed by the Section 151
Officer.

(iii) Signatures of Petty Cash holders confirming the amounts held shall be obtained
annually under year-end procedures and periodic management checks shall be
made to verify petty cash holdings.

(iv) Business Managers shall be responsible for ensuring the comprehensive recording

Agenda Page 108



7.8.3

7.9

7.9.1

7.9.2

7.9.3

7.9.4

7.9.5

7.10

7.10.1

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Post

(i)
(ii)

APPENDIX A

of all petty cash disbursements, the custody of supporting documents and
vouchers and the safe custody of all unused balances of petty cash.
Reimbursement of petty cash shall be obtained by the production of the
appropriate voucher together with receipts to the Section 151 Officer for inclusion
in the invoice payment system.

Un-receipted expenditure will only be considered for reimbursement at the
discretion of the Section 151 Officer or his nominated officer where they are
satisfied that the authorising officer has established that a receipt was not
available.

Two people shall be involved in the preparation/authorisation of an imprest claim.
The Petty Cash system must not be utilised for payments that should be processed
through other systems (e.g. Members/Officers expenses) unless expressly
authorised by the Section 151 Officer.

On leaving the employment of the Council or otherwise ceasing to be entitled to
hold a petty cash or other float an Officer shall account to the Section 151 Officer
for the amount advanced to him, and a hand over certificate shall be completed.

All post should be processed through the Business Mail process.
The Business Mail process is not to be used for personal items of mail.

Right to Set Off

The Right to Set Off concerns the situation whereby the Council owes a person money,
but where that person also owes money to the Council, and the Council sets off what is
owed before paying the balance (if any) to the person.

Business Managers shall be responsible for ensuring that suitable arrangements are in
place to consider the setting off of monies owed to the Council where applicable.

Set Offs shall be undertaken where:

(i)
(ii)

The opportunity arises, subject to any statutory obligation upon the Council.
The circumstances of the particular case justify such a course of action.

Each case must be considered on its own merits.

Officers undertaking set offs shall ensure that the course of action proposed has been
evaluated by the Legal Business Unit and the VAT Officer within Financial Services prior
to it being undertaken.

No grant shall be offered to a third party where that person/entity is in debt to the
Council, and such debt has become outstanding and in arrears, without the express
consent of the Section 151 Officer.

Contracts

All contracts shall be made and administered in accordance with the Contract Procedure

Rules.

Agenda Page 109



APPENDIX A

7.10.2 Directors are responsible for notifying the names of Officers authorised to sign contracts

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.24

and their authorisation limits to the Section 151 Officer. Any changes should be notified
to the Financial Services, HR and Legal Business Units.

INCOME RELATED REGULATIONS

Responsibilities

Business Managers shall be responsible for the collection, custody and banking of income
received as due to the Council in accordance with the instructions issued by the Section
151 Officer.

Every Officer of the Council who pays money into a bank account of the Council, shall
enter on a paying in slip, and on the counterfoil or duplicate thereof, particulars of such
payment, including, in the case of each cheque paid in:

(i) The amount of the cheque, and

(ii) A reference (such as the number of the receipt given or the name of the debtor)
which will connect the cheque with the debt or debts in discharge or partial
discharge of which it was received.

Where any cheque paid in was not received in discharge or partial discharge of a debt
due to the Council, the Officer shall note the fact on the counterfoil or duplicate of
the paying in slip.

It is the responsibility of the Business Manager that is receipting income to put in place
adequate procedures to ensure that where works/services/goods have been provided
cash receipts are reconciled from the Council’s financial management system to the
source records held by the Business Unit. This should be completed monthly and any
discrepancy between actual cash received and the source information should be
directed to the Business Manager — Financial Services for investigation.

General

The rules for the collection of all income due to the Council shall be under the general
control of the Section 151 Officer.

The records kept by each budget holder with regard to items of income shall be in such a
form as may be agreed by the Section 151 Officer from time to time.

All payments received in cash on behalf of the Council shall be acknowledged by the issue
of an official receipt. Such receipts shall only be valid if in the form of an official machine
printed receipt, except where official manual receipt books are issued for prescribed
purposes.

All income shall be collected and deposited intact without delay into the Council’s bank
account, as directed by the Section 151 Officer, on the same day as received wherever
possible. Where appropriate, income shall be deposited under night-safe arrangements,
including suitably secure safes on the Council's own premises, or held securely by another

Agenda Page 110



8.2.5

8.2.6

8.2.7

8.2.8

8.2.9

8.2.10

8.2.11

8.2.12

8.2.13

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.34

APPENDIX A

appropriate method approved by the Section 151 Officer. Where cash is held in secure
safes on Council premises the Business Manager responsible for the service depositing
the money shall ensure that sufficient insurance arrangements are in place.

No personal cheques are to be cashed out of Council funds.

All cheques, postal orders, money orders and postal drafts etc, received on behalf of and
due to the Council shall be crossed "A/C Newark and Sherwood District Council"
immediately on receipt unless they are already clearly marked with equivalent wording.

Post-dated cheques will only be accepted at the discretion of the Section 151 Officer.

The Section 151 Officer on receipt of details from Business Manager shall ensure that a
record is maintained of all items of income due to the Council classified as "periodic
income" for which fixed or varying charges apply. For this purpose the term "periodic
income" shall mean any fee or charge receivable by the Council on a recurring basis one
or more times in any one year.

Business Managers shall be responsible for notifying the Section 151 Officer of all items
of miscellaneous income due to be paid to the Council.

Cash receipts over a value of £1,500 shall be reported to the Council’s Anti Money
Laundering Reporting Officer (the Section 151 Officer) who shall be responsible for taking
the appropriate action. The Section 151 Officer may issue further arrangements in respect
of anti-money laundering.

Instances where currency is identified as being forged shall be reported to the Section
151 Officer.

No online payment system must be set up without the prior approval of the Section 151
Officer.

All online payments must be in accordance with instructions issued by the Section 151
Officer.

Cash Receipting

Receipt books are controlled stationery and shall be retained securely.

Where Council income other than cheque payments, whether cash or otherwise, is
passed from one employee to another, the receiving employee shall sign an appropriate

form of receipt, which shall be retained by the Officer who passed the income.

Adequate details of receipts and specific records of cheques shall be kept which refer to
the original debt.

Postal income shall be held securely, opened wherever possible in a secure environment,
by a minimum of two officers, recorded on appropriate documentation, and promptly
investigated in the event of discrepancies.

Agenda Page 111



8.3.5

8.3.6

8.3.7

8.3.8

8.3.9

8.4

8.4.1

8.4.2

8.4.3

8.4.4

8.5

8.5.1

9.1

APPENDIX A

Change must not be given in the event of a cheque being received for a greater value than
the debt outstanding.

Coin operated machines shall be emptied on a regular basis, with the income counted in
a secure environment by a minimum of two officers, with a note of machine readings
being taken (where applicable), with discrepancies being promptly investigated.

Change floats shall be issued and approved by the Section 151 Officer, be kept secure
when not in use, checked prior to use, and deducted from the total at the end of the day
when calculating the days takings. Unofficial floats must not be maintained.

Cashing up duties shall be undertaken by a minimum of two officers, in a secure
environment away from public view, with the details being recorded on an appropriate
daily return, with discrepancies being promptly investigated.

Further details concerning cash handling procedures are outlined in the Cash Handling
Guidance notes which can be found in the Safety section on the Council’s intranet.

Debtor Accounts - Recovery, Amendment and Write-Off

The Council shall submit invoices for rechargeable work within one month of the work
being completed and appropriate documentation being received.

All arrangements for recovery of outstanding debts to the Council shall be made in
accordance with instructions from the Section 151 Officer (this may include the debtor
details being submitted to the Council’s Legal Business Unit or an outside collection
agency suitably appointed by the Council).

Cancellation of Sundry Debtor accounts, whether in part or full, shall be authorised in
writing by the relevant Business Manager or Duly Authorised Officer, on the basis of
appropriate documentation prepared by the originator of the debt, which justifies the
said cancellation.

The Section 151 Officer shall be authorised to write off debts owed to the Council in
accordance with delegated authority contained in the Council’s Constitution. Iltems in
excess of the amount specified in delegated authority may only be written off by the
Cabinet.

Gifts and Hospitality

The procedures to be adopted concerning gifts and hospitality being offered to an
employee of the Council, shall be in accordance with guidance notes within the
Employees Code of Conduct, Member Code of Conduct, or issued by the Councils

Monitoring Officer or Section 151 Officer.

PROTECTION OF ASSETS

Security

Agenda Page 112



9.11

9.1.2

APPENDIX A

The Section 151 Officer shall maintain an up-to-date asset register. The Section 151
Officer should be notified in any case where security is thought to be defective or where
it is considered that special arrangements may be needed.

Officers arranging legal contracts shall ensure that the legal documents are lodged with
the Legal Business Unit.

9.1.3 The Council’s Legal Business Unit shall be responsible for the safe custody of all legal

9.14

9.1.5

9.1.6

9.1.7

9.1.8

9.1.9

9.1.10

9.2

9.21

9.2.2

agreements, leases etc, showing due dates for termination and for the review of "break
clauses" as applicable and shall keep a register of all such legal agreements.

The Contract Officer is responsible for ensuring appropriate action is taken to meet the
requirements of the relevant operative dates.

Each Business Manager shall be responsible for maintaining proper security at all times
for all buildings, stocks, stores, furniture, equipment, cash etc, under his control. He shall
consult the Section 151 Officer (and, where necessary, the Business Manager Community
Safety) in any case where it is considered that special security arrangements may be
needed.

Maximum limits for cash holdings shall be agreed with the Section 151 Officer in
accordance with insurance limits, and shall not be exceeded without his express
permission.

Keys to safes, similar receptacles, cash offices, stock rooms and office keys must be held
securely. The loss of any such keys must be reported to the Section 151 Officer
immediately.

Each Business Manager shall be responsible for maintaining a secure record of key
holders together with details of keys held in other locations. All keys held personally by
individual officers must be signed out and signed back in again when they are no longer
required to be held.

Any losses of either ID badges or building access cards must be reported immediately to
the Business Manager Public Protection & Admin Services.

Any breaches in security shall be reported immediately to the Business Manager Public
Protection.

Inventories

Business Managers shall ensure that an inventory is maintained of all items, as approved,
in a form approved by the Section 151 Officer.

The inventory shall give an adequate description of all movable plant and machinery,
vehicles, and valuable, desirable and portable equipment belonging to Newark and
Sherwood District Council. The inventory will be a permanent record and under no
circumstances shall an item be deleted. Entries relating to items disposed of or
transferred shall be annotated to that effect. The inventory should detail such
identification marks as to enable the item to be easily identified i.e. model number, serial
number, unique identification number etc.

Agenda Page 113



9.2.3

9.24

9.2.5

9.2.6

9.2.7

9.2.8

9.2.9

9.2.10

9.3

9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

9.34

APPENDIX A

All new inventory items purchased must be entered onto the inventory immediately and
where relevant, the Risk and Insurance Officer should benotified.

Business Managers shall be responsible for maintaining an annual check of all items on
the inventory. As part of the Annual Governance Statement process, Business
Managers are asked in April each year to certify the accuracy and completeness of
inventories. As such, there must be an inventory check undertaken of all items in time
to complete this certification. This is a minimum requirement; in some instances a
more frequent review may be appropriate.

All surpluses or deficiencies shall be properly documented and recorded as an
amendment to the inventory and reported to the appropriate Director and Risk and

Insurance Officer, subject to 9.2.6 below.

Surpluses or deficiencies in excess of £50 for any one item and £500 in total must be
reported to the Section 151 Officer who may, at his discretion, order an investigation.

In connection with surplus inventory items with a value over £50:

(i) Prior to disposal, the surplus item must be offered for internal use elsewhere in
the Council. In this case both inventories should record the transfer.
(i) All disposals must be authorised by the appropriate Business Manager.

(iii) The method of disposal shall be approved by the Section 151 Officer.
(iv) All disposals must be properly documented.
(v) The Risk and Insurance Officer shall be informed of all relevant disposals.

Any inventory item identified as being obsolete must only be disposed of on the authority
of the appropriate Business Manager, after consultation with the Section 151 Officer.

No inventory item shall be subject to personal use by an employee without authorisation
by the appropriate Business Manager. Any item removed for home working should be

shown as such on the inventory or through an appropriate booking out mechanism.

Employees are responsible for inventory items allocated to them. Employees are also
responsible for keeping a record if they loan inventory items to other officers.

Stores

Each Business Manager shall be responsible for the custody, control, ordering, issuing and
recording of stocks and stores in their Business Unit. The system in operation shall be
subject to the express approval of the Section 151 Officer.

Business Managers shall arrange for a continuous and independent stocktaking of stores.

Stocktaking procedures shall be sufficiently regular and robust so as to ensure that stock
is accurately recorded. This must include a stocktake at 31t March each year.

Following the stocktaking of stores, the following procedures shall apply:

(i) Investigations shall be made into discrepancies to isolate and correct accounting

Agenda Page 114



9.3.5

9.3.6

9.3.7

9.4

9.4.1

9.4.2

943

9.4.4

9.4.5

9.4.6

9.4.7

APPENDIX A

errors. The results of any investigations including any reports must be sent to the
Section 151 Officer at an early stage.

(ii) Discrepancies still outstanding shall be presented to the appropriate responsible
Director for comment and explanation.

(iii) The Section 151 Officer shall have authority after receipt and consideration of the
comments and explanations to make the necessary adjustments to the stores
ledger, and may require an investigation and/or report to the Audit and Accounts
Committee.

The Section 151 Officer shall be entitled to receive from each Business Manager such
information as he requires in relation to stores for the accounting, costing and financial
records, including a certificate of the value of stores held at the 31st March each year for
submission at audit.

Prior to disposal, the Business Manager shall ensure that the Council has ownership of
the asset. Surplus or obsolete materials, stores or equipment with an estimated value
over £500 shall be disposed of by competitive tender or public auction, unless
appropriate written approval is obtained from the Section 151 Officer who decides
otherwise in a particular case. The proceeds of the sale of any asset should be paid
directly to the Council without any deductions.

No stores item shall be subject to personal use by an employee.
Insurance

The Section 151 Officer shall be responsible for effecting adequate insurance cover,
through an insurance company (or companies) or such other means approved by Cabinet
for all assets, commitments and contingent liabilities in the performance and discharge
of statutory or other authorised duties by the Council, its Members and Officers.

No officer shall arrange insurance other than through the Council’s Risk and Insurance
Officer.

Insurance requirements shall be actioned in accordance with the Council’s Insurance
Guide, which can be found in the Public Protection section of the intranet.

The Section 151 Officer shall carry out periodic reviews to ensure the maintenance of
adequate insurance cover as above, and shall maintain a record of "risks" covered, the
amount of cover and premiums due.

Business Managers shall be responsible for promptly notifying the Section 151 Officer of
the extent and nature of new risks or of any variations concerning insurance cover
required in respect of their own service area.

Business Managers shall be responsible for promptly notifying the Section 151 Officer of
full details of all accidents or occurrences likely to lead to a proper claim on the Council.

Where any claim is received from a third party by any officer, this must be immediately
forwarded to the Council’s Risk and Insurance Officer.

Agenda Page 115



9.4.8

9.49

9.4.10

9.4.11

9.5

9.5.1

9.5.2

9.5.3

9.54

9.6

9.6.1

9.6.2

9.7

9.7.1

9.7.2

APPENDIX A

The Section 151 Officer shall maintain a record of all insurance claims made against the
Council.

No correspondence should be entered into in respect of any claim or other insurance
matter except by the Council’s Risk and Insurance Officer, without the express approval
of the Section 151 Officer.

At no time should any officer or Member or any other person acting on behalf of the
Council make an admission of liability on behalf of the Council without the express
authority of the Section 151 Officer.

Any expenditure in relation to dealing with the settling or resisting of claims must be
authorised by the Section 151 Officer or any other duly authorised officer prior to any
expenditure being committed.

Asset Management

All matters relating to Asset Management shall be administered in accordance with
the Council’s Asset Management Plan.

The Section 151 Officer shall ensure that an Asset Register is maintained by the Council
in accordance with the latest advice issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy.

It is the responsibility of the appropriate Director to ensure that Asset Management
expertise is available to the Council.

The Asset Register shall include all assets of the Council valued in excess of £15,000.
Management of Information

Business Managers shall be responsible for maintaining the proper security and privacy
of all information under their control including computerised files and for ensuring the
Council acts in accordance with the Data Protection/Freedom of Information legislation.

Intellectual property (i.e. the generic term that includes inventions, creative writings,
software and drawings) arising from the course of employment will belong to the
Council.

Motor Vehicles

Council vehicles must not be used for private purposes, or hired or lent out, without the
express approval of the appropriate Director who shall check with the Council’s Risk and
Insurance Officer that such use is covered by the Councils insurance policy. Records of
any such use should be kept to ensure the driver of any such vehicle shall be known at all
times. If there is any doubt that adequate insurance cover is in place, no such use of the
vehicle shall be permitted.

Business Managers shall ensure that all Officers using Council owned vehicles hold a

Agenda Page 116



9.7.3

9.74

9.8

9.8.1

9.9

9.9.1

9.10

9.10.1

10.

10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

APPENDIX A
current full driving licence authorising them to drive the vehicle in question.

All Officers using Council owned vehicles are responsible for the security of the vehicle,
whilst it is in their care.

Where a Council vehicle is to be taken home overnight to facilitate call-out, stand-by or
other appropriate duties, Financial Services must be informed to ensure that taxation
issues are managed appropriately.

Reporting of Irregularities

The reporting of irregularities shall be in accordance with the Council’s Guidance for
Dealing with Irregularities which is available in the Financial Services section of the
Intranet.

Whistleblowing Policy

Each Business Manager shall be responsible for ensuring that their staff are aware of,
understand and comply with the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy which is available within
the Council’s Constitution.

I.C.T. Systems

All proposals for the acquisition, development, maintenance and use of computing
facilities and systems shall conform with the Council’s I.C.T. policies and strategies and
the Employee Code of Conduct.

EXTERNAL ARRANGEMENTS

Partnerships, Shared Services and Collaboration Arrangements

No partnership or shared service arrangement shall be set up without taking into
consideration the factors covered in 10.1 of these regulations.

Business Managers shall ensure that the appropriate approval is obtained prior to any
negotiations being concluded in relation to work with external bodies.

The Section 151 Officer must be consulted on the financial implications of new
partnerships or shared services arrangements and must approve that:

(i) A scheme appraisal for financial viability in both current and future years has been
undertaken.
(ii) Costs and income are provided for in the Council’s budget.

(iii) Arrangements are in place for accurate accounting for cost and income.

(iv) Sufficient controls are in place for the successful operation of the
partnership/shared service, including arrangements for sufficient access to
financial and other records.

(v) Carry forward arrangements have been determined.

(vi) A formal risk appraisal has taken place and a management strategy devised.

(vii)  Anauditing, security and control regime has been established.

Agenda Page 117



10.1.4

10.1.5

10.1.6

10.1.7

10.2

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

APPENDIX A
(viii)  Appropriate arrangements are in place for the recovery of VAT.

Financial performance of partnerships and shared services must be monitored and
reported back to the Council as agreed.

These Financial Regulations also apply to all partnerships and shared services unless
similar arrangements have been approved by the Section 151 Officer.

Where collaboration is agreed with an external partner, the relevant Business Manager
is responsible for ensuring that all income due is invoiced and recorded promptly
within the Financial Management system and that invoices for expenditure incurred in
relation to the collaboration are received and recorded promptly.

Where an Officer is working for a Collaboration partner, the Financial Regulations of
the partner body will apply.

External Funding

No applications for external funding shall be made without prior consultation with the

Section 151 Officer. Directors or Business Managers shall be responsible for providing

the Section 151 Officer with the following information:

(i) How the bid is compatible with the Councils aims and priorities.

(ii) Whether the bid is for capital or revenue funding.

(iii) Whether matched funding contributions are required from the Council and
how these will be identified.

(iv) Whether matched funding contributions are required from other organisations
and how these amounts will be secured.

(v) An exit strategy setting out how budgets will be adjusted after the external
funding expires.

(vi) Where the bid is for revenue funding, whether it is to support existing levels of
activity or enhanced/new activities.

(vii)  Where the bid is for capital funding, whether an asset will be created and how
this fits in with the Councils Asset Management Plan, how the ongoing
maintenance of the asset will be funded and whether the asset can/will be
disposed of at a later date.

(viii)  Details of ownership and insurance of the asset.

Business Managers shall be responsible for ensuring that:

(i) The key conditions of funding and any statutory requirements are complied
with and that the responsibilities of the accountable body are clearly
understood.

(ii) Any funding received is used for the intended purpose and is notified to the
Section 151 Officer.

The Section 151 Officer shall be responsible for:

(i) Approving all external funding bids prior to application.

(ii) Approving all interim and final claims for external funding once the bid has

Agenda Page 118



10.3

10.3.1

10.3.2

10.3.3

11.

11.1

12,

12.1

13.

13.1

13.2

APPENDIX A

been accepted and is live.
(iii) Ensuring that any funding received is properly recorded in the Council’s
accounts.

Work for Third Parties

No Officer should set up their own trading company to provide services to the Council
without the prior approval of the Section 151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer.

Where works are to be provided to a third party, any contractual arrangement above
£15,000 must be approved by the Section 151 Officer prior to being signed. This is
regardless of whether the piece of work is a one off or on-going.

Business Managers shall be responsible for ensuring that:

(i) A register is maintained of all contracts entered into with third parties.
(ii) Any risks are minimised and such work is intra vires.

(iii) Appropriate insurance arrangements are made.

(iv) The Council is not put at risk from any bad debts.

(v) No contract is subsidised by the Council.
(vi) Wherever possible, payment is received in advance of the delivery of
the service.

(vii)  The Business Unit has the appropriate expertise to undertake the Contract.

(viii)  All contracts are properly documented.

(ix) Appropriate information is provided to the Section 151 Officer for final
accounts purposes.

DIRECTOR/OFFICER DELEGATIONS

Director/Officer delegations will be in accordance with the latest Scheme of Delegation
as approved by Council.

CONTRACT AND WINDFALL SAVINGS
Unless specific agreement with the Section 151 Officer is obtained, contract savings and
windfall savings (i.e. unanticipated income or unanticipated savings on expenditure

including any figure relating to previous years) will revert to Balances.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES

Failure to comply with the Financial Procedure Rules:

e Is a breach of the Code of Conduct for Officers that is covered by the Council’s
Disciplinary and Dismissal Policy.

Councillors must report any apparent breach of the Financial Procedure Rules to the Chief
Executive. Officers must report apparent breaches to an appropriate Chief Officer or the
S$151 Officer. The Chief Officer (where this isn’t the S151 Officer) should report breaches
of these Rules to the $S151 Officer and the Monitoring Officer.

Agenda Page 119



APPENDIX A

Revised: May 2025
Next revision due: March 2028

Agenda Page 120



Agenda Item 15b

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E35
APPENDIX B

CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
Reviewed and Updated May 2025
CONTENTS

Introduction
Roles and Responsibilities
Non-Compliance with these Rules
Total Value
Contract Term
Procurements valued under £10,000
Procurements valued between £10,000 and £74,999
Procurements valued between £75,000 and the Relevant Public Procurement
Threshold
Procurements valued above the Relevant Public Procurement Threshold
0 Purchasing from a Framework Agreement or Dynamic Purchasing System
(DPS)
11 Setting up a Framework Agreement/DPS
12 Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 and Health Care Services
13 Other Matters to Consider
13.1 Conflict of Interest
13.2 Abnormally Low Bids
13.3 Errors.in Tenders
13.4 Receiving Late Tenders
13.5 Receiving Irreqular Tenders
13.6 GDPR Requirements
13.7 Freedom of Information
13.8 Modern Slavery
13.9 Safeqguarding Provisions in Contracts and Grant Arrangements
13.10 Due Diligence
13.11 Sealing a Contract
13.12 Reserving below Threshold Procurements (for Services contracts only)
14 Exemptions to Contract Procedure Rules
15 Contract Management
15.1 Contract Management
15.2 Variations
15.3 Extensions
16 The Appointment of Consultants to Provide Services
17 Bonds and Parent Company Guarantees
18 Certificates/Interim Payments

O~NO O WN -

= O

Appendix 1 Definitions

Appendix 2 Variable Information
Appendix 3 Contract Register Updates
Appendix 4 Responsibilities

Agenda Page 121



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E36

APPENDIX B
1 Introduction

The purpose of these Contract Procedure Rules is to set out the principles, roles and
processes involved in procurement at the Council. All procurements must comply with
these Rules, the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules, English law, and European law
in force in England.

All procurements must realise value for money through the optimum combination of
whole life costs and quality of outcome.

These Rules seek to protect the Council’s reputation by minimising the risk of
allegations of corruption, dishonesty, and failure to meet legal obligations; as such they
must be followed in all commercial activity undertaken on behalf of the Council and
within a partnership arrangement, regardless of the source of funding.

These Rules should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Financial Regulations
and Purchasing Card Procedure (as appropriate). These Rules (together with the
Council’s relevant policies and procedures) set out how the Council will have regard to
the importance of the following Procurement Act 2023 objectives:

* delivering value for money;

* maximising public benefit;

* sharing information for the purpose of allowing suppliers and others to understand
the authority’s procurement policies and decisions;

* acting, and being seen to act, with integrity; and

«. having regard to the fact that small and medium-sized enterprises may face particular
barriers to participation and consider whether such barriers can be removed or
reduced.

If there is any change to the law which affects these Rules, then that change must be
observed until these Rules can be revised. If these Rules conflict in any way with the
law, then the law takes precedence.

These Rules are supported by detailed, practical guidance available in the
Procurement Toolkit, which can be accessed via the procurement portal. The
Procurement Toolkit covers:

e The Procurement Cycle

Assessing Needs

When does TUPE apply?

Assessing Risks

Valuing Your Requirement

Understanding Social Value

Sustainable Procurement

Procurement timetable

Specification

Evaluation Methodology and Criteria

Terms and Conditions

Due Diligence

Agenda Page 122


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E37
APPENDIX B

The Procurement Process

Procuring via a Framework Agreement
Contract Management and Review
Variation

e [Extensions

If, after reading these Rules, you require further guidance or clarification, or you are
not sure how best to comply with them, then please contact your Line Manager, the
Business Manager — Financial Services or Welland Procurement.

Any values stated within these Rules are exclusive of VAT, staff costs and fees.

Grant money received shall be deployed in line with these Rules unless the grant
conditions state otherwise.

These Rules do not apply in the following circumstances:

1.1 The purchase or lease of property, land acquisition, interest in land, transaction
in land or disposal. This does not extend to any service, supplies, or works
contracts that may be required to make the land, existing buildings, or
immoveable property ready for acquisition, disposal, or leasing.

1.2  Direct employment of permanent or fixed term employees, for the avoidance of
doubt these Rules do apply to consultancy and employment agency contracts.

1.3 Instructing barristers or solicitors (as long as those costs do not exceed the
relevant Public Procurement Threshold).

1.4  The lending or borrowing of money by the Council.

1.5 Contracts between Local Authorities as defined by Clause 3 of Schedule 2 of
the Procurement Act 2023 .

1.6 Contracts between Local Authorities as defined by Clause 1 of the Local
Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970.

1.7  Section 75 NHS Act 2006 arrangements (although details must be recorded on
the Council’'s Contract Register).

1.8 Quick Reference Guide: Contract Procedure Rules

1.8.1 A decision to procure is required before procurement commences AND a
decision to award must be obtained before a contract is awarded.

1.8.2 Procurements with a total value of £5,000 or more are subject to Transparency
Regulations and will need to be entered on to the Council’s Contracts Register.

Agenda Page 123



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION

MAY 2025

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E38
APPENDIX B

1.8.3 The table over is a quick reference guide only and is supported by the details
Contract Procedure Rules in this document.

Total Contract
Value

Procurement Guidance

Governance Guidance

Under £10,000

Notices Required: None

Method: At least one written
guotation required (Rule 6.3).

Note: Budget Holders are
responsible for all awards over
£5,000 being entered on the
Contracts Register.

Governance Process: Decision does not
require a formal officer decision notice. A
Purchase Order (PO) must be raised before
award, and this will be deemed sufficient
authority to award the contract with a copy of all
documentation kept on the file for audit
purposes.

Finance Process: Must be within budget. A
Purchase Order (PO) should be raised before
award and authorised by Budget Holder in
accordance with the Budget and Policy
Framework.

Legal Process: PO Ts & Cs are on the intranet.
Please ensure these are fit for purpose for the
contract before award. If bespoke terms are
required, please instruct Legal Services before
procuring. PO to be approved / signed by the
relevant Budget Holder (Rule 6.6) prior to
award of the Contract once all due diligence has
taken place. All documentation to be kept on file
for audit purposes. All awards over £5,000 must
be entered on the Contracts Register.

Signing: Can be signed by Business Manager

Between £10,000
and £74,999 where
the process is
closed process
(The Council
knows the
suppliers that are
due to engage
with)

Notices Required: All
Contracts over £20,000 must
have a formal award notice
issued by Welland
Procurement (on Find a Tender
Service).

Method: At least 3 quotations
should be sought using RFQ
template. At least 2 quotations
should be from locally based
suppliers (this is not necessary
when using a framework) (Rule
7.3).

Governance Process: All contracts below
£20,000 do not require a formal decision record
unless it is deemed high risk, politically or
financially sensitive or other circumstances
dictate a formal record is required e.g.,
recording a delegation to award from a
Committee / Cabinet. The Purchase Order (PO)
must be raised before award, and this will be
deemed sufficient authority to award the
contract with a copy of all documentation kept
on the file for audit purposes.

All Contracts between £20,000 and £74,999 will
require a decision record authorising the award
of the contract BEFORE the Contract is
awarded. This decision can be made by the
relevant Officer. If the matter is high risk,
politically or financially sensitive it should be

Agenda Page 124




NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION

MAY 2025

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E39
APPENDIX B

made by the Director and/or relevant Portfolio
Holder — please liaise with your Director for
guidance.

Finance process: Must be within budget. A
Purchase Order must be raised prior to award
and signed off by the Budget Holder. Purchase
Order can be authorised by a Director in
accordance with the Budget and Policy
Framework.

Legal Process: Standard T's and C’s to be
used. Purchase Order / Decision notice and
printed copies of the Contract (No. of copies =
No. of parties to the Contract) to be provided to
legal signed by the relevant Business
Manager/Director as per delegations (Rule
7.12) unless sealing applies (Rule 13.11). The
award must be entered on the Contracts
Register. All awards over £20,000 must have a
Contract Finder Award Notice - consult
Welland Procurement.

Signing: Contract signed by relevant Business
Manager/Director (Rule 7.12) unless sealing
applies (Rule 13.11).

Between £10,000
and £74,999 where
the process is an
open process (The
Council does not
know the
suppliers that are
due to engage
with)

Welland Procurement must
be instructed.

Notices Required: Find a
Tender Service Advertising and
Award notices. (Rule 8).

Method: A single stage (open)
tender is required. Tenders at
this level are run via Welland
Procurement’s e-tendering
system.

Governance Process: All contracts below
£20,000 do not require a formal decision record
unless it is deemed high risk, politically or
financially sensitive or other circumstances
dictate a formal record is required e.g.,
recording a delegation to award from a
Committee / Cabinet. The Purchase Order (PO)
must be raised before award, and this will be
deemed sufficient authority to award the
contract with a copy of all documentation kept
on the file for audit purposes.

All Contracts between £20,000 and £74,999 will
require a decision record authorising the award
of the contract BEFORE the Contract is
awarded. This decision can be made by the
relevant Officer. If the matter is high risk,
politically or financially sensitive it should be
made by the Director and/or relevant Portfolio
Holder — please liaise with your Director for
guidance.

Agenda Page 125




NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION

MAY 2025

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E40
APPENDIX B

Finance process: Must be within budget. A
Purchase Order must be raised prior to award
and signed off by the Budget Holder. Purchase
Order can be authorised by a Director in
accordance with the Budget and Policy
Framework.

Legal Process: Standard T's and C’s to be
used. Purchase Order / Decision notice and
printed copies of the Contract (No. of copies =
No. of parties to the Contract) to be provided to
legal signed by the relevant Business
Manager/Director as per delegations (Rule
7.12) unless sealing applies (Rule 13.11). The
award must be entered on the Contracts
Register. All awards over £20,000 must have a
Contract Finder Award Notice - consult
Welland Procurement.

Signing: Contract signed by relevant Business
Manager/Director (Rule 7.12) unless sealing
applies (Rule 13.11).

Between £75,000
and relevant
Public
Procurement
Threshold

Welland Procurement must
be instructed.

Notices Required: Find a
Tender Service Advertising and
Award notices. (Rule 8).

Method: A single stage (open)
tender is required. Tenders at
this level are run via Welland
Procurement’s e-tendering
system, or use of an approved
framework.

Governance Process: Unless prior budgetary
provision has been approved all contracts with
a total value of £150,000 (revenue) and
£300,000 (capital) must not be awarded without
it having followed the Key Decision process.
Key Decisions can be made by the relevant
Portfolio Holder or Cabinet. If matter is high risk,
politically or financially sensitive it should be
made by Cabinet — please liaise with the
relevant Director. All contracts must be on the
Forward Plan for at least 28 days before the
decision to award can be taken (at a Cabinet
meeting or by decision notice). Once the
decision notice is signed, there is a call-in
period of 3 days which will have to pass before
the Contract can be awarded.

Finance process: Must be within budget. Once
awarded a Purchase Order must be raised.
Purchase Orders can be authorised by a
Director in accordance with the Budget and
Policy Framework.

Legal Process: Decision Notice required.
Forward Plan timelines to be considered.
Contract must be sealed (Rule 15.11).

Agenda Page 126




NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E41
APPENDIX B
Signing: The relevant Business
Manager/Director must instruct the legal
business unit to seal the contract (Rule 15.11).
Over relevant Welland Procurement must | Governance Process: Unless prior budgetary
Public be instructed. provision has been approved all contracts with
Procurement a total value of £150,000 (revenue) and
Threshold Notices Required: Find a | £300,000 (capital) must not be awarded without
Tender Service Advertising and | it having followed the Key Decision process.
Award notices (Rule 10). The decision should normally be made by
Cabinet. All contracts must be on the Forward
Method: A method defined by | Plan for at least 28 days before the decision to
Public Procurement Legislation | award can be taken (at a Cabinet meeting or by
. Tenders at this level are run | decision notice). Once the decision notice is
via Welland Procurement’s e- | signed, there is a call-in period of 3 days which
tendering system, or use of an | will have to pass before the Contract can be
approved framework awarded. Please liaise with Democratic
Services for support.
Finance process: Must be within budget. Once
awarded a Purchase Order must be raised.
Purchase Orders can be authorised by a
Director in accordance with the Budget and
Policy Framework.
Legal Process: Decision Notice required.
Forward Plan timelines to be considered.
Contract must be sealed (Rule 15.11).
Signing: The relevant Director must instruct
the legal business unit to seal the contract (Rule
15.11).
Market Welland Procurement must | Governance Process: All engagement with
engagement be instructed prior to any |the market (irrespective of value) needs to be
market engagement. completed through the Find a Tender service.
Notices Required: Market
engagement process (UK2)
must be completed for any
market engagement
Method: Discussion  with
Welland Procurement
regarding approaching the
market and the mandatory
notices.Find a Tender Service
2 Roles and Responsibilities

Officers

Agenda Page 127




NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E42

APPENDIX B
2.1  The Officer responsible for the procurement must comply with these Contract

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Procedure Rules and the Financial Regulations. The Officer is also responsible
for ensuring that any Agents acting on behalf of the Council do so in compliance
with these Rules and must seek written confirmation of their agreement. Wilful
or negligent breach of these Rules will be deemed to amount to gross
misconduct and treated as a disciplinary matter

As part of the service planning process Officers are expected to highlight all
required procurement support through the annual Procurement Service Plan in
advance of the next financial year.

Officers are responsible for the contracting activity, and must ensure:

(@) Continued compliance with the Council’s requirements;

(b) Value for money;

(c) Compliance with these Rules as well as any legal and statutory
requirements;

(d) Compliance with any relevant Council policy; and

(e) Contracts are signed/sealed before the commencement of any Works,
Services or Goods delivered (unless prior written approval is given by the
Chief Executive, the Section 151 Officer, and the relevant Director — these
Officers must consider the risks and any mitigation of risk before giving
approval).

The Officer is responsible for ensuring the Welland Procurement Unit are aware
of the timescales for upcoming procurement work, especially for contracts in
excess of £75,000, or requiring an open process, in sufficient time.

The Officer must have regard to the guidance contained in the Procurement
Toolkit which can be accessed via the procurement portal.

Before beginning a commercial activity the Officer responsible for it must carry

out an appraisal and consider:

e The requirements from any relevant Best Value or other review;

e The need for the expenditure and its priority e.g., has a business case been
developed which sets out the service objectives, the criteria for evaluation
and the options for delivery;

e Defining the objectives of the purchase;

e The risks associated with the purchase over its life and how to manage
them;

e What procurement method is most likely to achieve the purchasing
objectives, including internal or external sourcing, and collaboration with
other purchasers;

e |If a contract has already been let by the Council for the benefit of Council
staff, and whether it would be suitable to make of this;

e If a suitable framework exists, and whether it would be suitable to call off of
it;

Agenda Page 128


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E43
APPENDIX B

2.7

2.8

2.9

e Consulting users as appropriate about the proposed procurement method,
contract standards, and performance and user satisfaction monitoring; and
e Selecting the most appropriate procurement method.

The Procuring Officer's approach to the appraisal tasks should be proportionate
to the complexity, risks, and value of the procurement.

The Officer must keep the records detailed in these Rules.

The requirements for the various procurement procedures (based on total
value) are detailed below. Where a procedure is required that would be above
the Public Procurement threshold (in terms of total value), the Officer must
contact Welland Procurement before embarking on the procurement.

Officers must take all necessary legal, financial, and other professional advice
(e.g., HR, Comms etc.) and ensure the necessary decisions are in place before
embarking upon any procurement process. Please speak to the Business
Manager — Elections and Democratic Services for any queries relating to
approvals.

2.9.1 Officers will need to ensure they have the relevant budget approved and
available prior to embarking upon a procurement process. Budget
approval ensures you have provision to fund any commitment within your
own budget, and where sufficient budget isn’t available the additional
required funding has been sought and approved via members or
delegated decision via the Section 151 Officer to access funding from
reserves. Further information on this (and the process) can be found
within the Financial Procedure Regulations; if in doubt, please speak to
the Budget Holder or the Business Manager — Financial Services. This
will provide you with your permission to procure.

2.9.2 Officers must ensure that, where they are anticipating engaging with
Welland procurement, procurement documentation is provided to
Welland in a timely fashion to ensure correct scrutiny together with
information to the Legal Business Unit.

2.9.2.1 For contracts with a total value under £75,000, Welland must be
engaged with at least four weeks in advance and then the final
agreed procurement documentation (agreed with Welland) must
be received at least three working days prior to the publication
date. Contractual information should be passed to the Legal
Business Unit as soon as is feasibly possible, but as a minimum
two weeks prior to the publication date.

2.9.2.2 For contracts with a total value above £75,000, Welland must be
engaged with as part of the pre-procurement process and a
timeline will be developed alongside Welland. Contractual
information should be passed to the Legal Business Unit as soon
as is feasibly possible, but as a minimum two weeks prior to the

Agenda Page 129



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E44
APPENDIX B
publication date to ensure that the Ts&Cs are completed prior to

publication.

2.9.2.3 For contracts above the current goods and services Public
Procurement Threshold, Welland must be part of the project
team and be involved in the review of the specification.
Contractual information should be passed to the Legal Business
Unit as soon as is feasibly possible, but as a minimum two weeks
prior to the publication date to ensure that the Ts&Cs are
completed prior to publication.

2.10 The provisions of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006 (TUPE) apply to a relevant business transfer where the
transferor (incumbent supplier) has a dedicated team of employee(s) that carry
out the service activity that is to be transferred. In practice this will often apply
where a Council service is:

e ‘out-sourced’

e brought back ‘in-house’ / in-sourced

e where a contract that former Council employees are undertaking comes up
for renewal and is awarded again to the same supplier or to a new supplier

e transferred from one external organisation to another

e TUPE is also likely to apply where a supplier who has been awarded a
contract subsequently awards or sub-contracts all or part of it to another
supplier, whilst retaining the contract with the main client

TUPE can apply irrespective of whether there has been a formal procurement
exercise or not. Officers must ask the current Supplier whether or not any
employee of the Council or of the Supplier may be affected by any transfer
arrangement (TUPE). Where this is relevant, the Officer must ensure that the
Transfer of Undertaking (Protection of Employment) issues are considered and
obtain relevant advice before undertaking the procurement process. This will
include liaising with Nottinghamshire County Council where any employee of
the Council or of the Supplier is a member of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS). Guidance on whether TUPE applies must be referred to
Human Resources or Legal services in the first instance, before proceeding, so
that the scope of any legal obligations may be identified. If TUPE does apply
this must be factored into the procurement strategy / plan and timescales.

Suppliers must seek their own legal guidance on the application of TUPE; the
Council must not offer any such advice. The Council’s only involvement with
TUPE is to facilitate through the provision of TUPE information; it must not get
involved in other TUPE related matters.

‘TUPE Information’ templates are available on the Welland procurement portal.
This information will need to be completed by the current supplier which Officers
will issue to the market as part of the procurement documentation on which
potential suppliers are invited to bid. This information must be gathered prior to
going out to market, and Officers would need to review the information to ensure
it has been anonymised (TUPE information is confidential — please discuss with
Welland Procurement whether TUPE information should published with the
tender pack, or to individual bidders, subject to the return of TUPE

Agenda Page 130



http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E45
APPENDIX B

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Confidentiality Agreement), and whether or not there are any LGPS (Local
Government Pension Scheme) members. Officers can refer to the Procurement
Toolkit available on the Welland Procurement portal for guidance on
considerations for LGPS members.

Officers must ensure that the contracts for which they are responsible for are
effectively managed and monitored to ensure they deliver the requirement as
intended. This must be in line with the Contract Management toolkit which is
available on the Intranet.

It is the Officer’s responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful suppliers,
both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract. Where contracts
are over the current goods and service or works Public Procurement threshold
a credit check must be completed on the potential supplier. This must be
facilitated through the Financial Services Business Unit or Welland
Procurement. Where the score is below 50, the Section 151 Officer must be
consulted prior to the award of the contract.

Where an Officer has a potential conflict of interest within a procurement
process, the Officer must declare this immediately to the relevant Director and
Monitoring Officer and Welland Procurement. The Officer may be required to
withdraw from the procurement process. Any Officer who fails to declare such
a conflict of interest may be subject to disciplinary proceedings and sanctions.

A ‘Conflict of Interest Declaration — Confidentiality Agreement’ form can be
obtained from the procurement portal.

Officers must ensure details of bidders and their submissions are kept
confidential (subject to Freedom of Information considerations).

Officers shall complete the Council’s electronic Contract Register (to record all
approved exemptions and contracts with an estimated total value of £5,000 and
above including any changes over the contract life e.g., extensions).

Officers shall notify Welland Procurement of any contracts awarded with an
estimated total value of £20,000 and above (including any changes over the
contract life e.g., extensions), so that a Find a Tender Service Award Notice can
be published.

Senior Leadership Team
The Senior Leadership Team must ensure that staff are aware of their
responsibilities under these Rules, receive adequate training and guidance and

that they and their Officers comply with these Rules at all times.

The Senior Leadership Team should facilitate Value for Money being achieved
in all procurements.

Agenda Page 131


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E46

APPENDIX B
2.19 The Senior Leadership Team must ensure that they have in place a scheme of

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

3.1

4.1

delegation that records in writing what action Officers are authorised to take
under these Rules.

In the interests of forward planning, the Senior Leadership Team should
facilitate the process of preparing, maintaining, and reviewing a rolling schedule
in respect of procurement activities with a total value over £75,000.

The Senior Leadership Team is responsible for ensuring a process is in place
so that the Council’'s Contracts Register is updated as required following
procurement activity.

Where an Officer within the Senior Leadership Team has a potential conflict of
interest within a procurement process, the Officer must declare this immediately
to the relevant Director and Monitoring Officer. The Officer may be required to
withdraw from the procurement process. Any Officer who fails to declare such
a conflict of interest may be subject to disciplinary proceedings and sanctions.

A ‘Conflict of Interest Declaration — Confidentiality Agreement’ form can be
obtained from the procurement portal.

Ensure that all completed contracts are passed to the Legal Business Unit for
safe keeping.

Non-Compliance with these Rules

Where an Officer becomes aware of any non-compliance with these Rules
(which cannot be remedied), they must declare this to the relevant Director and
Monitoring Officer.

Total Value

Total Value is the maximum potential contract value. This is an estimation of the
annual value, multiplied by the maximum contract length (including any
extensions). This calculation is to be used for contracts that fall under the
Procurement Act 2023. All references to “value” within these Rules refer to Total
Value and those values must be estimated and calculated in accordance with
the rules governing estimating the valuate of a contract under Schedule 3 of the
Procurement Act 2023.

Where a proposed work or provision of services may result in contracts being
awarded in the form of separate lots, account shall be taken of the total
estimated value of all such lots. Where the aggregate value of the lots is equal
to or greater than the relevant Public Procurement Threshold. Please speak to
Welland Procurement for further guidance on aggregation.

4.1.1 For works contracts, the calculation of the estimated value shall take
account of both the cost of the works and the total estimated value of the

Agenda Page 132


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2023/54/schedule/3

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E47
APPENDIX B

4.2

4.3

4.4

supplies and services that are made available to the contractor by the
Council if they are necessary for executing the works.

4.1.2 For services contracts which do not indicate a total price, the basis for
calculating the estimated contract value shall be based on the total
estimated cost over the full contract period.

4.1.3 For the appointment of consultants, the Estimated Total Contract Value
shall be calculated using the requisite rate for the consultant, multiplied
be the total duration of the assignment required to complete all the
specified activities and deliverables of the consultant for their entire
appointment. Any change in scope of the assignment would require
additional procurement.

For Concessions contracts (where the supplier makes money from the right
given by the Council to provide), contract values are based on what it is worth
to the supplier or the cost the Council would incur to provide the contract. The
Total Value for these contracts shall be the total turnover of the concessionaire
generated over the duration of the contract, as estimated by the Council,
considering:

(a) the value of any form of option and any extension of the duration of the
concession contract;

(b) revenue from the payment of fees and fines by the users of the works or
services other than those collected on behalf of the Council;

(c) payments or any other financial advantages, in any form, from the Council
to the concessionaire, including compensation for compliance with a public
service obligation and public investment subsidies;

(d) the value of grants or any other financial advantages, in any form, from third
parties for the performance of the concession contract;

(e) revenue from sales of any assets which are part of the concession contract;

(f) the value of all the supplies and services that are made available to the
concessionaire by the Council, provided that they are necessary for
executing the works or providing the services;

(g) any prizes or payment.

Contracts shall not be subdivided with the effect of preventing it from falling
within the scope of these Rules, thresholds, or any relevant Procurement Act
2023 and accompanying Regulations.

Re-occurring Contracts shall not be put in place with the effect of preventing it
from falling within the scope of these Rules, thresholds, or any relevant Public
Procurement Legislation. Spend must be aggregated where it is appropriate to
do so, whether that is within Council departments, or across multiple
departments for the same scope of work; to ensure value for money is achieved
and reduce the duplication of work. Examples of where aggregate spend would
be appropriate includes (but is not limited to):

e One department spot purchasing similar pieces of work on a regular basis

throughout the financial year;

Agenda Page 133



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E48
APPENDIX B

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.1

5.2

6.1

e Multiple Council departments purchasing the same services under different
contracts; and

e Individual contracts being kept under a certain threshold to avoid
procurement obligations within these Rules (e.g. annual renewals of
contracts).

It is the responsibility of each individual Officer to review the contracts register
prior to entering into any contract, to understand if the Council is already in a
contractual relationship in relation to the proposed goods/services/work. If the
Council is, then the Officer would need to investigate whether the contract
covers their own requirement, or if there is scope for variation in the current
contract. Please speak to Welland Procurement and Legal to ensure contractual
and procurement compliance.

Where the Council may be contributing only part of the total value of a contract,

it is nevertheless the Estimated Total Contract Value that should be applied in

determining the correct procedures to be applied under these Rules. Examples

of where this would be appropriate includes (but is not limited to):

e Collaborations between departments within the Council;

e Collaboration between the Council and at least one other Contracting
Authority; and

e Where the Council is only part funding a project, in partnership with another
funding source.

In the event that the estimated Total Contract Value is below the Public
Procurement Threshold, and following a quotation process the proposed
winning bidder’s Total Bid Value exceeds the relevant Public Procurement
Threshold, the Officer must not award the contract without consulting with
Welland Procurement and Legal as to the risks associated with awarding the
contract.

Contract Term

The term of a Contract must not exceed five years in total (including any
potential extension options), without the written approval of the relevant service
Director. This must be gained prior to the procurement process commencing.
Framework agreements must not exceed four years. Call-off contracts based
on framework agreements may be longer than four years and may extend
beyond the expiry date of the framework.

Procurements Valued Under £10,000

Officers will need to ensure they have the relevant budget approved and
available prior to embarking upon a procurement process.

Agenda Page 134



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E49

APPENDIX B
6.2  Council Officers may decide it is appropriate to reserve contracts for services at

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

7.2

7.3

this value to the local area (county) or SME’s/voluntary sector. Please refer to
the appropriate guidance in this document (and consult Welland Procurement)
before any reservations are made.

Where the contract has a total value below £10,000, Officers are required to
seek at least one written quotation (email is acceptable). Value for money
remains a primary objective and so Officers may decide to seek more than one
quotation to ensure that objective is achieved.

Quotations can be submitted via email, preferably in PDF format to prevent
tampering or accusations thereof; the onus will be on the bidder to make this
decision. Quotations are not to be “opened” prior to the deadline for return (not
applicable if only one quote is being sought).

The quotation(s) must be received before any order is processed and must
include the following information:

(&) A description of the goods, services or works to be supplied;

(b)  When and where they will be supplied;

(c) The total value of the requirement; and

(d) Paymentterms.

The Contract or Purchase Order must be approved/signed by the relevant
Budget Holder in accordance with budget authorisation limits (as outlined in the
Financial Procedure Rules) via the Council’'s Corporate Financial System
(electronic Purchase Order).

If a Council Officer or Supplier needs to sign contract documentation
electronically, please speak to Legal Services for advice and guidance on the
use of electronic signatures.

Where the value of the contract is £5,000 and above, the resultant contract must
be added to the Contract Register to ensure compliance with Transparency
Regulations.

Itis the Officer’s responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful suppliers,
both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract.

Procurements Valued Between £10,000 and £74,999

Officers will need to ensure they have the relevant budget approved and
available prior to embarking upon a procurement process.

Council Officers may decide it is appropriate to reserve contracts for services at
this value to the local area (county) or SME’s/voluntary sector. Please refer to
the appropriate guidance in this document (and consult Welland Procurement)
before any reservations are made.

Where the contract has a total value between £10,000 and £74,999 at least
three comparable quotations must be sought in writing (email is acceptable),
with at least two quotations being sought from locally based suppliers. Where
local quotations cannot be sought the Officer must keep a written record of the

Agenda Page 135


file:///X:/Cttee,%20Council%20&amp;%20Sub%20Cttees/Council/2021%2022/01%20-%20260521%20-%20Annual%20Meeting/Reports/Appendix%20A%20%20Contract%20Procedure%20Rules%20Update.docx%23reserve
file:///X:/Cttee,%20Council%20&amp;%20Sub%20Cttees/Council/2021%2022/01%20-%20260521%20-%20Annual%20Meeting/Reports/Appendix%20A%20%20Contract%20Procedure%20Rules%20Update.docx%23reserve

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E50
APPENDIX B

7.4

7.5

7.6

1.7

reason. Those quotations can be invited from identified suppliers as advertising
Is not mandatory. If the Council chooses to advertise a quotation opportunity for
any reason, the officer should contact Welland Procurement for assistance with
this.

Where Welland are instructed to support the procurement, the Officer must
complete a Procurement Initiation Document (PID), available on the
procurement portal, prior to the commencement of the procurement process (at
pre-procurement stage).

It is recommended that the Request for Quotation Template document is used
which can be obtained from the procurement portal. In any case the criteria for
selecting the most advantageous quotation must be established before the
guotations are invited and be made clear in the procurement documentation.
The quotations must contain (as a minimum):

(&) A specification (covering the goods, services or works to be supplied, the
“‘where” and “when” they are to be supplied, and any relevant performance
and contract management details)

(b) Instructions to bidders:

a. Evaluation criteria

b. How to respond

c. How clarification messages are to be asked (who sent to, any
deadlines for messages)

d. Information bidders need to include within response

e. Deadline for responses (day and time); and

f.  The short form terms and conditions to be applied (please contact the
Legal Business Unit for details).

In some instances, Officers may need to consider TUPE implications.

Where fewer than three potential suppliers can be identified, the Officer must
keep a written record of the reason and all potential suppliers should be invited
to quote. It is accepted that the Officer may receive fewer than three quotations
even where three or more suppliers have been invited to quote.

The Procurement Act 2023 introduces statutory rules specifying conditions of
participation and the new mandatory and discretionary grounds for excluding
suppliers (including at section 29, on the grounds of national security) and the
introduction of the Government’s debarment list including the actions that the
Council must take if it decides to exclude a supplier from a procurement in
reliance on one of the exclusion grounds.

As part of the procurement process (quotation), potential bidders can seek
clarification on either the information published or the process itself.

The nature of any clarification or response from the Council must not materially
change the scope/substance of the requirement. If it does, Officers may need
to abandon the process and restart, using revised documentation. Please
discuss this with Welland Procurement.

Agenda Page 136


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E51
APPENDIX B

7.8

7.9

7.10

e All requests for clarification and questions relating to the quote (and its
associated documents) must be submitted as per the instruction document
(via email or the eTendering system)

e The Council must respond to all clarifications as soon as possible (via email
or the eTendering system)

e A copy of all requests for clarifications and the responses must be
anonymised and published to all potential bidders (who have either been
invited to quote, or have expressed an interest in the quote) where the
clarification and response are not considered confidential

¢ If a potential bidder wishes the Council to treat a clarification as confidential
and therefore not publish the response to all, it must state this when
submitting the clarification. If in the opinion of the Council, the clarification is
not confidential, the Council will publish it in an anonymised format

e Officers must state a deadline for receipt of clarifications

e Officers must keep a record of communications between potential bidders
and the Council

Unless it is part of a clarification and the above is observed, Officers must not:
e Contact suppliers/potential bidders
e Send information to suppliers/potential bidders

If a supplier/potential bidder contacts an Officer, they should advise them that
messages must be submitted as per the instruction document; via email or the
eTendering system.

Quotations can be submitted via email, preferably in PDF format to prevent
tampering or accusations thereof; the onus will be on the bidder to make this
decision. Quotations are not to be “opened” prior to the deadline for return, if
one is given.

The Officer must keep copies of the Council’'s procurement documentation as
well as copies of all quotations received and any communication between the
Council and the successful bidder.

Evaluation of the quotations received must be carried out using the evaluation
criteria identified in the procurement documentation. Any subjective evaluation
(such as quality) must be carried out independently by a minimum of two
evaluators (preferably three), and then moderated by an independent moderator
to reach a final agreed score. The evaluators should be fully briefed on the
evaluation process. The ‘Conflict of Interest Declaration — Confidentiality
Agreement’ on the procurement portal gives further guidance on evaluation
principles and best practice; it is advisable to ask all evaluators to complete,
sign and return this document to the Council lead. Welland Procurement can
act as the independent moderator but cannot undertake any scoring.
Clarification questions may be asked where responses would not result in a
material change of the bid received.

Agenda Page 137


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E52
APPENDIX B

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Award of the Contract

The contract or terms and conditions must be signed by the Business Manager
for the relevant Business Unit or an available Director,. This will act as the
approval to award the contract.

If a Council Officer or Supplier needs to sign contract documentation
electronically, please speak to the Legal Business Unit for advice and guidance
on the use of electronic signatures.

The resultant contract must be added to the Council’s Contract Register to
ensure compliance with Transparency Regulations. Officers must then provide
the Legal Business Unit with any paper copies of the Contract for the
subsequent storage and safe keeping.

An award notice is required on Find a Tender Service for all Contracts with a
total value of £20,000 or above. Welland Procurement is responsible for such
award notices. If an Officer has managed the procurement process without
assistance from Welland Procurement, they must formally advise them of the
award details, so that they can publish the award notice.

It is the Officer’s responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful suppliers,
both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract. This must follow
the process as set out at paragraph 2.12.

Procurements Valued between £75,000 relevant national public
procurement threshold

Officers will need to ensure they have the budget available prior to embarking
upon a procurement process (as per 2.9 of this document).

Council Officers may decide it is appropriate to reserve contracts for services at
this value to the local area (county) or SME’s/voluntary sector. Please refer to
the appropriate guidance in this document (and consult Welland Procurement)
before any reservations are made.

Welland Procurement must be notified in respect of all contracts with a total
value between £75,000 and the relevant national Public Procurement
Threshold. Welland will be able to advise on the most appropriate route to
market.

Where Welland are instructed to support the procurement, the Officer must
complete a Procurement Initiation Document (PID), available on the
procurement portal, prior to the commencement of the procurement process (at
pre-procurement stage).

The procurement must be advertised on Find a Tender Service, Welland
Procurement is responsible for managing this advertising.

Agenda Page 138


file:///X:/Cttee,%20Council%20&amp;%20Sub%20Cttees/Council/2021%2022/01%20-%20260521%20-%20Annual%20Meeting/Reports/Appendix%20A%20%20Contract%20Procedure%20Rules%20Update.docx%23reserve
http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E53

8.6

8.7

8.8

APPENDIX B

The procurement will be managed using an electronic tendering system; the
Officer must therefore contact Welland Procurement to access that system.

Council Officers must conduct the Tender process using Welland
Procurement’s templated procurement documents (unless agreed otherwise by
the Head of Welland Procurement). Open Tender Document One must be used
to ensure that the required Standard Suitability Questions are used. The Officer
must ensure that all relevant procurement documents are finalised before the
procurement is advertised, these will include at least the Specification, Long
Form Terms and Conditions of Contract (please speak to the Legal Business
Unit to source this), TUPE information (where applicable) and pricing & quality
evaluation criteria.

The specification must cover the scope of the requirement i.e., the goods,
services or works to be supplied, the “where” and “when” they are to be supplied
as well as any relevant performance and contract management details. A
template is available on the procurement portal.

As part of the procurement process (tender), potential bidders can seek
clarification on either the information published or the process itself.

The nature of any clarification or response from the Council must not materially

change the scope/substance of the requirement. If it does, Officers may need

to abandon the process and restart, using revised documentation. Please
discuss this with Welland Procurement.

e All requests for clarification and questions relating to the tender (and its
associated documents) must be submitted as per the instruction document
(the eTendering system)

e The Council must respond to all clarifications as soon as possible (the
eTendering system)

e A copy of all requests for clarifications and the responses must be
anonymised and published to all potential bidders (who have expressed an
interest in the tender) where the clarification and response are not considered
confidential

e If a potential bidder wishes the Council to treat a clarification as confidential
and therefore not publish the response to all, it must state this when
submitting the clarification. If in the opinion of the Council, the clarification is
not confidential, the Council will publish it in an anonymised format

e Officers must state a deadline for receipt of clarifications

e Officers must keep a record of communications between potential bidders
and the Council

Unless it is part of a clarification and the above is observed, Officers must not:

e Contact suppliers/potential bidders
e Send information to suppliers/potential bidders

Agenda Page 139


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E54
APPENDIX B

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

If a supplier/potential bidder contacts an Officer, they should advise them that
messages must be submitted as per the instruction document; via the
eTendering system.

Tenders will be received via the electronic tendering system. An Officer or a
representative of Welland Procurement will be responsible for opening tenders.

Tenders must be evaluated in accordance with the advertised evaluation
criteria, clarification questions may be asked as long as the response would not
have the effect of materially changing the tender received. Any subjective
evaluation (such as quality) must be carried out independently by a minimum of
two evaluators (preferably three), and then moderated by an independent
moderator to reach a final agreed score. The evaluators should be fully briefed
on the evaluation process. The ‘Conflict of Interest Declaration — Confidentiality
Agreement’ on the procurement portal gives further guidance on evaluation
principles and best practice; this form must be completed, signed, and returned
to the procurement lead. Welland Procurement can act as the independent
moderator but cannot undertake any scoring.

All tenders in this category must be evaluated online through the eTendering
system portal.

The bidder with the highest evaluation score will be awarded the contract. If this
IS not the case, the advice of Welland Procurement must be sought prior to
award. The contracting Officer must perform due diligence on the supplier prior
to the signing of the contract in accordance with paragraph 2.12 above.

All bidders must be notified of the Award decision simultaneously in writing (via
the Council’s electronic tendering system) by the Officer (or the Welland
Procurement Unit), whether or not their bid was successful.

As the contract will require sealing, please see Section 13.11 below, the
relevant Business Manager/Director must give the approval to award the
contract to the Legal Business Unit

The resultant contract must be added to the Council’s Contract Register to
ensure compliance with Transparency Regulations. Officers must then provide
the Legal Business Unit with any signed paper copies of the Contract for the
subsequent storage and safe keeping.

The Officer must keep the following records for 6 years:

(@) A-record of all decisions from pre to post procurement;

(b) The method of obtaining tenders;

(c) Tender documents produced by the Council;

(d) Tenders received from bidders. The successful tender should be retained
for at least the life of the contract. Unsuccessful tenders should be retained
for the first 12 months of the contract;

(e) A written record of the evaluation;

(f)  Arecord of the Award approval;

Agenda Page 140


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E55
APPENDIX B

8.18

8.19

8.20

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

(g) A signed copy of the Contract which should retained for the life of the
contract and in normal circumstances for 6 years thereafter; and
(h) Communications to and from bidders during the procurement process.

Where an Agent has managed the procurement on behalf of the Council, the
Officer must ensure that the above documents are returned to the Council upon
completion of the process and stored as detailed in clause 8.17 above.

An award notice is required on Find a Tender Service; Welland Procurement is
responsible for such award notices. If an Officer has managed the procurement
process without assistance from Welland Procurement, they must formally
advise them of the award details, so that they can publish the award notice.

It is the Officer’s responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful suppliers,
both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract.

Procurements for Works Contracts Valued above the relevant national
public procurement threshold

Officers will need to ensure they have the budget available prior to embarking
upon a procurement process (as per 2.9 of this document).

Welland Procurement must be instructed for all procurements with a total value
above the national procurement threshold. Welland will be able to advise on the
most appropriate route to market.

Officers will need to ensure they have the budget available prior to embarking
upon a procurement process (as per 2.9 of this document).

Where Welland are instructed to support the procurement, the Officer must
complete a Procurement Initiation Document (PID), available on the
procurement portal, prior to the commencement of the procurement process (at
pre-procurement stage).

The procurement must be advertised on Find a Tender Service, Welland
Procurement is responsible for managing this advertising.

The procurement will be managed using an electronic tendering system; the
Officer must therefore contact Welland Procurement to access that system.

Council Officers must conduct the Tender process using Welland
Procurement’s templated procurement documents (unless agreed otherwise by
the Head of Welland Procurement). Open Tender Document One must be used
to ensure that the required Standard Suitability Questions are used. The Officer
must ensure that all relevant procurement documents are finalised before the
procurement is advertised, these will include at least the Specification, Long
Form Terms and Conditions of Contract (please speak to the Legal Business
Unit to source this), TUPE information (where applicable) and evaluation
criteria.

Agenda Page 141


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E56
APPENDIX B

9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

The specification must cover the scope of the requirement i.e., the goods,
services or works to be supplied, the “where” and “when” they are to be supplied
as well as any relevant performance and contract management details. A
template is available on the procurement portal.

Tenders will be received via the electronic tendering system. An Officer or a
representative of Welland Procurement will be responsible for opening the
tenders.

As part of the procurement process (tender), potential bidders can seek
clarification on either the information published or the process itself. This must
be conducted as per 8.8 of this document.

Tenders must be evaluated in accordance with the advertised weighted
evaluation criteria, clarification questions may be asked as long as the response
would not have the effect of materially changing the tender received. Any
subjective evaluation (such as quality) must be carried out independently by a
minimum of two evaluators (preferably three), and then moderated by an
independent moderator to reach a final agreed score. The evaluators should be
fully briefed on the evaluation process. The ‘Conflict of Interest Declaration —
Confidentiality Agreement’ on the procurement portal gives further guidance on
evaluation principles and best practice; this form must be completed, signed,
and returned to the procurement lead. Welland Procurement can act as the
independent moderator but cannot undertake any scoring.

All tenders in this category must be evaluated online through the eTendering
system.

The bidder with the highest evaluation score will be awarded the contract. If this
IS not the case, the advice of Welland Procurement must be sought prior to
award. The contracting Officer must perform due diligence on the supplier prior
to the signing of the contract in accordance with paragraph 2.12 above.

All bidders must be notified of the Award decision simultaneously in writing (via
the Council’s electronic tendering system) by the Officer (or the Welland
Procurement Unit), whether or not their bid was successful.

As the contract will require sealing, please see Section 13.11 below, the
relevant Director must give the approval to award the contract to the Legal
Business Unit

The details of the resultant contract must be added to the Council’s Contract
Register to ensure compliance with Transparency Regulations. Officers must

Agenda Page 142


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E57
APPENDIX B

9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

then provide the Legal Business Unit with any signed paper copies of the
Contract for the subsequent storage and safe keeping.

The Officer must keep the following records:

(@) A-record of all decisions from pre to post procurement;

(b) The method of obtaining tenders;

(c) Tender documents produced by the Council;

(d) Tenders received from bidders. The successful tender should be retained
for at least the life of the contract. Unsuccessful tenders should be retained
for the first 12 months of the contract;

(e) A written record of the evaluation;

()  Arecord of the Award approval;

(g) A signed copy of the Contract which should retained for the life of the
contract and in normal circumstances for 6 years thereafter; and

(h) Communications to and from bidders during the procurement process.

Where an Agent has managed the procurement on behalf of the Council, the
Officer must ensure that the above documents are returned to the Council upon
completion of the process and stored as detailed in clause 9.16 above.

An award notice is required on Find a Tender Service; Welland Procurement is
responsible for such award notices. If an Officer has managed the procurement
process without assistance from Welland Procurement, they must formally
advise them of the award details, so that they can publish the award notice.

Itis the Officer’s responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful suppliers,
both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract.

Purchasing from a Framework Agreement or Dynamic Purchasing System
(DPS)

Officers will need to ensure they have the relevant budget approved and
available prior to embarking upon a procurement process. This approval will be
from the Budget Holder, in accordance with budget authorisation limits (as
outlined in the Financial Procedure Rules). Please see 2.9.1 for further
information. Officers also need to speak to their Business Manager about any
further approvals required outside of these Rules. Approval to procure must be
obtained as per 2.9 of this document.

Welland Procurement must be notified in respect of all contracts with a total
value above £75,000 irrespective of whether the officer is expecting to procure
via a framework or DPS. Welland will be able to advise on the most appropriate
route to market.

A contract of any value can be procured via a framework agreement or DPS.
Compliance with these Rules and relevant national law is achieved through
compliance with the framework agreement/DPS terms and conditions. This will
involve:

e reviewing relevant Framework/DPS guidance document(s)

Agenda Page 143



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E58
APPENDIX B

e reviewing the correct process for call off (which may be through further
competition or direct award)

e following the stated call off process, as laid out in the Framework/DPS
documentation

Officers must ensure they are fully conversant with the eligibility of the Council
to use the framework, as stated within the Framework Agreement. If these Rules
are not sufficiently detailed for the Officer to be assured of the eligibility and
requisite process, they must engage with Welland Procurement to seek advice
on the validity of the Framework Agreement.

As part of the procurement process (call off), potential bidders can seek
clarification on either the information published or the process itself. This must
be conducted as per 8.8 of this document.

10.4 For the avoidance of doubt, a framework agreement or DPS is considered a
compliant procurement route where:
(@) It has been entered into by the Council in compliance with these Rules; or
(b) Another contracting authority, purchasing consortium or Central
Government has tendered the framework agreement or DPS in
compliance with national procurement law and the Council is named as a
potential user of the arrangement.

10.5 It is recommended that the Further Competition Template document is used
which can be obtained from the procurement portal or Welland Procurement; if
template documentation is provided by the Framework/DPS Owner, Officers
can make use of this.

In any case the criteria for selecting the most advantageous submission must
be established before call offs submissions are invited and be made clear in the
procurement documentation. The call offs must contain (as a minimum):
(&) The goods, services or works to be supplied;
(b) The “where” and “when” they are to be supplied;
(c) Instructions to bidders:
() Evaluation criteria
(i) How to respond
(i) How clarification messages are to be asked (who sent to, any
deadlines for messages)
(iv) Information bidders need to include within response
(v) Deadline for responses (day and time); and
(vi) The terms and conditions to be applied to the call off (as per
Framework/DPS guidance document, please use the terms stated,
these must be agreed by Legal Services).

In some instances, Officers may need to consider TUPE implications.

10.6 Contract award must be approved as per 2.9 of this document.

Agenda Page 144


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E59

APPENDIX B
10.7 All bidders must be notified of the Award decision simultaneously in writing (via

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

the method used to run the procurement process i.e., email, ProContract or
other system used by the Framework/DPS owner) by the Officer (or the Welland
Procurement Unit or the Framework/DPS owner), whether or not their bid was
successful.

The contract must be signed/sealed in line with the appropriate Rule, dependent

on the total value of the contract.

e Procurements valued under £10,000 see Rule 6.6

e Procurements valued between £10,000 and £74,999 see Rule 7.12

e Procurements valued between £75,000 and Current Goods and Services
Public Procurement Threshold see Rule 8.15

e Procurements for Works Contracts Valued between the Goods and Services
Public Procurement Threshold and the Works Public Procurement Threshold
see Rule 9.14

e Procurements valued over the Relevant Public Procurement Threshold see
Rule 10.16

If a Council Officer or Supplier needs to sign contract documentation
electronically, please speak to the Legal Business Unit for advice and guidance
on the use of electronic signatures.

Where the Council is using an external framework, and the total value of the
contract is £5,000 or above, the resultant contract must be added to the Contract
Register to ensure compliance with Transparency Regulations.

Where the Council has set up a framework, only the framework is necessary to
be recorded on the register. It is not necessary to record the individual call-offs
from the framework.

Signed contracts that have a total value of £10,000 or more must be scanned
in. Officers must then provide the Legal Business Unit with any signed paper
copies of the Contract for the subsequent storage and safe keeping.

Where the contract has a total value of £20,000 or above an award notice is
required on Find a Tender Service. The Officer must formally advise Welland
Procurement of the award details, so that they can publish the award notice.

The Officer must keep the following records:

(@) A-record of all decisions from pre to post procurement;

(b) The method of obtaining tenders;

(c) Tender documents produced by the Council;

(d) Tenders received from bidders. The successful tender should be retained
for at least the life of the contract. Unsuccessful tenders should be retained
for the first 12 months of the contract;

(e) A written record of the evaluation;

(f)  Arecord of the Award approval;

(@) A signed copy of the Contract which should retained for the life of the
contract and in normal circumstances for 6 years thereafter; and

Agenda Page 145



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E60
APPENDIX B

(h) Communications to and from bidders during the procurement process.

10.13 Where an Agent has managed the procurement on behalf of the Council, the
Officer must ensure that the above documents are returned to the Council upon
completion of the process and stored as detailed in clause 11.15 above.

10.14 ltis the Officer’s responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful suppliers,
both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract.

11 Setting up a Framework Agreement/DPS

11.1 Where an officer feels a framework or DPS could be advantageous to the
Council, they should contact Welland Procurement in order to progress this
further.

12 Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 and Health Care Services

12.1  The Public Services (Social Value) Act requires people who commission public
services to think about how they can also secure wider social, economic, and
environmental benefits.

12.2  Before starting a procurement process, the Officer should think about whether
the services they are going to buy, or the way they are going to buy them,
could secure the above benefits for their area or stakeholders.

12.3 The Council must consider, in the form of a Social Value appraisal whilst
recognising the principal of proportionality;
(&) how what is proposed to be procured might improve the economic, social,
and environmental well-being of the relevant area, and
(b) how, in conducting the process of procurement, it might act with a view to
securing that improvement.

12.4  The Officer must consult Welland Procurement for advice on specifying
requirements under Social Value, and how to evaluate tenders against these
requirements. Further information and guidance is also available in the
Procurement Toolkit, which can be accessed via the procurement portal.

12,5 The Health Care Services (Provider Selection Regime) Regulations 2023
require that when procuring relevant Health Care Services, the it is expected
that the Council complies with those Regulations in that the Council must act
with a view to securing the needs of the people who use the services;
improving the quality of the services; and improving efficiency in the provision
of the services transparently, fairly and proportionately.

12.6  When acting with a view to the matters in paragraph 14.5, the lead officer may,
in consultation with Welland Procurement, consider the value of providing
services in an integrated way, including with other health care services, health-
related services or social care services.

Agenda Page 146


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E61
APPENDIX B

13 Other Matters to Consider
These Rules are relevant to all Contracts with a total value above £10,000.
13.1 Conflict of Interest

13.1.1 Clause 2.13 and 2.19 define when a conflict of interest must be declared.

13.1.2 For contracts with a total value of £75,000 or more, all Officers, Members and
other stakeholders involved in procuring for the Council must sign a
Declaration of Interest form at the start of the procurement process. This form
is available on the procurement portal.

For contract with a total value of between £10,000 and £75,000, it is advisable
that all Officers, Members, and other stakeholders involved in procuring for the
Council sign a Declaration of Interest form at the start of the procurement
process. This form is available on the procurement portal.

13.1.3 This form must be kept on file during the procurement itself and the contract
term.

13.1.4 Before publishing a tender or transparency notice, a conflicts assessment will
need to be prepared. This will need to be kept under review and revised as
necessary. When publishing certain notices, it will need to be confirmed that a
conflicts assessment has been prepared and revised accordingly.

13.2 Abnormally Low Bids

13.2.1 Under s 19(3)(c) of the Procurement Act 2023 , the Council may request an
explanation of the price or costs proposed in a tender where that price or those
costs appear to be abnormally low in relation to the requirement. However, the
Council may disregard any tender that it considers to be abnormally low for the
performance of the contract.

13.2.2 Advice should be sought from Welland Procurement during this investigation
process to ensure that the requirements of the Procurement Act 2023 are
adequately complied with.

13.3 Errors in Tenders

13.3.1 If itis identified that a bidder has made an error or omission that is “obvious”,
the Officer can request the bidder to correct this, as long as:
(a) the Section 151 Officer or the Chief Executive has given written approval,
and agrees that the error or omission was “obvious”;
(b) it has been determined that the bidder has gained no unfair advantage
from correcting the error or omission; and
(c) any such corrections are recorded, along with the approval decision.

13.4 Receiving Late Submissions

Agenda Page 147


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E62

APPENDIX B
13.4.1 Where a Tender/Quote has been received late (beyond the stated response

13.4.2

13.5

13.5.1

13.5.2

13.5.3

13.54

13.6

13.6.1

13.6.2

13.6.3

13.6.4

deadline), the Officer must get written approval to either accept or reject the
submission from the relevant Section 151 Officer or the Chief Executive before
opening any of the responses. Late submissions must only be accepted in
exceptional circumstances.

The Officer must record:

(a) the circumstances behind the late response;

(b) how late the response was received,;

(c) if any advantage could have been gained by the bidder in submitting the
late response (i.e., having longer to respond to the opportunity compared
with other bidders); and

(d) the Director’s decision to accept or reject the late response (based on the
above points).

Receiving Irregular Tenders

Irregular tenders are those that:

(a) do not comply with the terms of the tender documents (i.e., fail to supply
key information); or

(b) make reservations (i.e., if the pricing submitted contains conditions, when
these are explicitly prohibited within the tender documentation).

If the Officer receives an irregular Tender, they shall immediately report this to
the relevant Director.

The Director may accept the irregular tender if it has been determined that the
bidder has gained no unfair advantage from the irregularity.

Any acceptance or rejection of irregular tenders shall be recorded in writing.
UK GDPR Requirements

The UK General Data Protection Regulations impose greater obligations on
the Council to protect an individual’'s information.

Officers conducting a procurement process should ensure that the UK GDPR
screening questions, available from Welland Procurement, are completed as
early as possible in the planning stages of that procurement.

Should any of the UK GDPR screening questions be answered positively,
further advice must be sought from the Council’'s Data Protection Officer before
any further action is taken.

Officers shall consider the information governance requirements of the

contract if they anticipate any Personal Data is to be processed as part of the
contract e.g., data protection, security of information, records management.

Agenda Page 148



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E63

APPENDIX B
13.6.5 Where Personal Data may be processed as part of the contract, a Privacy

13.6.6

13.6.7

13.7

13.7.1

13.7.2

13.7.3

13.8

13.8.1

13.8.2

13.8.3

13.8.4

13.8.5

13.9

Impact Assessment tool shall be completed. This will help the Council identify
the most effective way to comply with their data protection obligations and
meet individuals' expectations of privacy.

Where requirements are identified by the Privacy Impact Assessment, the
Officer shall ensure that any requirements of contractors are considered and
built into the specification and assessed where necessary as part of the
evaluation.

Any queries relating to this should be directed to the Council’'s Data Protection
Officer.

Freedom of Information

The Council has specific obligations under the FOI Act 2000, regarding
disclosure of information. Officers have an obligation to record and maintain
accurate records relating to Contracts, as well as complying with FOI requests.

Bidders should be asked to identify any information they supply that is
confidential or commercially sensitive, and detail why they consider this the
case. This justification should be considered when responding to FOI requests.

Any queries relating to this should be directed to the Council’'s Data Protection
Officer.
Modern Slavery

The Council is committed to ensuring that modern slavery does not exist within
its supply chains.

All procurements with a total value of £75,000 or more are required to include
the Standard Selection Question regarding Modern Slavery Act compliance.

Where procurement is considered high risk in terms of modern slavery, for
example transport and waste related procurements, additional award
guestions should be considered with advice from Welland Procurement.

Where a supplier is required to comply with the Modern Slavery Act, i.e., their
turnover is above £36 million, that compliance should form part of the contract
management (as per 13.10).

A Modern Slavery Helpline is available on Tel: 08000 121 700 or online. The
Helpline provides information and advice about modern slavery, a 24-hour
telephone reporting line and an online reporting function through the website.

Safeguarding Provisions in Contracts and Grant Arrangements

Agenda Page 149


http://www.modernslaveryhelpline.org/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E64
APPENDIX B

13.9.1 Any service engaged by the Council should be provided based on agreed
terms or a contract. Safeguarding compliance should be included in all
arrangements. All services commissioned by the Council must operate within
the requirements of the Council’'s Safeguarding Policy and meet the relevant
legislative standards. Where appropriate, procuring officers will need to ensure
that contractors demonstrate that they meet these requirements.

13.9.2 Itis expected that the lead officer on any commissioning project be responsible
for ensuring that any contract includes proper provision for the safeguarding of
children, young people, and adults with care and support needs; this also
includes making reasonable requests for evidence from suppliers that the
requirements stated in the Safeguarding Policy (where applicable) are in place
or ready to be implemented. Where there is any confusion about the need for
the inclusion of safeguarding in a contract arrangement clarification and/or
advice should be sought from the Safeguarding Lead.

13.10 Due Diligence

13.10.1 1t is the Officer's responsibility to carry out due diligence on successful
suppliers, both at Contract Award, and for the duration of the Contract. This
will involve requesting, obtaining, and maintaining records (and asking for
appropriate evidence) of relevant due diligence, annual inspections, and any
future expiration/renewals. This should include (but not be limited to):

(a) Insurance certificates (new certificates to be requested upon expiry of the
individual insurance policy);
(b) Details as required by the selection/suitability criteria asked as part of the
procurement process (annually, upon anniversary of Contract start date):
i.  Supplier policies

Quality Management

e Environmental

Equality

Health and Safety

e Data protection/GDPR

ii. Licences/certificates/registrations
iii. Business continuity plans
iv. Required training (and updates for staff (Council and supplier)
v. Staff certifications/qualifications (Council and staff); and

(c) Afinancial appraisal, which must include a financial credit check and / or
a review of submitted financial information (as per the standard selection
guestionnaire). The request must be made to the Financial Services
Business Unit to perform the credit check. Where contracts are over the
current goods and service Public Procurement threshold a credit check
must be completed on the potential supplier. This must be facilitated
through the Financial Services Business Unit or Welland Procurement.
Where the score is below 50, the Section 151 Officer must be consulted
prior to the award of the contract.

13.10.2 Before the contract commences (and regularly throughout the duration of a
contract), contract managers should request and inspect key health and

Agenda Page 150



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E65
APPENDIX B

13.10.3

13.11

13.11.1

13.11.2

13.11.3

safety records to provide assurance that controls are operating effectively.
The frequency of requests and types of records to be reviewed should be
agreed and outlined as part of the procurement process. Records should
include but not be limited to:

Up to date Health and safety policies

Risk Assessments

COSHH assessment

Induction and training records

Fire safety logbooks (if applicable)

PAT certificates

Health and Safety inspections (as well as any actions arisen, and how they
are being followed up on, reviewed and regularly monitored) and whether
these are carried out by the Council or the supplier

e Accident reporting

Throughout the duration of the contract, Council Officer's must keep a record
(and ask for appropriate evidence) of relevant due diligence as well as any
future expiration/renewals.

Sealing a Contract
A contract must be sealed where:

13.11.1.1 The total value is over £75,000;

13.11.1.2 The Council wishes to enforce the contract for more than six
years after its expiry; or

13.11.1.3 The price paid or received under the contract is a nhominal price
and does not reflect the value of the goods, services or works; or

13.11.1.4 There is any doubt about the authority of the person signing for
the other contracting party; or

13.11.1.5 A Bond is established on behalf of the Supplier(s) or their
guarantors; or

13.11.1.6 Required by the Parties to the agreement; or

13.11.1.7 Where the Monitoring Officer deems it appropriate.

Where contracts are completed by each side adding their common seal, the
affixing must be attested by or on behalf of the Council in accordance with
the Constitution. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for the process of
sealing a contract.

If a Council Officer or Supplier needs to sign contract documentation
electronically, please speak to Legal Services for advice and guidance on the
use of electronic signatures.

13.12 Reserving below Threshold Procurements (for Services contracts only)

Agenda Page 151



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E66
APPENDIX B

Officers can consider reserving below threshold services contracts to local
and/or SME (Small and Medium Sized Enterprises) status organisations as
part of a procurement process.

This will be managed by officers on a case-by-case basis, after assessing the
market to ensure there is sufficient competition (based on the reserved
criteria). This will help support the local economy and encourage
entrepreneurship and small businesses in the area.

Being able to reserve the procurement by supplier location would mean being
able to run a competition and specify that only suppliers located in a
geographical area can bid (Nottinghamshire). Additionally, reserving the
procurement for Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SMEs) would mean
that only SMEs can bid, encouraging entrepreneurship, and attracting new
and smaller organisations to work with and for the Council.

13.12.1If Council Officers wish to reserve below threshold Services procurements as

13.12.2

13.12.3

per the guidance set out in this section, they must:

(@) Consult with Welland Procurement;

(b) Comply with all other Rules within this document;

(c) Provide rationale for reserving a contract; and

(d) Receive written approval from the relevant Director for this approach.

Council Officers may consider the following options for the procurement of

below threshold Services contracts (applying either both or just one option):

(a) Reserve the procurement by supplier location - this means being able to
run a competition and specify that only suppliers located in a
geographical area can bid. This could be by county to tackle economic
inequality and support local recruitment, training, skills, and investment.
Where a county reservation is to be applied, only a single county may be
reserved. Supplier location should be described by reference to where
the supplier is based or established and has substantive business
operations and not by location of corporate ownership.

(b) Reserve the procurement for Small and Medium sized Enterprises
(SMEs) and Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprises (VCSES) - this
means being able to run a competition and specify that only SMEs and
VCSEs can bid.

Definitions:

(a) Small and Medium sized Enterprise (SME): Any business with fewer than
250 employees and either an annual turnover below £45m or a total
balance sheet less than £40m.

(b) Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprises (VCSES): Any organisation
(incorporated or not) working with a social purpose. This ranges from
small community-based groups / schemes, through to larger registered
charities and social enterprises, public service mutuals and cooperatives
that operate locally, regionally, and nationally. This term is often
interchangeable with the terms ‘'third sector' or ‘civil society'
organisations.

Agenda Page 152



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E67
APPENDIX B

13.12.4

13.13

13.13.1

13.13.2

13.13.3

14

14.1

(c) Supplier Location: Where the supplier is based or established in a
particular location and has substantive business operations in that
location. In this context, this means having a registered office, factory, or
other permanent base in that location from which meaningful business
operations have been conducted for at least 12 months. For example, if
the reservation is for the UK or a county such as Nottinghamshire, this
should not preclude foreign suppliers from participating as long as they
are based or established and have substantive business operations in
the UK in the first example or in Nottinghamshire in the second example.

When considering either of the above, Council Officers would need to:

(&) Make reservation decisions on a case-by-case basis, and record
justifications for the decision to reserve a contract;

(b) Make the reservation clear in the procurement documentation in terms of
any intention by including the standardised definitions of SME / VCSE
and supplier location;

(c) Eliminate bidders that do not meet the stated criteria, following on from
written approval being received from the relevant Director; and

(d) Ensure value for money can still be met, and an open competitive
process is followed.

Procuring with External Grant Monies

Procuring contracts using external grant monies can bring about additional
risks to the Council due to additional regulatory or grant funder requirements
in the way the money is controlled and additional scrutiny that the
procurement process may receive. Therefore, Officers must be fully aware of
all requirements of the relevant funding body and ensure full compliance.

Officers shall ensure that they engage, in advance of undertaking a
procurement activity, with Welland Procurement, providing full access to any
relevant additional guidance.

NOTE: Specifically for ERDF funding, the Officers shall appraise the intended
procurement activity against the ERDF published '‘common mistakes'
guidance prior to initiating any procurement activity to ensure none of the
common mistakes have been made.

Exemptions to Contract Procedure Rules

The exemptions listed in this Section do not apply to procurements with a
total value above the relevant Public Procurement Threshold. Exemptions
are not a substitute for instances where procurement planning has not been
exercised and Officers find themselves with insufficient time to undertake a
competitive process. Officers must still consider commercial awareness and
achieve value for money.

Agenda Page 153



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E68

APPENDIX B
14.2 Officers must obtain a fully approved exemption in advance of awarding a

14.3

14.4

1441

14.4.2

14.4.3

14.4.4

contract and must ensure that the actual spend does not exceed the total
value stated in the approved exemption.

Officers will need to ensure they have the relevant budget approved and
available prior to embarking upon a procurement process. This approval will
be from the Budget Holder, in accordance with budget authorisation limits (as
outlined in the Financial Procedure Rules). Please see 2.9.1 for further
information. Officers also need to speak to their Business Manager about any
further approvals required outside of these Rules.

Signed contracts that have a total value of £10,000 or more must be scanned
in Officers must then provide the Legal Business Unit with any signed paper
copies of the Contract for the subsequent storage and safe keeping.

If a Council Officer or Supplier needs to sign contract documentation
electronically, please speak to the Legal Business Unit for advice and
guidance on the use of electronic signatures.

Exemptions must be approved by the Chief Executive, the Section 151
Officer, and the relevant Director. A copy of the form is available from Finance
Services. The following are exemptions under these CPRs:

No genuine competition: proprietary or patented goods or services;
requirement of such a specialist nature that it can genuinely only be fulfilled
by one person or organisation; compatibility with existing goods or services
is required and where those existing goods or services can only be sourced
from the same supplier.

There is a sound business case and/or an independent review that there is
no value for money in running a full procurement process. Supporting
evidence will need to demonstrate market testing and enquiries to other
suppliers. This must not be used to avoid competition or where decisions to
procure have been postponed and there are insufficient timelines to procure.

Genuine emergencies: critical preventative or remedial work where there is
a real and imminent risk to the safety of people or property arising from
hitherto unforeseen ‘catastrophic’ events or incidents, for example fire,
bombing, landslide etc.

Urgent Situations not of the Council’s own making: the urgency must have
been reasonably unforeseeable (e.g., existing supplier going into liquidation)
and genuinely be a case of time is of the essence. Urgency arising from the
Council’s own making (e.g., lack of planning) shall not justify an exemption.
Where this exemption is used, a compliant procurement must be
implemented as soon as possible.

Agenda Page 154



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E69

APPENDIX B
14.4.5 Collaborative/Joint Procurement: where another authority/public body is

14.4.6

14.4.7

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

15

15.1

15.1.1

acting as the ‘lead buyer’ and provided that the Officer can demonstrate those
arrangements comply with relevant Legislation and best practice.

Grants which the Council may receive or make except where the grant is the
form of payment for a contract for services where the Council specifies the
output or outcomes to be delivered. The awarding of grants by the Council or
on behalf of the Council must be carried out under the principles of openness,
fairness, non-discrimination, and value for money. Officers cannot choose to
treat procurement as a grant in order to avoid conducting a competitive
process. This exemption cannot be used if the grant funding guidance
states a procurement process must be conducted (such as ERDF
funding); Officers must be fully aware of all requirements of the relevant
funding body and ensure full compliance. Please discuss with Welland
Procurement before any exemption on this basis is requested.

Contracts for the execution of either mandatory works or provision of goods
or services which must be provided by a Statutory Provider other than the
Council. This includes but is not limited to public utility companies and other
legal authorities.

All contracts must be added to the Contract Register (on ProContract) to
ensure compliance with Transparency Regulations.

An award notice is required on Find a Tender Service for all Contracts with a
total value of £20,000 or above. Welland Procurement is responsible for such
award notices. Officers must formally advise Welland of the award details, so
that they can publish the award notice.

A distinction must be made by the lead officer between contracts exempt from
these Rules and contracts as defined as Exempt Contracts under Schedule
2 of the Procurement Act 2023 and advice must be sought from Welland
Procurement in regard to this.

The publication of a Transparency Notice is required for all direct awards
awarded under section 41 and 43 of the Procurement Act 2023. Officers must
consult with and formally advise Welland regarding the direct award details
so that Welland can publish a Transparency Notice.

Contract Management
Contract Management
The Contracting Officer must ensure that they add the Contract (where the
contracting value is greater than £5,000) to the Central Contracts Register.
This either being via Welland Procurement, where Welland have been

involved in the procurement exercise, or Admin Services where not. A flow
diagram describing this is included at appendix 3.

Agenda Page 155



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E70

APPENDIX B
15.1.2 The named Contract Manager should be noted in the Contract Register. All

15.1.3

15.1.4

15.1.5

15.1.6

15.2

15.2.1

15.2.2

contracts must have a named Contract Manager for the entirety of the
contract and that Contract Manager is responsible for the application of these
Rules.

For all contracts with a total value over £75,000, the Contract Manager must
identify the risks by maintaining a suitable risk register and ensure that
suitable contingency measures are in place.

During the life of the contract, the Contract Manager must monitor the overall
performance of the contract closely in order to ensure any issues of
underperformance are addressed as soon as possible and any areas of
added value are identified as soon as possible.

Officers must ensure that the contracts for which they are responsible are
effectively managed and monitored to ensure they deliver the requirement as
intended. This must be in line with the Contract Management Toolkit which is
available on the Intranet here.

Where a supplier intends to sub-contract, Officers must assess whether it is
appropriate for the supplier to obtain quotations from locally based suppliers
as part of this process.

Variations

In any case where a modification/variation (independently or cumulatively)
means that the total value of a contract would exceed the relevant Public
Procurement Threshold, or where there is any material change to the
contract, the contract must be treated as a new procurement under these
Rules.

If any modification/variation (independently or cumulative) means that the
total value of a contract would exceed a threshold set out in these Rules,
Officers must seek advice from Welland Procurement.

Officers need to consult the applicable procurement regime on making
contract modifications which will depend on which regime the original
contract was awarded pursuant to. For modifications under the Procurement
Act 2023, highlight the new requirement to publish contract change notices
(and copies of contracts for some procurements). Officers must seek advice
from Welland Procurement.

A material change is one which:
15.2.2.1 Would have allowed the admission of other Bidders or the
acceptance or another tender; or

15.2.2.2 Extends the scope of the contract considerably to goods, services
or works not initially covered by the Specification; or

Agenda Page 156



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E71
APPENDIX B

15.2.3

15.2.4

15.2.5

15.2.6

15.3

153.1

15.3.2

15.3.3

15.2.2.3 Changes the economic balance in favour of the contractor in a
manner not provided for in the procurement documents.

For clarity, a change will be deemed immaterial if the value of the modification
is both below the relevant Public Procurement Threshold and below 10% of
the original contract value (15% for works contracts).

All variations to contracts shall be in writing, following approval from the
relevant Director or Business Manager.

All modifications/variations to a contract (that was originally above the Public
Procurement Threshold and therefore advertised on OJEU or Find a Tender
Service) must have a Modification Notice published. Please discuss this with
Welland Procurement prior to any variation being entered.

Any novation of a contract is restricted by the Procurement Act 2023 which
states that except as provided for in paragraph 9 of Schedule 8 (modification
permitted on corporate restructuring), a contracting authority may not modify a
public contract so as to change the supplier.

Extensions

A contract should not be extended beyond its initial term unless the contract
documents allow it (the potential extension option was advertised) and it
complies with the Procurement Act 2023.

A Framework Agreement shall only be extended if the contract documents and
framework allow, and the original term and extension together should not
exceed four years except in exceptional circumstances.

Where a business need has been identified which means that a contract is
required to be extended beyond the term permissible in the original contract
documents, advice must be sought from Welland Procurement and the
Council’s Legal Business Unit in the first instance and authority sought from
the Monitoring Officer or the Section 151 Officer if such an extension is
proposed.

If any extension (independently or cumulative) means that the total value of a
contract would exceed a threshold set out in these Rules, Officers must seek
advice from Welland Procurement.

The Officer must be satisfied that such an extension would achieve value for
money and be reasonable in all circumstances. The Officer must record the
reasons for these conclusions in writing (i.e., the relevant decision record).

All extensions to a contract (that was originally above the Public Procurement
Threshold and therefore advertised on OJEU or Find a Tender Service) must
have a Modification Notice published. Please discuss this with Welland
Procurement prior to any extension being entered.

Agenda Page 157



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E72
APPENDIX B
16 The Appointment of Consultants to Provide Services
16.1  Consultants, including technical and management consultants, shall be
selected, and commissions awarded, in accordance with the procedures
detailed within these Contract Procedure Rules (relevant to the estimated total
value of the consultancy contract). This includes, but is not limited to:
e Approvals obtained (as per 2.9 of this document)
e A compliant competitive procurement route being followed, as per the
estimated total value of the consultancy contract
e Tender documentation being used as appropriate
e The formation of an outcome-based specification, which must cover the
scope of the requirement i.e., the services to be supplied, the “where” and
“‘when” they are to be supplied as well as any relevant performance and
contract management details. A template is available on the procurement
portal
e Terms and conditions, evaluation criteria and any relevant deadlines
stated as part of the procurement process
e Evaluation carried out fairly, as per the relevant Rule of this document
e Carry out due diligence, both at Contract Award, and for the duration of
the Contract
e The resultant contract must be added to the Council’s Contract Register
(on ProContract) to ensure compliance with Transparency Regulations.
Officers must then provide the Legal Business Unit with any signed paper
copies of the Contract for the subsequent storage and safe keeping
e An award notice is required on Find a Tender Service for all Contracts with
a total value of £20,000 or above. If an Officer has managed the
procurement process without assistance from Welland Procurement, they
must formally advise them of the award details, so that they can publish
the award notice
16.2 The engagement of a consultant shall follow the agreement of a brief that
adequately describes the scope of the services to be provided (inclusive of
ALL potential phases of work and associated costs) and shall be subject to
completion of a formal letter or contract of appointment.
16.3 Consultants shall be required to provide evidence of, and maintain
professional indemnity insurance policies to the satisfaction of the relevant
Chief Officer after consultation with the Section 151 Officer or in his absence
the Deputy Section 151 Officer for the periods specified in the respective
agreement and any subsequent liability.
16.4  All consultancy appointments should clearly stipulate that the copyright in any

report or other work or information created as a result of the contract shall be
assigned by the contractor to the Council absolutely with full title guarantee.

Agenda Page 158


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E73

APPENDIX B
16.5 It is the responsibility of the person arranging the consultancy contract to

17

171

17.2

17.3

17.4

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

determine whether or not payments are to be made to the consultant’s
employer, to the consultant directly or to a personal service company (PSC;
this is a limited company owned by the consultant and is commonly used to
reduce tax and National Insurance liability). If payment is to be to the
consultant personally or through a personal service company, advice must be
sought from the Section 151 Officer and the Business Manager — HR and
Training before any appointment is made.

Bonds and Parent Company Guarantees

The Contract Officer should, prior to the tender documentation being
published, decide whether a performance bond or a parent company
guarantee is applicable for the contract.

The Contract Officer must consult the Section 151 Officer about whether a
Bond or Parent Company Guarantee would be necessary where the total value
exceeds £75,000. This must be determined prior to any procurement process,
so that the requirement can be included in the terms and conditions for the
contract.

Where security is considered to be appropriate and required, the Contract
Officer, in consultation with the appropriate officers, shall specify in the tender
the nature and amount of the security to be given. This as a minimum shall be
at least 10% of the total value of the contract.

The security shall be obtained by the contractor in a format, and from an
institution or bank approved by the Section 151 Officer.

Certificates/Interim Payments

No certificate of work performed on a contract shall be raised prior to the
signing of the contract, subject to compliance with appropriate contract
conditions. Any exceptions to this requirement must be approved by the
Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer.

Interim payments to contractors shall only be made by the Section 151 Officer
or his nominated Officer on receipt of an approved form of certificate signed
by an authorised Officer.

Where a performance bond is required for a contract, no payment is to be
made until the bond has been received. Any exceptions to this requirement
must be approved by the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer.

Any contractual retention monies shall be deducted from payments in
accordance with contract conditions.

Agenda Page 159



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E74
APPENDIX B

Appendix 1: Definitions

Agent(s) A person or organisation acting on behalf of the Council,
or on behalf of another organisation.
Award Criteria The criteria used by the Council to evaluate a Bidder’s

submission against the needs identified within the
specification to determine the successful tender.

Award Notice A notice published on Find a Tender and/or Find a
Tender Service which provides details of the winning
bidder and the total value of the contract. Award notices
are required to be published on Find a Tender Service
for all procurements with a total value at £20,000 or

above.

Bidder An individual or organisation who submits a tender or
guotation in a competitive procurement process.

Bond An insurance policy: If the Economic Operator does not

do what it has promised under a contract with the
Council, the Council can claim from the insurer the sum
of money specified in the Bond (often 10% of the Total
Contract Value). A Bond is intended to protect the
Council against a level of cost arising from the Economic
Operator’s failure.

Candidate An individual or organisation that has sought an invitation
or has been invited to take part in a restricted procedure,
a competitive procedure with negotiation, a negotiated
procedure without prior publication, a competitive
dialogue, or an innovation partnership.

Conflict of Interest The concept of conflicts of interest shall at least cover
any situation where relevant staff members have, directly
or indirectly, a financial, economic, or other personal
interest which might be perceived to compromise their
impartiality and independence in the context of the
procurement procedure.

Constitution The Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how
decisions are made and the procedures which are
followed to make sure these are efficient, transparent,
and accountable to local people.

Contract A legal document that states and explains a formal
agreement between two different parties.
Contracting Authority Has the definition contained within the Procurement Act

2023 . It means the State, regional or local authorities,
bodies governed by public law or associations formed by
one or more such authorities or one or more such bodies
governed by public law, and includes central government
authorities, but does not include Her Majesty in her
private capacity.

Agenda Page 160



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E75
APPENDIX B

Contract Management Is the process of managing contract creation, execution,

and analysis to maximise operational and financial
performance at an organisation, all while reducing
financial risk.

Contract Register A register that stores details of the Council’s Contracts,
including duration and expiry dates. All Contracts with a
total value of £5,000 and above must be entered onto the

register.

Contract Term The length of the contract including the initial term and
any extension periods proposed.

Council Newark & Sherwood District Council.

Dynamic Purchasing Is similar to an electronic framework agreement, with two

System (DPS) exceptions, new suppliers can join at any time, and it is
to be run as a completely electronic process.

Economic Operator A contractor, a supplier, or a service provider. Any

person who offers on the market supplies, services, or
works and who sought, who seeks, or who would have
wished to be the person to whom a public contract is
awarded. In this document Economic Operators are not
yet active in the procurement process. If they are active
in the process, they will be named Bidders in this

document.
Electronic Tendering A secure means to store and transmit all Procurement
(eTendering) Documentation via a secure electronic vault
(ProContract).
Evaluation The process of assessing received tenders or quotations

against the published criteria to identify the winning
bidder, i.e., the bidder with the highest evaluation score.
Any subjective evaluation (such as quality) must be
carried out independently by a minimum of two
evaluators (preferably three), and then moderated by an
independent moderator to reach a final agreed score.
The evaluators should be fully briefed on the evaluation
process. The ‘Conflict of Interest Declaration -
Confidentiality Agreement’ on the procurement portal
gives further guidance on evaluation principles and best
practice. Welland Procurement can act as the
independent moderator but cannot undertake any

scoring.
Exemption An act or instance of waiving a right to obey these Rules.
Extension (contract) An additional period identified within the contract,

beyond the initial term which may be used to lengthen
the contract term.

Find a Tender An e-notification service which has replaced OJEU, used
to post, and view public sector procurement notices.

Agenda Page 161


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION
MAY 2025

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E76
APPENDIX B

Framework Agreement

A framework is an agreement established on behalf of
multiple public bodies with multiple suppliers to establish
terms governing contracts that may be awarded during
the life of the framework agreement. It is a general term
for agreements that set out terms and conditions for
making specific purchases (call-offs).

Goods Tangible products that satisfy a need.

Initial Term The initial period of a contract; this may be subsequently
extended.

Legislation The Procurement Act 2023, the Procurement

Regulations 2024 and all other applicable legislation
governing public procurement as enacted from time to
time.

Locally Based Suppliers

Those suppliers that have a post code for their head
office of NG or LN.

OJEU The Official Journal of the European Union.
Parent Company A contract which binds the parent of a subsidiary
Guarantee company as follows: If the subsidiary company fails to do

what it has promised under a contract with the Council,
they can require the parent company to do so instead.

Personal Data

Any information relating to an identified or identifiable
natural person (‘data subject’); an identifiable natural
person is one who can be identified, directly or indirectly,
in particular by reference to an identifier such as a name,
an identification number, location data, an online
identifier or to one or more factors specific to the
physical, physiological, genetic, mental, economic,
cultural or social identity of that natural person.

Procurement Procurement is the process of finding, agreeing terms
and acquiring goods, services or works from an external
source, often via a tendering or competitive bidding
process.

Procurement The full suite of procurement documents required to

Documentation

undertake a compliant procurement process. Includes
(but not limited to); SQ, Specification, ITT, Terms and
Conditions, TUPE information and Form of Tender.

Procurement Toolkit

A document containing best practice guidance to support
Officers in their commercial activity.

Proportionate/
Proportionality

Operating in a way that ensures that all aspects of a
tender process and contract management including;
timescales, specifications, Suitability Criteria, evaluation
process and Award Criteria correspond to the size,
complexity, risk, and value of the requirements of the
procurement and/or contract.

Public Procurement
Procedure

A procurement process where the total value exceeds
the relevant Public Procurement Threshold and so
governed by the Procurement Act 2023 and The
Procurement Regulations 2024.

Agenda Page 162



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION
MAY 2025

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E77
APPENDIX B

Public Procurement
Threshold

The threshold above which a statutory procedure must
be carried out. There are thresholds for goods/services,
works and concessions. The current thresholds are
contained within Appendix 2.

Publicly Available
Contract

A contract that has been let by another Contracting
Authority and which is available for use by the Council.
The Council must have been named specifically or
generally within the procurement documentation in order
to enable access.

Quotation

A formal statement setting out the estimated cost for a
particular job or service.

Services

A valuable action, deed, or effort performed to satisfy a
need or to fulfil a demand.

Specification

An exact statement of the needs to be satisfied, or
essential characteristics that a customer requires (in a
good, material, method, process, service, system, or
work) and which a bidder must deliver.

The specification must cover the scope of the
requirement i.e., the goods, services or works to be
supplied, the “where” and “when” they are to be supplied
as well as any relevant performance and contract
management details. A template is available on the
procurement portal.

Standard Suitability
Questions/Questionnaire

Selection
Questions/Questionnaire

The set of standard suitability or selection questions
referred to in PPN _08/16 which must be used in all
advertised procurements.

Successful Supplier/
Supplier/ Contractor/
Provider

An Economic Operator who is contracted to provide
services.

Tender

A written invitation sent to potential suppliers of a good
or service to inform them about the information required
for the buyer to choose between them.

Terms and Conditions

General and special arrangements, provisions,
requirements, rules, specifications, and standards that
form an integral part of an agreement or contract.

Stands for the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of
Employment) Regulations 2006. TUPE regulations
ensure the rights of employees are transferred along with
the service.

Value for Money

Where quality and cost combine to produce a service
which meets technical and customer requirements, at an
acceptable level of expenditure in the prevailing
budgetary constraints, for an acceptable level of quality.

Variation

A modification to the scope, term and economic balance
in favour of the supplier of a Contract. The limitations of

Agenda Page 163


http://wellandprocurement.org.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/procurement-policy-note-816-standard-selection-questionnaire-sq-template

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E78
APPENDIX B

s.74 of the Procurement Act 2023 should be borne in
mind when varying a contract.

Whole Life Costs The total cost of ownership over the whole length of the
contract and sometimes beyond.
Works As defined by the Procurement Act 2023 and The

Procurement Regulations 2024 . Means means any of
the activities coming within a CPV code listed in
Schedule 3 The Procurement Regulations 2024.

Agenda Page 164


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2024/9780348259728/schedule/3

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part E — Financial Regulations
MAY 2025 Page E79
APPENDIX B

Appendix 2: Variable Information

The following information is subject to change and may be updated as changes occur
by the relevant Director.

Further Documentation and Guidance

Available to Council Officers on the Welland Portal:
e Procurement Toolkit

e Procurement Initiation Document

Roles and Responsibilities

Risk Register

A Guide to Tender Evaluation

Electronic Tender Opening Procedures

2020 Guide to Contract Management

Conflict of Interest — Confidentiality Agreement
Awarding a Contract via a Framework Agreement
Tender Timetable Planner

Specification Template

Quotation Documents (One and Four)

Further Competition Documents (One and Four)
Award Letter Templates

Modification Notice Template

Find a Tender Service Award Notice Template
TUPE Templates

Evaluator Schedule Templates

Public Procurement Thresholds

Details of the current Public Procurement thresholds can be found on Proactis.

The Cabinet Office have revised the threshold figures, which came into force on 1%t
January 2022. These revised thresholds will not apply to any procurement which has
commenced prior to the Regulations coming into force.

The proposed new threshold amounts include VAT, therefore you must check
whether your commercial activity is above/below this threshold with Welland
Procurement prior to any procurement process being conducted.

Welland Procurement

Head of Procurement Mark Fisher mfisher@melton.gov.uk

Charlotte

Highcock chighcock@melton.gov.uk

Deputy Head of Procurement

General Procurement

Enquiries wellandprocurement@melton.gov.uk

Agenda Page 165


https://www.tendersdirect.co.uk/b/thresholds
mailto:mfisher@melton.gov.uk
mailto:chighcock@melton.gov.uk
mailto:wellandprocurement@melton.gov.uk

CONSTITUTION
MAY 2025

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Appendix 3: Contract Register Updates

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E80
APPENDIX B

Once you have let a contract, as per the Council's CPRs, all spend of £5k and above needs to be captured on the Contracts Register. The Council is
operating two Contracts Register, one internally on SharePoint and externally, as per the new Procurement Regulations 2024, on the Central Digital
Platform. It is important that the Council records our contracts and the most up to date infomation about them.

Procurement process
carried out
supported by Welland

Business need identified,
budget and route to market
agreed

After contract award
Relevant officer makes
arrangements for the
contract to be signed

¥

Within 10 days of the
contract being signed
Relevant officer to inform
to Welland

Procurement, including
a Framework carried
out, but Welland not

involved and spend
more than £5k

After contract award
Relevant officer makes
arrangements for the
contract to be signed

As part of Contact Mangement, the Councils internal
Contracts Register will send alerts to the relevant
officer during the lifecycle of the contract to reflect on
contract intent and milestones of the contract. These
alerts will be based on the pre agreed trigger
timelines set out in the Contract Award Notice.

There are three mandatory notices and will be
the relevant officer's responsibiltity to complete.

Copies of the templates are avaialble on the Council's

intranet.
Contract Contract Contract
Change Variation Termination
Notice Notice Notice

Contract added the

internal register on

Central Digital
Platform and

SharePoint

Within 10 days of the
contract being signed
Relevant officer = to
inform Administrative
Services by emailing a
copy of the template
Contract Awards Notice

Relevant template Contract Notice Document
completed
by the relevant officer and a copy emailed to
Administrative Services

Agenda Page 166



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION
MAY 2025

Appendix 4: Responsibilities

Part E — Financial Regulations
Page E81

APPENDIX B

Officers will|need to ensure there is sufficient budget available

l

Contracts below £10,000

Contracts between £10,000 -

£74,999

Contracts in excess of £180,000

Contracts between £75,000 and
services or £4.5m works

the threshhold

[

One guote must be
sought

Three comparable quotes
must be sought, with at

least two sought from

Altematively, you may

consult with Welland - officer

to complete a procurement
initiation document

locally based suppliers
]

Evaluation of response(s)

Procurement to be
advertised on Contracts
Finder

I

Evaluation of responses

I

The relevant Business
Manager/Director can

Instruct Finance Team to
conduct financial due

Receive procurement
summary report

be published on the
internal contracts register

sign the contract dilligence
1 1
Contracts over £5,000 to The relevant Business

Manager/Director can
sign the contract

1

Contract to be published
on the internal contracts
register

Award notice published
on Contracts Finder

1

Instruct Welland to
publish an award notice
above £20,000

[ J
‘Welland must be instructed to
advise on the most appropriate
route to market

I

Officer to complete a
procurement initiation
document

I

Procurement to be advertised
on Contracts Finder

i

Evaluation of responses

!

Receive procurement summary
report

Instruct Finance Team to
conduct financial due
dilligence
I

l

. The relevant Director must give
Manager/Director must give
approval to award the contract
approval to award the contract o the Legal BU
to the Legal BU ome ‘Eg“

L
Award notice published on
Contracts Finder

I

Contract to be published on the
internal contracts register

The relevant Business

Agenda Page 167



Agenda.dam 15¢

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part B — Public Participation

MAY 2022 Page B1

1. NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL’S PETITION
SCHEME

1.1 Introduction

The Council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one way in which
people can let us know their concerns. A petition is defined as a communication in
writing or using an electronic facility, which is signed by the appropriate number of
qualifying people. All petitions sent or presented to the Council will receive an
acknowledgement within 10 working days of receipt. This acknowledgement will set
out what we plan to do with the petition. We will treat something as a petition if it is
identified as being a petition, or if it seems to us that it is intended to be a petition.

Paper petitions can be sent to the Chief Executive, Newark & Sherwood District
Council, Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, Notts. NG24 1BY.

Petitions with less than 1,000 signatures can be presented to a meeting of the full
Council on your behalf by a Councillor. These meetings take place within an annual
cycle of meetings, details of which can be found at www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk.
If you would like your petition to be presented to a full Council Meeting please contact
your local Councillor asking them to present it on your behalf or contact Democratic
Services on 01636 655243 or committees@newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk at least 10
working days before the Council meeting.

If your petition has received 1,000 signatures or more from people that live and/or
work in the District then this will trigger a debate at full Council. If this is the case
contact will be made with the lead petitioner to discuss arrangements.

If your petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory
petition (for example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or
on a matter where there is already an existing right of appeal, such as council
tax banding and non-domestic rates, other procedures will apply.

1.2.  What are the guidelines for submitting a petition?
Petitions submitted to the Council must include:

e a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition. The subject
should be relevant to some matter in relation to which the Council has functions or
which affects the area or its residents. It should also state what action the
petitioners wish the Council to take; and

e the name and address (including postcode) and signature of any person
supporting the petition.

Signatures are only valid for people who live, work or study within the District. In the
case of an e-petition submitted via the Council's website or an alternative platform, a
signature is not required but a valid email address, name, address and postcode
must be supplied by each of the petitioners. Further details about e-petitions are
given later in this petition scheme.

Agenda Page 168



APPENDIX C
NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part B — Public Participation
MAY 2022 Page B2

Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for the
petition organiser. This is the person we will contact to explain how we will respond to
the petition. The contact details of the petition organiser will not be placed on the
website. If the petition does not identify a petition organiser, we will contact
signatories to the petition to agree who should act as the petition organiser.

If you want to submit a petition to a specific meeting of the Council then you need to
ensure that we receive a completed petition with details of the petition subject matter,
number of signatures and your contact details 10 working days before the meeting to
enable it to be submitted and included on the summons for the meeting.

Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate
will not be accepted. In the period immediately before an election or referendum we
may need to deal with your petition differently — if this is the case we will explain the
reasons and discuss the revised timescale which will apply. If a petition does not
follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may decide not to do anything further
with it. In that case, we will write to you to explain the reasons.

The Council's Monitoring Officer will decide as to whether or not the guidelines
referred to above have been met and therefore whether a petition should be
accepted. '

1.3  What will the Council do when it Receives my Petition?

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 10 working days of
receiving the petition. It will let them know what we plan to do with the petition and
when they can expect to hear from us again. It will also be published on our website.

If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm that we
have taken the action requested and the petition will be closed. If the petition has
enough signatures to trigger a Council debate then the acknowledgment will confirm
this and tell you when and where the meeting will take place. If the petition needs
more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take. If the petition applies to
a planning or licensing application, is a statutory petition (for example requesting a
referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a matter where there is already an
existing right of appeal, such as council tax banding and non-domestic rates, other

procedures will apply.

To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we
receive, the details of all the petitions submitted to us will be published on our
website, except in cases where this would be inappropriate. Whenever possible we
will also publish all correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be
removed).

Agenda Page 169



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL APPENDIX C

CONSTITUTION Part B — Public Participation
MAY 2022 Page B3

1.4. How will the Council Respond to Petitions?

Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how many
people have signed it, but may include one or more of the following:

taking the action requested in the petition

considering the petition at a Council meeting

holding an inquiry into the matter

undertaking research into the matter

holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

referring the petition for consideration by a Cabinet Member or a committee of the
Council whose remit includes the matters referred to in the petition

calling a referendum

e writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the
petition

If your petition is about something that a different Council is responsible for or over
which the Council has no direct control (for example rail services or a hospital) we
will give consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. This might
consist of simply forwarding the petition to the other organisation, but could involve
other steps. In any event we will always notify you of the action we have taken.

1.5. Full Council Debates — Petitions with More than 1,000 Signatures

If a petition contains more than 1,000 signatures it will be scheduled for debate by
the Full Council. This means that the issue raised in the petition will be discussed at
a meeting at which all Councillors can attend. The Council will endeavour to consider
the petition at its next meeting, although on some occasions this may not be possible
and consideration will then take place at the following meeting. 15 minutes will be
allocated for the debate. The Council will decide how to respond to the petition at this
meeting. They may decide to take the action the petition requests, not to take the
action requested for reasons put forward in the debate, or to commission further
investigation into the matter, for example by a relevant committee. The petition
organiser will receive written confirmation of this decision. This confirmation will also
be published on our website.

The Council may consider there to be a more expedient way in which to deal with a
petition which contains more than 1,000 signatures. If this is the case, the lead
petitioner will be notified accordingly—, and the petition will be presented to Full
Council together with confirmation of the action taken.

Agenda Page 170



APPENDIX C
NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part B — Public Participation
MAY 2022 Page B4
1.6. Presentation of Petitions at Full Council — Petitions with Fewer than

1,000 Signatures

Your petition may not have the requisite number of signatures to trigger a Council
debate. However, your petition can still be presented to a meeting of the full Council.
When you are satisfied that your petition meets all of the criteria you should contact
your local Ward Councillor or appropriate Member to request the submission of the
petition to the next full Council Meeting. Democratic Services can also approach the
relevant Councillor on your behalf.

The Member being asked and wishing to present the petition should satisfy
themselves that the petition meets the guidelines for petitions as set out in this
Scheme and notify the Chief Executive, prior to the full Council meeting that they
intend to present the petition. They have a maximum of 1 minute in which to present
the petition to the full Council meeting. The petition organiser does not have a right
to present the petition to the full Council meeting and there will be no debate.

1.7. E-Petitions

The Council welcomes e-petitions which are created through our website
www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/epetitions. For these the petition organiser must
provide us with their name and address (including postcode) and email address. You
will also need to decide how long you would like your petition to be open for
signatures. Most petitions run for six months, but you can choose a shorter or longer
timeframe up to a maximum of 12 months. When you create an e-petition it will take
up to 5 working days before it is published on the website. This is because we have
to check that the content of your petition before it is published online. If we feel that
we cannot publish your petition for some reason we will contact you within this time
to explain. You will be able to change and resubmit your petition if you wish. If you do
not do this within 10 working days, a summary of the petition and the reason why it
has not been accepted will be published on the website.

When an e-petition has closed for signature it will automatically be submitted to
Democratic Services. In the same way as a paper petition, you will receive an
acknowledgment within 10 working days. You can see all the e-petitions currently
available on the website www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/epetitions. When you sign
the e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, postcode and a valid email
address.

E-Petitions from alternative platforms may be accepted providing the guidelines at
paragraph 1.2 above are met, or at the discretion of the Monitoring Officer in
exceptional circumstances.

1.8. What can | do if | feel my Petition Has Not Been Dealt with Properly?

Depending on the nature of any concerns raised, the matter may be considered
under the corporate complaints procedure, or another appropriate procedure.

Agenda Page 171



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL APPENDIX C

CONSTITUTION Part B — Public Participation
MAY 2022 Page B5

Agenda Page 172



APPENDIX C

Agenda Page 173



Agenda.dgm 15d

CONSTITUTION Part D — Council Procedure Rules
MAY 2022 Page D1

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Agenda Page 174



APPENDIX D

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part D — Council Procedure Rules
MAY 2022 Page D2

3.

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

Business to be Conducted
Petitions

In accordance with the Council’s published Petition Scheme (attached at Part
B Section 1 of this Constitution) petitions with less than 1,000 valid signatures
can be presented to the Council, and will be received but not debated.
Petitions with more than 1,000 valid signatures can be presented to the
Council for debate,-witheut-presentation as set out below.

A petition must be signed by persons other than members of the Council, and
be relevant to some matter in relation to which the Authority has functions, or
which affects the area of the Authority, or part of it, or the inhabitants of that
area, or some of them.

A Member wishing to present a petition shall satisfy himself/herself that the
petition is proper to be received. The Member shall give notice of his/her
intention to present to the Chief Executive at least six clear working days
before meeting at which he/she wishes to present it.

Petitions shall be presented in the order in which notice of them is received by
the Chief Executive.

The presentation of any petition ofless-than-1,000-sighatures-shall be limited
to not more than one minute, and shall be confined to reading out or
summarising the purpose of the petition, indicating the number and
description of the signatories, and making such further supporting remarks
relevant to the petition as the Member presenting it shall think fit. There-will-be
no debate-

The Council will limit debate on any petition of more than 1,000 signatures to a
maximum of 15 minutes and will close the debate with an agreed course of
action,_which will normally be to refer the matter to Cabinet or the relevant
Portfolio Holder for further consideration, or to note the petition-

A report back to Council noting the outcome of any consideration by Cabinet,

3.4

3.4.1

the relevant Portfolio Holder or Committee will be brought to the next
appropriate meeting.

Motions

Motions on Notice

Scope

(a) Motions must be about matters for which the Council has a direct

responsibility or duty, or that directly impact on the Council’s residents
where the Council may have the ability to influence.

Agenda Page 175



APPEN
NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL XD

CONSTITUTION Part D — Council Procedure Rules
MAY 2022 Page D3

(b) It shall be the duty of the Monitoring Officer, after consultation with the
Chair, to refuse to accept any motion or amendment to a motion which
they deem to be illegal, improper, vexatious or out of order.

(c) A valid motion must:

a. Not seek to alter or reverse any Executive decision unless it is contrary
to the Policy Framework or contrary to or not wholly consistent with the
budget

b. Not be substantially the same (in terms of subject matter or scope) as a
motion already submitted, or a substantive item already on the
meeting's agenda, or one that has been put to a meeting of the Full
Council (whether passed or not) in the past 6 months

c. Not relate to a planning application or any other quasi-judicial matter

d. Not require disclosure of confidential or exempt information

a-e. be in accordance with any guidance issued by the Monitoring
Officer and/or the Section 151 Officer

3.4.2 Motions to Reverse Decisions

(a) Council decisions are final and should normally not be altered or amended
for 6 months. However, where a decision proves to be unworkable or not
in the best interests of the Council and its communities for whatever
reason a further report on the issue can be brought back to Full Council for
further consideration with the agreement of the Council’s Chair and Vice
Chair.

(b) Alternatively, a notice of motion may be submitted in writing endorsed by
at least twelve Councillors. This must be submitted to the Chief Executive
not later than noon 8 days before the meeting at which it is intended to be
moved. The Chief Executive will determine to what extent the decision has
already been implemented and whether it would be practicable for the
decision to be reversed or rescinded. When any such motion or
amendment has been dealt with, no similar motion or amendment may be
proposed within a further period of 6 months.

3.4.3 Notice

(a) Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Rule 4.11
below or during debate under Rule 4.10 below, written notice of every
motion, must be delivered by hand or e-mail, using the motions template
available from Democratic Services to the Chief Executive not later than
noon 5 clear working days before the Council meeting at which it is to be
considered. It is recommended that early advice is sought from
Democratic Services on the validity of motions.

Agenda Page 176



APPENDIX D

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part D — Council Procedure Rules

MAY 2022

(b)

Page D4

Written notice of a motion to move an amendment of the Cabinet's
proposals for the Council's General Fund Budget and Precept or Housing
Revenue Account Budget and Rent Setting, must be delivered to
Democratic Services not later than midday 3 working days before the
Council meeting at which it is to be considered for financial
comments to be added. The Section 151 Officer will comment whether
the alternative proposals are reasonably calculated and sufficiently
deliverable as to be robust and sustainable in the medium term and
continue to ensure that reserves are maintained at an adequate level
which protects the Council’s financial standing. Once financial comments
have been added, the amendment will be circulated at the earliest
opportunity for all Members of full Council and where possible published
on the Council’'s website. Motions received after the deadline will only be
considered in exceptional circumstances and with the approval of the
Chair, Section 1561 Officer and Monitoring Officer. Motions under this
Rule will be dealt with in the order in which they were received unless
this proves unworkable for any reason, in which case the Chair has
discretion on how to deal with Motions.

3.4.4 Motion Set Out in Agenda

(a) Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in

the order in which they were received.

(b) Where notice of a motion has been given for any meeting and it is not

moved and seconded either by the members who gave the notice or by
some other members on their behalf it shall, unless postponed by
consent of the meeting, be treated as withdrawn and shall not be moved
without fresh notice

3.4.5 Motions Without Notice

Some motions may be moved without notice to facilitate the business of the
meeting, or during debate. See 4.11 and 4.10 below.

Agenda Page 177



APPENDIX D
NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part D — Council Procedure Rules
MAY 2022 Page D5

4.6 Amendments to Motions

46.1 An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either be:-
a. to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for consideration or
reconsideration;
b. to leave out words;
c. to leave out words and insert or add others; or
d. toinsert or add words

as long as the effect of b. to d above is not to negate the motion or to
introduce a new motion.

4.6.2 Except for minor amendments that arise during the meeting and are designed
to correct a factual error, or to make the motion more acceptable to
Councillors. notice of an amendment must be given in writing using the
amendment template available from Democratic _Services, as early as
practicable before the Full Council meeting. It is recommended that early
advice is sought from Democratic Services on the validity of amendments. If
accepted as valid, and subject to the relevant Member's consent, the
amendment will be circulated to all members as soon as practicable.

4.6.2a At the request of two members of Council or the Chair, an amendment
proposed during the meeting may be required to be put in writing and
circulated to all members at the meeting before it is discussed.

4.6.3 Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one time. No
further amendment may be moved until the amendment under discussion has
been disposed of.

4.6.4 |f an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original motion may
be moved.

46.5 If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place of the
original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to which any further
amendments are moved.

4.6.6 After an amendment has been carried, the Chair will read out the amended
motion before accepting any further amendments, or if there are none, put it to the
vote.

Agenda Page 178



APPENDIX D

Agenda Page 179



Agenda Iltem 15e

APPENDIX E

NOTICE OF MOTION FOR FULL COUNCIL

See Part D of the Council’s Constitution — Council Procedure Rules - for the rules on
motions

Title of Motion: Consider an appropriate title which reflects the proposed
actions of the motion

Date of Council meeting:

Proposer of Motion: Any signatures will be removed from the version printed
(Name, and signature if hard copy in the Council book

submitted)

Seconder of Motion: See above

(Name, and signature if hard copy

submitted)

Background/supporting information (maximum 300 words):

Include here any relevant information in support of the recommendations to be considered by
the Council, (which should be specific to the active part of the motion) ensuring it provides
enough information for the Council to make a lawful decision. E.g. if the decision would have a
financial cost to the Council if agreed, that needs explaining here including where the money
would come from.

Statements of belief etc attributed to the Council are not appropriate, this section should be
factual in nature. Any statistical information must reference recognised and verifiable sources
and include links where possible.

Note this section of the motion cannot be amended and it will not be included in the minutes.

Motion to be proposed (active section):

This should be the actions the Council are being asked to take, similar to recommendations in
Council reports. Examples of actions - the Council can be asked “to note”, “to agree”, “to
endorse” “to call upon” “to write to”. The matter could also be referred to the relevant Cabinet
Member / Policy and Performance Improvement Committee for consideration.

Where there is more than one action, each part should be separated out with a number: e.g.:
1. That the Council agrees / notes / endorses / calls upon ....
2. That the Council writes to .....
3. That the Council refer the matter to...

Note this section can be amended and it will be included in the minutes.

Date and time received:
(for completion by Democratic Services)

Agenda Page 180


https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Part-D---Procedure-Rules.pdf

Agenda Item 15f

APPENDIX F

AMENDMENT TO MOTION FOR FULL COUNCIL

See Part D of the Council’s Constitution — Council Procedure Rules —for the rules on

amendments

Title of Motion (or report with
recommendations) to be
amended:

Date of Council meeting:

Proposer of Amendment:
(Name, and signature if hard copy
submitted)

Any signatures will be removed from the version printed

in the Council book

Seconder of Amendment:
(Name, and signature if hard copy
submitted)

See above

Amendment to be proposed to the Motion (active section):

This should include a version showing tracked changes to the original recommendations and a
“clean” version of the amendment showing what it would be if it were agreed. Democratic
Services will provide a Word version of the original recommendations on request.

The text must meet the requirements of a valid amendment as set out in the Council’s

Constitution.

Date and time received:
(for completion by Democratic Services)

Agenda Page 181


https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Part-D---Procedure-Rules.pdf

Agenda Item 15¢

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C4
APPENDIX G

7.4 LICENSING COMMITTEE

Rules

e The Committee Procedure Rules and the Access to Information Procedure Rules
shall apply to the Licensing Committee and as applicable to its Sub-Committees.

Membership, Chair and Quorum

Number of Members 15

Substitute Members Permitted No

Political Proportionality Rules Apply Yes

Appointments/Removals Resolution of full Council

Restrictions on Chair/Vice-Chair None

Quorum One quarter (1/4) of the committee

members rounded up
Number of Ordinary meetings per | At least 4 per year (1 per quarter)
Council Year
Standing Sub-Committee Licensing Act and Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Hearing Panels

Five members (with a quorum of three)
to be drawn from the membership of the
Licensing Committee.

The Sub-Committee shall have full
delegated authority to carry out the same
functions and have the same powers as
the full committee in respect of those
matters

Remit and Terms of Reference
1. To discharge those functions set out in the Licensing Act 2003.
2. To discharge those functions set out in the Gambling Act 2005.

3. To discharge functions under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1976.

4. To review fees and charges and recommend approval to Full Council.

5. All non-executive functions of the Council with regard to:
a) Environmental Health
b) Health and Safety at work (other than the exercise of the functions of the
Council in the capacity of employer)
c) Food hygiene and safety
d) Animal health and hygiene

Agenda Page 182



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C5
APPENDIX G

6.

The determination of applications for licences, approvals, consents, permission or
registration of the direct regulation of any person or the enforcement of the same
in relation to contaminated land, control of pollution, air quality and noise and
statutory nuisance listed in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (“the Regulations”).

All non executive functions of the Council with regards to the licensing and
registration of :

caravan sites

hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences, drivers and operators

betting, gaming and lotteries

theatres and cinemas

Sexual Entertainment Venues

Street trading and markets

House to house collections

The power to make a closing order on a takeaway food shop (this function is
delegated to Officers).

Making recommendations to the Council on the adoption of bylaws within the remit
of Licensing

10.The passing of a resolution that schedule 2 to The Noise and Statutory Nuisance

Act 1993 should apply in the authority’s area

11. All other licensing functions listed in Part B of Schedule 1 to the Regulations other

than those relating to streets and highways.

12.To make recommendations to the Cabinet and Council insofar as it impacts on the

role and remit of the Council.

Agenda Page 183



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C6
APPENDIX G

The Licensing Committee has approved a scheme of delegation in respect of
Licensing Act matters as follows:

Matter to be Full Committee Sub Committee Officers
Dealt with

Application for If a police objection | If no objection
Personal licence is made

Application for
personal licence
with unspent

convictions

Application for If a relevant If a relevant If no relevant
premises representation is representation is representation
licence/club made that means made is made

premises certificate | the creation of a
new Saturation

Zone
Application for If a relevant If a relevant If no relevant
provisional representation is representation is representation
statement made that means made is made

the creation of a
new Saturation

Zone
Application to vary If a relevant If a relevant If no relevant
premises representation is representation is representation
licence/club made that means made is made

premises certificate | the creation of a
new Saturation
Zone
Application to vary If a police objection | All other cases
designated personal
licence holder
Request to be All cases
removed as
designated personal
licence holder
Application for If a police objection | All other cases
transfer of premises
licence

Application for If a police objection | All other cases
interim authority
Application to All cases
review premises
licence/club
premises certificate
Decision on whether All cases
a complaint or

Agenda Page 184



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C7
APPENDIX G

objection is

irrelevant, frivolous,
vexatious etc.
Decision to object All cases
when Local
Authority is a
consultee and not
the lead authority
Determination of a All cases
police
representation to a
temporary event
notice

The scheme of delegation will normally be adhered to but may be varied in
exceptional circumstances and having regard to any relevant statutory requirements.

NOTE:

Where an Officer has delegated authority to deal with any matter falling within the remit
of this Committee, the matter will normally be dealt with by that Officer, exercising
delegated powers, unless, in the opinion of that Officer, the matter is likely to give rise
to significant controversy or the nature of the decision is such that, in his or her opinion,
it should be referred to Committee for determination.

Licensing Act and Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Hearing Panel
Composition

a) A Hearing Panel will be drawn from the membership of the Licensing Committee
on an ad hoc basis.

b) Members of the Hearing Panel will be selected based on availability respecting
political balance where possible.

c) Members representing a Ward in which the application premises are situated will
not be selected.

d) Each selected Member shall be asked to confirm their attendance. If confirmation
cannot be given then the next Member alphabetically will be selected.

Agenda Page 185



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION
JULY 2023
7.4 LICENSING COMMITTEE

Rules

Part C — Responsibility for Functions
Page C4

¢ The Committee Procedure Rules and the Access to Information Procedure Rules
shall apply to the Licensing Committee and as applicable to its Sub-Committees.

Membership, Chair and Quorum

Number of Members 15

Substitute Members Permitted No

Political Proportionality Rules Apply Yes
Appointments/Removals Resolution of full Council
Restrictions on Chair/Vice-Chair None

Quorum

One quarter (1/4) of the committee
members rounded up

Number of Ordinary meetings per
Council Year

At least 4 per year (1 per quarter)

Standing Sub-Committee

Licensing Act and Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Hearing Panels

five members (with a quorum of three) to
be drawn from the membership of the
Licensing eCommittee.

The Sub-Committee shall _have full
delegated authority to carry out the same

functions and have the same powers as
the full committee in respect of those

matters

Remit and Terms of Reference

1. To discharge those functions set out in the Licensing Act 2003.
2. To discharge those functions set out in the Gambling Act 20085.

3. To discharge
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

functionsaneilary—matters under

the Local

4. To fixreview fees and charges and recommend approval to Full Council.

5. All non-executive functions of the Council with regard to:

a) Environmental Health

b) Health and Safety at work (other than the exercise of the functions of the

Government

Council in the capacity of employer)

c) Food hygiene and safety

d) _Animal health and hygiene

6. The determination of applications for licences, approvals, consents, permission or

registration of the direct regulation of any person or the enforcement of the same

in relation to contaminated land, control of pollution, air quality and noise and
statutory nuisance listed in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and

Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 (“the Regulations”).

Agengadiem 15h

Agenda Page 186



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C - Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C5

7. All non executive functions of the Council with regards to the licensing and
registration of :

a) caravan sites,

—hackney—earriage—and—private hire —vehicle licences—drivers—and—operators;
entertainm-ents

b) ents

¢) hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences, drivers and operators,

d) betting, gaming and lotteries,

e) theatres and cinemas

) Sexual Entertainment Venues

q) Street trading and markets

h) House to house collections

8. All other licensing functions listed in Part B of Schedule 1 to the Requlations other
than those relating to streets and highways.
4.9. _The passing of a resolution that schedule 2 to The Noise and Statutory

Nuisance Act 1993 should apply in the authority’s area

2.10. _To make recommendations to the Cabinet and Council insofar as it impacts on
the role and remit of the Council.

NOTFE—
‘Fhere—is—no—statutery—requirement—for—the—kieensing—Gommiltee—to-be politically
balanced—but—the—Coeunecil-has—resolved—to—apply—political-balance roles—of-the
membership-of- the-Commitlee-where possible:

The Licensing Committee has approved a scheme of delegation in respect of
Licensing Act matters as follows:

Matter to be Full Committee Sub Committee Officers
Dealt with
Application for If a police objection | If no objection
Personal licence is made
Application for
personal licence
with unspent
convictions
Application for | If a relevant | If a relevant | If no relevant
premises representation is | representation is | representation
licence/club made that means | made is made
premises certificate | the creation of a new

Saturation Zone
Application for | If a relevant | If a relevant | If no relevant
provisional representation is | representation is | representation
statement made that means | made is made

APPENDIX G(i)

Agenda Page 187



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION
JULY 2023

Part C — Responsibility for Functions

Page C6

the creation of a new
Saturation Zone

Application to vary
premises
licence/club
premises certificate

If a relevant
representation is
made that means
the creation of a new
Saturation Zone

If a relevant
representation is
made

If no relevant
representation
is made

Application to vary
designated personal
licence holder

If a police objection

All other cases

Request to be
removed as
designated personal
licence holder

All cases

Application for
transfer of premises
licence

If a police objection

All other cases

Application for

interim authority

If a police objection

All other cases

Application to review
premises
licence/club
premises certificate

All cases

Decision on whether
a complaint or
objection is
irrelevant, frivolous,
vexatious etc.

All cases

Decision to object
when Local
Authority is a
consultee and not
the lead authority

All cases

Determination of a

police
representation to a
temporary event
notice

All cases

The scheme of delegation will normally be adhered to but may be varied in
exceptional circumstances and having regard to any relevant statutory requirements.

LicensinglLicensing Act and Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Hearing

PanelHearing-Panel Composition

APPENDIX G(i)

Agenda Page 188



APPENDIX G(i)

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C = Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C7

a) A Hearing Panel will be drawn from the membership of the Licensing Committee
on an ad hoc basis.

b) Members of the Hearing Panel will be selected based on availability respecting
political balance where possible.

c) Members representing a Ward in which the application premises are situated will
not be selected.

d) Each selected Member shall be asked to confirm their attendance. If confirmation
cannot be given then the next Member alphabetically will be selected.

7.5— Licensing-and Environment-GENERAL-PURROSES-COMMITTEE

Rules

The-Committee-Procedure-Rules-and-the-Access-to-Infermation-Procedure-Rules
shall-apply-te-the-General-Purposes-Licensing-and-Environment-Commiltee-and-as
le-to-its-Sub-Gemmittees-

applicab

Membership, Chair and Quorum

Number-of- Members 15

SubstituteMernt Pormit No

Peolitical-Proportionality- Rules-Apply | ¥es

Appointments-/ Removals Resolution-oHull-Ceuncil

Restrict ChairViceChal '

Quertm One-guarter-(H4)-oHhe-commiltee-members
rotnded-up

Gouncil-Year eemm%es—banq—aﬁ&nﬂ&d%mﬂd—when
Feqwed—by—law

Standing SubC - H c Private_Hire VohicleS
Commitlee

Five members-{with-a-querdm-of-three)-to-be
drawp-from-the-membership-ef-the-General
Committee:

Remit and Terms of Reference

Agenda Page 189



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C ~ Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C8
—TFeo-maketecommendations-to the Cabinet-and Councilinsofar as-itimpacts on the
role-and-remitof-the-Gouncil:
—Tofixfees-and-charges
- All-non-executive functions of the Council with-regard-to:
Envirenmental-Health
Health-and-Safety-atwork-{other-than-the-exercise-of-the-functions-ef-the-Geounsil
ot loy-of. | ;
Eoed-hygiene-and-safely
Animal-health-and-hygiene

_AMMGHW—MH&WGH%&&MHH&WAHMS—MMM
withi ineluding

—TFhe-determination-of-applications-for-licencesapprovals—consentspermission-or
registration of the-directrequlation-ef-any-persen-or-the-enfercement-of-the-same
in-relation-to-contaminated-land—eontrol-of-pellution—airquality-and-noise—and
statutory—nuisance-listed-in-Schedule—1-to-the-Local-Authorities (Functions-and
Responsibilities){England)-Regulations-2000-(“the-Regulations”).

—All-nen—executivefunctions—of-the—Council-with—regards—to-the licensing—and

——caravan-sites;

—hackney—carriage—and—private—hire—vehicle—licences,—drivers—and-—operators;
entertainm

——ents;

—bettinggaming-and-otteries;

——theatres-and-cinemas

—Sexual Entertainment-Venues

—Streetirading-and markets

—Housedo-house-collections

1—Alotherlicensing functions-listed-in-Part- B-of Schedule-1-to-the-Regulations-ether

2.—-Commens-regulation-and-town-and-village-greens
3—Health-and-safety-regulations-(etherwise-than-as-empleyern

6-—The-power-to-protect-unclaimed-registered-commeonland-and-unclaimed-town-er
village-greens-againstunlawful-inteference-under-Section45(2}a)-of-the 2006-Act
{Section-45—+re-enasted—with-amendments,-the-more—familiar-Section-9-of -the
Gommons Registration Act-1965-with-effectfrem-15-October2006)-

7—TFhe-power-to-institute proceedings for-offences-in-respectofunelaimedland-under
Section-45(2)(h)-of-the-2006-Act:

APPENDIX G(i)

Agenda Page 190



NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL
CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
JULY 2023 Page C9

8-—All-malters—relating—te-the—consideration—and-granting—ef-Sexual-Entertainment
Venues-licences: Check why deleted

9:1. _The power to make a closing order on a takeaway food shop (this function is

delegated to Officers).Check if in scheme of delegation

10.2. Making recommendations to the Council on the adoption of bylaws_within the
remit of Licensing -

H-Functions relating-to-parishes; eleclions and electoral registration
12.Functions-relating-to-Polling-Station-reviews

14.Making recomimendations-lo-Ceuncilrelating-lo-the-name-and-status-of-areas-and
individual

15-Making-recommendations to Council on the-promotion-or-approval-of local-bill:

47-3. To make recommendations to the Cabinet and to Council on the budget insofar
as it impacts on the role and remit of the Committee.

NOTE:

Where an Officer has delegated authority to deal with any matter falling within the remit
of this Committee, the matter will normally be dealt with by that Officer, exercising
delegated powers, unless, in the opinion of that Officer, the matter is likely to give rise
to significant controversy or the nature of the decision is such that, in his or her opinion,
it should be referred to Committee for determination.

APPENDIX G(i)

Agenda Page 191



APPENDIX G(i)

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C - Responsibility for Functions

JULY 2023 Page G10

7-5-4—Hacekney-CarriagefPrivate-Hire Vehiele-Sub-Committee s Formatted: Left, Right: 0 cm, Space After: 8 pt, Line
spacing: Multiple 1.08 li

Remitand-Terms-of Reference

To-deal-with-all-matters—relating-to-Haekney-Carriage/Private-Hire~\ehicle-Licence
applieations-and

Agenda Page 192



APPENDIX G(i)

Agenda Page 193



Agendﬁsl\’iﬁ(m 15i

CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
MAY 2023 Page No C55

NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

SECTION 4: OTHER BODIES

1. Tenant Engagement Board

The membership of Tenant Engagement Board includes Council Tenants and
is an important way for the Council to engage with residents. Its terms of
reference are included in the Public Engagement section of this Constitution.

2. The Planning Policy Board

Rules

e The Planning Policy Board is an advisory body and has no decision-making
authority. '

e The Committee Procedure Rules and The Access to Information Procedure
Rules are not applicable.

Membership, Chair and Quorum

Number of Members +9

Substitute Members Permitted No

Political Proportionality Rules Apply | No

Appointments / Removals The relevant committees will make
appointments annually

Restrictions on Membership The Planning Policy Board shall comprise:-

(see Note) e Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Economic

Development

e 34 Members from the membership of the
Council appointed by the PPl Committee

e 3-4 Members of the Planning Committee
including the Chair and Vice-Chair

Restrictions on Chair/Vice-Chair Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Economic
Development
Quorum 3

Number of Ordinary Meetings per | At least 4 per year
Council Year

Remit and Terms of Reference

1. To act in an advisory capacity to the Portfolio Holder for Sustainable Economic
Development and Officers in the preparation, publication and submission of
the Council's Development Plan. The Development Plan is made up of
Development Plan Documents, these can be a single document knows as the
Local Plan or a number of documents covering particular locations of subject
areas.

2. To oversee the preparation of the Development Plan including development

targets, allocations of land for new development, planning polices for the
determination of planning applications and the planning policies map which

Agenda Page 194



APPENDIX H
NEWARK & SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION Part C — Responsibility for Functions
MAY 2023 Page No C56

details where such land allocations and planning policies apply within the
District of Newark & Sherwood.

3. To provide strategic overview of the production of those documents which will
comprise the Development Plan.

4. To provide strategic overview of the production of those documents which will
support the production and implementation of the Development Plan.

5. At the discretion of the Chair, Members of the Council who are not members
of the Planning Policy Board may be invited to its meetings and / or consulted
on matters pertaining to the Development Plan which may affect their Wards.

Note

When considering nominations for membership of the Board, Members should seek
to achieve geographical coverage of the District and balanced political representation
as far as reasonably possible.

Agenda Page 195



Agenda.liem 15

Acquisitions & Disposals Policy E91

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS POLICY

November 2021
Date for Review: November 2023

CONTENTS
1. Introduction E92
2. Disposals E92
2.1  The test for declaring a property to be surplus. E92
2.2 The process for identifying surplus or underperforming | E93
property

2.3 Review of disposal constraints E93
2.4 |Initiation period. E93
2.5 Method of disposal. E94
2.6 Public engagement requirements E95
2.7 Disposal Valuation E95
2.8 De minimis disposals. E95
2.9 Disposal at less than best consideration. E96
2.10 Exceptions to the obligation on achieving best value E96
2.11 Standard process for disposal E97
3. Acquisitions E98
3.1 Reasons for acquisition. E98
3.6 De minimus acquisitions E99
3.11 Process for acquisition of property E100
4. Roles in acquisitions/disposals E101
5. Delegations and approvals E101
6. Appropriation

Agenda Page 196



1.

APPENDIX |

Introduction

purpose of this Acqwsmons and Disposal Pollcv (Pollcv) is to act as a

framework to instruct Members, officers, third parties and members of the
public on the Council’s adopted approach on the acquisition and disposal of
property (including land and built assets). This Aequisitiohs—and-Disposals
Policy is necessary, in order to ensure that acquisitions and disposals are
performed with due consideration of current legislation, financial controls and
best practice whilst ensuring that the aims of the Community Plan are
achieved.

1.2.

This Policy covers property assets held by both the General Fund Account

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

(“GF”) and the Housing Revenue Account (“HRA”) and the appropriation from

the HRA to GF. The HRA is a ring-fenced account and as such stands
separate from the GF. Before any disposal is progressed under this Policy the
land/property responsibility must be established and the appropriate Estates
Team identified.

This pPolicy will cover the acquisition and disposal of freehold or leasehold
interests (including for the avoidance of doubt lease renewals, surrenders and
assignments of leases and including easements and covenants) in property
(land and buildings). The pPolicy does not cover the acquisition of goods,
services or items required to perform service delivery by the Council as this is
already covered by the Contract Procedure rRules of the Council.

The pPolicy focuses on the principal processes of acquisitions and disposals,

autherity routes-and-roles/responsibilities within the Council_and appropriate
deleqgations for decision making.

Any reference to the ‘Estate Team’ will mean either on behalf of the the Estates
Feam-of-the-Corporate Property Business Unit or Housing Business Units
depending on the type of property or scenario of acquisition or disposal in
guestion._In most circumstances this will be the Corporate Property Business

Unit for GF assets and the Housing Business Units for HRA assets

1.6.

All the steps taken to comply with this pPolicy should be set out in the report
to the relevant decision maker so that they have all the information needed to
make a robust decision, including any cross reference to the Financial

Agenda Page 197



APPENDIX |

Regulations._These reports should include Legal and Financial Implications,
provided by the relevant Business Unit.

1.7. In this Policy where there is reference to either land or property, these can be
used interchangeably.

1.8. A wide range of leqislation and case law applies to local authority land
transactions. For that reason, legal advice should always be sought at the
earliest opportunity to ensure that all implications can be identified.

1.9. Any disposal or acquisition transaction under this Policy may be subject to fees
that need to be recovered including legal fees.

DispesalsISPOSALS
2.1. For the purposes of this Policy Disposals are considered to include but are not
limited to:

e A sale of a freehold interest

Grant of a lease

Assignment of any expired term of a lease
The grant of an easement

2.2. Properties disposed of under the Right to Buy are excluded from this Policy as
their disposal is prescribed under the Housing Act 1985 (as amended).

2.3. Surplus Property

2.3.1. Where is it _identified that property could be surplus then the
following test should be applied.Fhe-testfor-declaringaproperty-to-be
surplus: One or more of the following key criteria should be considered to be
met in order to progress a disposal of Council property:

(a) The property makes little or no contribution to the Council’s service delivery,
aims or objectives within the Community Plan and cannot be appropriated
for planning purposes under section 122 Local Government Act 1972.

(b) The property generates little to no income_or /-produces a loss and has
limited regeneration potential.

(c) An alternative site has been identified which would achieve a more cost
efficientcost-efficient way of delivering this service for the Council.

(d) Its disposal is important for the delivery of organisation aims/-objectives
such as those set out in the Community Plan.

(e) The property is deemed to be an underperforming asset with either under-
utilisation of space at low capacity or that the financial cost to retain property
is too significant, the income generation possibilities are too low with a
greater return/ cost saving being achievable through disposal of the

property.

2.3.2. Any property can be identified as surplus by either a Business Manager for a
particular service_in_consultation with the Estates Team Business Manager,
Business Manager for Corporate Property or Business Manager for Housing.

Agenda Page 198



APPENDIX |

The case for disposal will need to be clearly set out and must include the criteria
for disposal, as set out in this Policy.

2.4. Review of disposal constraints

2.4.1. Once a property has been identified as being potentially surplus the Estates
Team will establish whether there are any constraints on the site that would limit
or even prevent disposal.; This could include sueh-as-legal, planning, statutory
authorities, government policy, and/or financial constraints, (such as the
property having been the subject of funding in the past that necessitates the
repayment of grant monies)_and should be in consultation with the relevant
Business Units. If such constraints are found that prevent disposal, alternative
options may need to be considered and pursued, as part of the options
appraisal for disposal.

2.5. Initiation period.

2.5.1. Where appropriate Business Units occupying a property shall give the Estates

Team at Ieast three months wrltten notlce of their |ntent|on to vacate property

Whetheﬁ&mnawhe%as&On notlflcatlon of a Setwe&Depathen%Busmess
Unit vacating a property, the Estates team will carry out a survey of the property
to inform any works or holding costs required during the disposal process. A full
inventory of compliance documentation and servicing is required from the
Service-Department-Business Unit at the point of handover. All holding costs
and additional compliance/ remedial works to the property will be covered by
the departing Service—DepartmentBusiness Unit’'s budget. The Service
DepartmentBusiness Unit must leave the property in a clean and tidy condition
to the satisfaction of the Estates team.

2.5.2. Once a property is—declaredhas been identified as surplus by a—Service
Department-where appropriate the Estates Team_-will instigate a process of
engagement with other departments-Business Units for future Council use. As
part of the options appraisal for disposal, an approach will also be made to the
Housing Revenue Account Development Team and the Council’s preferred
housing developer Arkwood Developments Limited, for consideration of
development options. If appropriate, then Third Sector interest, Ward Members,
Public Sector partners, local Parish & Town Councils and tenants of the
property will be contacted before seeking formal approval to sell on the open
market. This does not apply to investment property where decisions will be
made on a financial return basis and often only a short to medium term
investment lease will be offered to perspective tenants.

25:2.2.5.3. Where itis decided to negotiate a disposal to a single party (identified by
paragraph 2.5.2) rather than offer it on the open market then this needs to be
referred to in any decision. When neqotiations take place with the interested
party in order to reach an agreed sale price and the provisions of paragraph
2.7.1 still apply.

Agenda Page 199



APPENDIX |

2.6 Public Open Space Engagement Requirements
2.6.1.

Public open space is defined as any land laid out as a public garden, or
used for the purposes of public recreation, or land which is a disused burial
ground*. Disposals of open space pursuant to Sections 123(2A) of the

Local Government Act 1972 and {wherethe landwasacquired—or

appropriated—for—planning—purpeses)—section 233(4) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 {(“the-1990-Aet“)}-require a local authority

wishing to dispose of open space to advertise its intentions in a local
newspaper for_at least two consecutive weeks and to consider objections.
This is to be undertaken before making any final decisions about disposal
as the public response to the notices may be material to any such decision.
Where there are a significant number of objections to a disposal of open
space then it should be referred to Cabinet for decision. It could also be an
important factor in any determination by the Secretary of State of an
application for specific consent.

2.7. Disposal Valuation_and Marketing.

2.7.2.

%han—eﬁer—en—the—eeen—mapke{—aAn mdependent valuation should be

carried out by a suitably trained member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors, where possible, a minimum of two valuations should

be obtalned for review and aqreement bv the Estates Busmess Manaqer

Feaeha#agreedsal&pne&The flnal agreed price should be as close to

the initial valuation as possible. If there are valid reasons on why the initial
valuation figure was not reached then these should be recorded and if
necessary the valuation report amended to reflect this. Where there is a
significant difference between the final negetiated-agreed price and the
independent valuation figures then, to protect the Council’s interest in the
event of subsequent sales, the agreement to sell should include, as
appropriate,_mechanisms which protect the Council’s future interests as

advised by Legal Services. —an-assetlock,—claw-back-or-uplift-clause;
restrchve—covenants—ransem-—stip—retenton—userrghis—orrght-of-pre-
e

The preferred route for any disposal is that the property is marketed for a
period of time by the Estates team or by a suitably trained and
knowledgeable appointed agent in order to ensure that the best possible
offers are received for the property_before considering other methods of

disposal.

2.8. Method of Disposal.

1 5.336 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

Agenda Page 200



APPENDIX |

2.8.1. The most appropriate method of disposal should be adopted from the following,

2.9.

2.9.1.

taking into account the advice on marketing strategy from a RICS surveyor:

(a) Private Treaty — Where there is limited interest and a narrow valuation
band. Where appropriate, sales may be conducted by private treaty where
a marketing exercise has already been undertaken by a minimum of two
RICS Surveyors.

(b) Auction — Where there is wide interest and if this method of sale is
considered to be best to attract the highest price. The property is marketed
as part of an external auction process. A reserve price will be set except in
exceptional circumstances and where approved by the decision maker.

(c) Formal Tender — Where there is wide interest, land ownership is not
complex, no uncertainties regarding the grant of planning permission, and
a wide valuation band. Under this method, the Council would invite sealed
bids which are opened at the same time. The Council and the purchaser
then enter into a contract under which the purchaser usually pays a 10%
deposit.

(d) Informal Tender - Where there is a need to identify a preferred bidder and
enable further detailed terms to be determined. This method will be
appropriate where there are uncertainties such as planning, and, large or
complex redevelopment sites. The Council invites offers, which are opened
together, immediately following the closing date for the bids specified in the
Tendering process. If a higher unsolicited offer is subsequently received all
parties may be asked to resubmit.

(e) Occasionally, a limited marketing exercise may be used where the land or
property has already been subjected to open market testing or following
short-listing after initial expressions of interest exercise or there are known
to be a limited number of purchasers.

(f) Leasehold disposal. In certain circumstances, it may be appropriate to
dispose of property on a leasehold basis. This is particularly relevant where
a property may be required to fulfil a service need in the future or if the
property is held for investment, community provision or economic growth
purposes. Lease terms can be flexible to suit the occupational requirements
but should be on a market rental value basis (unless if there is justification
for deviation from this on the grounds listed in paragraph 2.10 of this policy).
Leases should also be contracted out of security of tenure provisions of the
Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, where possible, to avoid creating secure
tenancies.

De minimis Disposals.

In circumstances where a low value disposal is identified but for the avoidance
of doubt, under £10,000, {(atlessthan£15,;000)-such as garden land within the
HRA estate, boundary rectification or infrastructure adoptions these_de
minimis transactions are recommended to be dealt with in house by the

Estates Team; to be approved by the Corperate Property/-Housing-Business
Manager for the relevant Estates’ Team and the s151 Offlcer Fepany—tand

apeFepnatetlme/—FeseH%ee—A vaIuatlon WI|| be carned out bv the Estates Team

using comparable evidence of transactions previously conducted by the

Agenda Page 201



2.10.

2.10.1.

2.10.2.

2.10.3.

2.11.

2.11.1.

2.11.2.

APPENDIX |

Council and industry comparables in order to evidence that market value is
being achieved. Infrastructure adoptions such as pump stations will be dealt
with by the relevant Estates Team_managing the property served by the

infrastructure. depending-on-which-property—sserved-by-the-infrastructore—in
guestion-{ke-GeneralFund-or Housing-Revenue-Account

Disposal at Less Than Best Consideration.

The Council has a general power_to dispose of land in any manner they wish
subject to further provisions under s123 of the Local Government Act 1972
(the “1972 Act’). of disposal, contained in Section 123 of the Local
Gevernment-Act-1972. This provides that Local Authorities are not permitted
to dispose of land, or grant leases in excess of 7 years, for a consideration
which-is-less than the best price-which-isthat can reasonably be obtained?
obtainable, unless they first obtain consent from the Secretary of State or the
General Consent referred to below applies. Where a disposal is undertaken
at less than best price, then to protect the authority’s interest in the event of
subsequent sales, it should include; where, appropriate, a legal mechanism to
secure the Council’s interest or benefit. Also, a disposal at less than best
consideration could be providing the purchaser with a subsidy under UK
subsidy control and the implications of this need to be considered. n-asset

1 ) 1 )

- bt of o

A valuation by a suitably trained and knowledgeable member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors should be undertaken in order to quantify
the amount of the undervalue (unrestricted less restricted value). In addition,
an attempt needs to be made to financially quantify the economic, social and
environmental benefits to the authority and community which justify a disposal
at less than the valuation/best price amount. The overriding factor to be
considered when disposing at below the valuation/best price is to ensure that
it is within the Council’s power to do so, and the reasons are well documented,
transparent and justifiable.

It is for the Council to decide whether any proposed disposal requires specific
consent under the 1972 Act and legal advice should be sought on this point
and any application to the Secretary of State.

Exceptions to the Obligation on Achieving Best Value:

Short tenancies. The obligation to obtain best value contained in sections
123 of the Lecal- Gevernment-Act-1972_Act does not apply to disposals of
land by way of a “short tenancy” such as by the grant of a lease for a term
not exceeding seven years or the assignment of a term which has not more
than seven years to run.

The disposal meets a specific wellbeing purpose. The Local
Government Act 1972 General Disposal Consent 2003 (“the Consent”)

25123(2) Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)

Agenda Page 202



2.11.3.

2.11.4.

APPENDIX |

removes the requirement for authorities to seek specific consent from the
Secretary of State for any disposal of land where the local authority
considers that the purpose for which the land is to be disposed is likely to
contribute to the achievement of any one or more of the promotion or
improvement of:

a) Economic wellbeing

b) Social wellbeing

c) Environmental wellbeing

In this circumstance the undervalue (i.e. the difference between the
unrestricted value of the interest to be disposed of and the consideration
accepted) must be £2,000,000 or less. Where the proposed disposal does
not fall within the terms of the Consent an application to the Secretary of
State for a specific consent is required.

Following amendment by the Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 section
233 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 now empowers the
Secretary of State to give consent in relation to land held for planning
purposes.

[Previous table to be replaced by flowchart for ease of reference]

3. Acquisitions

3.1

Reasons for Acquisition. There are a number of circumstances where the

acquisition of land or built assets may be necessary. This includes service
delivery, investment purposes and strategic development opportunities within
the district. There are essential criteria which each type of acquisition must meet
to be considered for approval as outlined below:

3.1.1 Service delivery requirement. If the Estates Team are requested to

acquire any land or property on behalf of the Council at the request of a

Business Unit ef-a-Service-Bepartment-then the requirement will first be

considered across the availability of existing property held in the
Councils estate. The test of suitability will be agreed between the Service

DepartmentBusiness Unit and Estates Team Bepartment-but will focus

on size, location and quality of space required.

3.1.2 Strategic development purposes. If there is a way of increasing the

deliverables of housing units and/or objectives set in the Community
Plan then this will be considered as a Sstrategic Bdevelopment
Aacquisition and tested on the basis of final outcomes of the wider site
and a full options appraisal being carried out rather than the individual
piece of land or property being acquired.

3.1.3 Investment purposes. Land or property may be acquired for the

purpose of the Council making an investment subject to the following
criteria being met:

Agenda Page 203



3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

APPENDIX |

(a) The property generates a predicted net return on investment of
6%.

(b) The land or property proposed to be acquired has had a full
inspection and survey of the condition and is in relatively good
condition with full repairing and insuring leases in place for any
tenanted parts.

(c) The management of the property is able to be facilitated by either
the in-house Estates Team or through the appointment of a
managing agent on a temporary basis until recruitment or extra
capacity can be secured.

(d) All ongoing revenue costs are approved and identified within an
existing budget.

(e) If held as an outright investment rather than for redevelopment or
place-shaping then a company should be used by the Council in
line with the provisions of the Localism Act 2011.

Market appraisal and valuation

All proposed acquisitions of property with a financial cost will be valued by a
suitably trained and qualified professional with knowledge of the local market.
This is recommended to be a Chartered Surveyor with knowledge of the specific
market in question and who holds a Registered Valuer status from the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The level of appraisal of a potential
acquisition should be reflective of the proposed value and advice should be
sought from the Estates Team.

Acquisition at a higher than market value (i.e. acquisition at a premium) may be

3.3

possible where the end deliverable result will mean a higher net return or saving
for the Council. For example where a site may have an income producing lease
agreed subject to the Council acquiring the land. Conversely where acquiring
the land will over time produce a net saving to the Council. The promotion or
improvement of economic wellbeing, social wellbeing or environmental
wellbeing savings/ profits will also _be considered in_any justification for
acquisition at a _higher than market value price. This would have to be clearly
demonstrated within any business case/report for decision.

Due Diligence must be carried out prior to acquisition: All property being
acquired will have proper due diligence carried out by appropriately qualified
professionals prior to purchase depending on the nature of the site. This will
consist of legal searches, site inspections and investigations on potential
impacts of use and planning feasibility. This work will be led-co-ordinated by the
acquiring Estates Team and_will be in consultation with the relevant Business
Units, such as Legal, Finance and Planning and willmay where required involve

appointment of external consultants.-te-undertake-the required-surveys

Agenda Page 204



APPENDIX |

3.53.4 De minimuis acquisitions In circumstances where a low value acquisition is
identified (at less than_£10,000 £15,600) such as strategic site access or
boundary rectification these transactions are recommended to be dealt with in
house by the Estates Team; to be approved by the Corporate Property/ Housing
Business Manager and the s151 Officer. For any land acquisitions the Estates
team can be requested to handle an acquisition subject to appropriate time/
resource. A valuation will be carried out using comparable evidence of
transactions previously conducted by the Council and industry comparables in
order to evidence that the property is being purchased at the correct value.

3:63.5The Council has the power to acquire land compulsorily, known as a
Compulsory Purchase Order (“CPQ”) but this requires approval by the relevant
confirming _authority. The Council should use compulsory purchase powers
where it is expedient to do so and where there is a compelling case in the public
interest to make a compulsory purchase order. The process for CPO is laid out

in Ieglslatlon %—H%—G%H%GW—BG\N&FS#GF&GQHISM&H—G@%HS@W—WGH&S@

| 3.73.6 Management-Responsibility: Where appropriate, the Estates Team and the

service representatives will carry out a pre-completion inspection of the
property and if necessary seek instructions from the service regarding the
interim management of the property acquired pending development or
occupation.

| 3.83.7 bata-Cellection-In all cases where an acquisition occurs, arrangements will be
made to ensure that details are recorded in the asset management records and
Terrier records.

3.93.8 Performance Management. There will be ongoing monitoring of acquisitions
between the responsible officers and the parties selling or otherwise concerned
with the acquisitions. There will be appropriate reporting to Senior Leadership
Team and the relevant Portfolio Holder as appropriate where performance is in
guestion.

3-103.9 Following the completion of an acquisition the relevant Business Units
must _be notified so that the acquisition can be correctly dealt with for the
purposes such as the asset reqister, insurance, Legal post-completion and
potentially business rates

[Previous table to be replaced by flowchart for ease of reference]
4. Roles in Acquisitions/Disposals
4.1 The roles in_acquisitions and disposals under this Policy will usually be

determined by the whether the asset is held (or to be held in the case of an
acquisition) by the GF or HRA accounts.

Agenda Page 205



4.2

4.3

APPENDIX |

Where appropriate the Corporate Property Estate Team will assist transactions
relating to the HRA account.

Support will be provided and often required in transactions under this Policy by
Planning, Legal Services and Finance.

5. Delegations and Approvals

5.1 These delegations apply to acquisitions and disposals under this Policy subject
to any acquisition forming part of the Capital Programme.

5.2  The Capital Programme is set by Full Council through the Budget following the
process outlined in the Financial Regulations. All expenditure must comply with
the Financial Requlations and additional advice can be sought from Financial
Services.

5__2_

Value of Acquisition or Disposal

Delegated Authority

Wayleaves, easements and licences at
less-than-£1 value of £1 or less

Business Manager for Corporate
Property on General Fund or
Business Manager of Housing for HRA

— lovel I ’
£10.000 or less (de minimis)

Recommendation by Business Manager

for Corporate Property/ Housing_of the

relevant Estates Team; and approved by
the S151 oOfficer.

More than £10,000 and up to £50,000

Relevant Director to be approved by the

S151 Officer

ARy d_lspesalhaequl isition-more t"a'l' e

Relevant Director

Any—disposal/acquisition —mMore than

Relevant—director{s}—or——Portfolio

£100,000—£50,000 and less than | Holder(s) as applicable in consultation

£300,000—value with_relevant Director and S151 Officer.
SLT.

Anything at  £300,000 or more | Relevant Portfolio Holder or Cabinet in

value£300,000 or abov

accordance  with Key  Decision

requirements.

6. Appropriation

6.1

There are separate rules for the HRA and GF accounts to ensure that neither

subsidises the purposes of the other. Transfer of assets known as appropriation
is the transfer of land or buildings from the HRA to the GF or vice versa.
Appropriation does not involve a sale or purchase as no transfer of title takes
place, the property simply moves from one council account to another.

Agenda Page 206



APPENDIX |

6-16.2 There is a general power to appropriate land?® but this is subject to certain
provisions.

6-26.3 If assets are appropriated from the HRA into the General Fund, they are bound
by the same legal rules as if they had been disposed of to an outside party.
Local authorities are required to seek consent from the Secretary of State to
appropriate land which has housing on it and advice should be sought from the
Council’s Legal Services.

6-36.4 Appropriation will be considered on a site by site basis and will be subject to

the follow approvals:regardiess-ofthe-value

Value of Appropriation Delegated Authority
£10,000 or less Relevant Director to be approved by
S151 Officer

More than £10,000 and up to £50,000 Portfolio Holder(s) as applicable in
consultation with relevant Director and
S151 Officer.

Above £50,000 Cabinet decision

35122(1) of the Local Government Act 1972

Agenda Page 207



Agendg:Hiem 15k

Planning Committee Terms of Reference
Existing

13.To adopt a scheme of delegation to Officers, including the ability for
District Councillors to reserve matters to Committee in circumstances
prescribed by the scheme; the scheme to be reviewed as necessary and at
least annually, and

14.To adopt a Protocol for Planning Committee which must take Probity in
Planning or equivalent national guidance into account and may include

provision for public speaking.
Proposed:

13.To adopt a sScheme of dDelegation to Officers, ineluding-subject to the
ability for District Councillors to reserve—refer matters to Committee in
circumstances prescribed by the sehemeProtocol; the scheme to be
reviewed as necessary and at least annually, and

14.To adopt a Protocol for Planning Committee which must take Probity in
Planning or equivalent national guidance into account. Including the ability
for_District Councillors to refer matters to Committee in_circumstances
prescribed by the Protocol and may include provision for public speaking.
The Protocol to be reviewed as necessary and at least annually.

Agenda Page 208



Agenda Iltem 16

NEWARK &
SHERWOQOD

awas DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to: Annual Full Council Meeting — 20 May 2025
Relevant Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Paul Peacock, Strategy, Performance & Finance

Director Lead: Sue Bearman, Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services
and Monitoring Officer

Lead Officer: Nigel Hill, Business Manager - Elections and Democratic
Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer, Ext. 5243

Report Summary
Report Title Call-In Annual Report

To update Full Council on call-in requests received during the

Purpose of Report 2024-25 municipal year.

Recommendations That Members note the content of the report.
Reason for To comply with the call-in procedure rules in the Council’s
Recommendation Constitution.

1.0 Background

1.1 The use of the Council’s call-in procedure is monitored annually in accordance with the
Call-in Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution. This is the first report to Full
Council since the Call-in Procedure was adopted in May 2022, as previously there have
been nil returns.

1.2 Executive decisions (i.e. those taken by Cabinet, Committees of Cabinet and Cabinet
Portfolio Holders) can be called-in for consideration by a Call-In Sub-Committee of
Policy and Performance Improvement Committee. Any call-in delays the
implementation of a decision. While it is an important check and balance under
Executive Arrangements, it can have an impact on the speed of decision making in an
authority if it is used extensively.

1.3 This report summarises the use of call-in from May 2024 to the end of April 2025.

2.0 Summary

2.1 The Monitoring Officer received one call-in request in 2024-25. On 22 January 2025, five
Members submitted a call-in notice in relation to a decision made by Cabinet on 21
January 2025 regarding the disposal of land at Lowfield Lane, Balderton. The grounds

Agenda Page 209



for the call-in were that the decision was not made in accordance with the Council’s
decision-making principles and was not in the public interest. The call-in was
determined to be invalid on the basis the notice did not contain sufficient information,
did not properly specify at least one of the grounds detailed in the call-in procedure
rules, and raised a question already answered in the report relating to the decision.

2.2 The small number of call-ins is an indication that the call-in process is not being used to
cause unnecessary delay or frustration of the decision-making process. No amendments
are proposed to the call-in procedure at the present time.

3.0 Implications
In writing this report and in putting forward recommendations, officers have considered

the following implications: Data Protection; Digital & Cyber Security; Equality &
Diversity; Financial; Human Resources; Human Rights; Legal; Safeguarding &
Sustainability and where appropriate they have made reference to these implications
and added suitable expert comment where appropriate.

3.2 Legal Implications (LEG2425/9773)

In accordance with the Call-In Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution Full
Council is the appropriate body to consider the content of this report.

Background Papers and Published Documents

Except for previously published documents, which will be available elsewhere, the documents
listed here will be available for inspection in accordance with Section 100D of the Local
Government Act 1972.

Notice of Call-in of Decision dated 22 January 2025

Decision in relation to Call-in Notice dated 24 January 2025

Cabinet meeting 21 January 2025 — Item 231 ‘Lowfield Lane Disposal’ -
https://democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=288&MId=1016

The Call-in Procedure is at page D46 of the Council’s Constitution - https://www.newark-
sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-
council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Constitution-(Complete-
Version---20.02.25).pdf

Agenda Page 210


https://democracy.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=288&MId=1016
https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Constitution-(Complete-Version---20.02.25).pdf
https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Constitution-(Complete-Version---20.02.25).pdf
https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Constitution-(Complete-Version---20.02.25).pdf
https://www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk/media/nsdc-redesign/documents-and-images/your-council/your-council/councillors-and-committees/councilx27s-constitution-/Constitution-(Complete-Version---20.02.25).pdf

Agenda Item 18a

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet held in the Civic Suite, Castle House, Great North Road,
Newark, NG24 1BY on Tuesday, 11 March 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor P Peacock (Chair)
Councillor R Cozens, Councillor S Crosby, Councillor L Brazier,
Councillor SForde, Councillor CPenny, Councillor P Taylor and

Councillor J Kellas

ALSO IN Councillor P Rainbow
ATTENDANCE:

APOLOGIES FOR None
ABSENCE:

252 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Leader advised that the proceedings were being audio recorded and live
streamed by the Council.

253 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

There were no declarations of interest.

254  MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 18 FEBRUARY 2025

The minutes from the meeting held on 18 February 2025 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

255 BUDGET PERFORMANCE QUARTER 3

The Assistant Business Manager - Financial Services presented a report which detailed
the forecast outturn position, as at 31 December 2024, for the 2024/25 financial year
for the Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue and capital
budgets. The report detailed performance against the approved budget estimates of
revenue expenditure and income; report on major variances from planned budget
performance; and report on variations to the Capital Programme for approval; all in
accordance with the Council’s Constitution.

Members noted a projected favourable variance on Service budgets against the
revised budget of £1.023m, with an overall favourable variance of £0.250m to be
transferred to General Fund reserves. The favourable variance of £1.023m on service
budgets managed by business managers represented 4.71% of the total service
budgets. The Council had been fully compliant with all prudential indicators during the
reporting period.

Agenda Page 211



256

AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet:
(a) note the General Fund overall projected favourable outturn variance of £0.250m;

(b) note the Housing Revenue Account overall projected favourable outturn variance
of £0.500m to the Major Repairs Reserve;

(c) approve the variations to the Capital Programme at Appendix E;

(d) approve the Capital Programme revised budget and financing of £42.162m; and
(e) note the Prudential indicators at Appendix H.

Reasons for Decision:

To consider the forecast outturn position for the 2024/25 financial year for the
Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue and capital budgets.

To show performance against the approved estimates of revenue expenditure and
income; report on major variances from planned budget performance; and report on
variations to the Capital Programme for approval; all in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

Options Considered:
Not applicable.

COMMUNITY PLAN PERFORMANCE QUARTER 3

The Transformation and Service Improvement Officer presented a report which
detailed the Quarter 3 Community Plan Performance Report (October to December
2024).

The report and accompanying presentation highlighted various projects undertaken
by Business Units and performance in areas including Council Tax Support and
processing Housing Benefit Claims, rent arrears, the Beacon Centre, recycling and
focus weeks, and the new Newark and Sherwood Gift Card.

In discussion, Members noted that with regard to the rent arrears target, an increase
in arrears had been anticipated due to the move to universal credit and the delay in
new benefits being paid. The new Housing Management system due to be launched
imminently, would help reduce the levels through faster transactions.

Members discussed the Beacon Centre, noting the performance targets for
occupation and the difficulty setting a target for the centre due to the nature of the
churn of tenants, which was to be welcomed as a space for new businesses to grow.
The target would be reliant on the tenants predicted growth. The Centre Manager
was in regular dialogue with tenants and advertisement and marketing was
undertaken to raise awareness of the Centre and to attract new businesses.

AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet:

Agenda Page 212



257

a) review the Community Plan Performance Report attached as Appendix 1;
b) review the compliance report attached as Appendix 2; and

c) consider the Council’s performance against its objectives highlighting any areas of
high performance and identifying areas for improvement.

Reasons for Decision:

Performance management is used to drive improvement by analysing data and
progress against key activities as well as building a picture of the context of
performance using district statistics, customer feedback and workforce information.

Options Considered:
Not applicable.

QUARTER 3 2024/25 - HOUSING HEALTH & WELLBEING HOUSING COMPLIANCE
ASSURANCE REPORT

The Director - Housing, Health & Wellbeing presented a report which set out the
performance position as of 31 December 2024 (Quarter 3) in the new format with
regard to compliance, including actions to rectify identified issues. The report set out
the Council’s performance against the Council’s legal and regulatory landlord
responsibilities for a range of building safety measures including fire protection, gas,
asbestos, electrical and water as well as summarising details of the Council’s housing
stock.

Members discussed the actions taken in relation to fire safety, including fire safety
checks and fire door inspections, noting the challenging inspection programme and
the need to be able to demonstrate safety compliance. Members were satisfied with
the proposed schedule of inspections.

AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet note:

a) the exceptions to performance of the housing service compliance functions; and
b) the new format for performance for Quarter 3 2024/25 onwards.

Reasons for Decision:

To enable the Cabinet to monitor performance and compliance relating to the

Council’s legal and regulatory landlord responsibilities for 27 building safety measures
including fire protection, gas, asbestos, electrical and water.

Options Considered:
Not applicable.

Meeting closed at 7.05 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 213



Agenda Item 18b

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Cabinet held in the Civic Suite, Castle House, Great North Road,
Newark, NG24 1BY on Tuesday, 1 April 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor P Peacock (Chair)

Councillor R Cozens, Councillor L Brazier, Councillor S Forde, Councillor
C Penny, Councillor P Taylor and Councillor J Kellas

ALSO IN Councillor N Allen, Councillor S Haynes, Councillor R Holloway and
ATTENDANCE: Councillor P Rainbow

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor S Crosby
ABSENCE:

258 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Leader advised that the proceedings were being audio recorded and live
streamed by the Council.

259 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

Councillor L Brazier declared an Other Registerable Interest in Agenda Item No. 6 —
Levelling Up 3 - Programme Update — as a Member of Ollerton & Boughton Town
Council.

260 MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 11 MARCH 2025

The minutes from the meeting held on 11 March 2025 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

261 LEVELLING UP 3 - PROGRAMME UPDATE (KEY DECISION)

The Director — Planning & Growth presented a report which provided Cabinet with an
update on the Levelling Up Fund 3 (LUF 3) programme and proposed key
recommendations to the Cabinet regarding the delivery of the Ollerton and Clipstone
regeneration projects. Following the update report presented to the Cabinet in
December 2024, officers had continued to discuss the developments associated with
the ‘Shaping Sherwood’s Revival Scheme’ with the government and had continued to
seek the necessary extension of the LUF 3 funding period to March 2028, following a
pause of the national programme in 2024, and the prolonged confirmation of the
£20m grant for the local scheme.

It was reported that in January 2025, the Council and government successfully
formalised the £20m LUF 3 commitment to Sherwood through a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU). The MoU provided further assurance relating to the future
funding in addition to the release of an initial draw down of LUF 3 grant of
£1,264,211. However, it was noted that the essential deadline extension to March
2028 remained unconfirmed by the government at the current time.

Agenda Page 214



AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet:

a) notes the updates associated with the LUF 3 Programme, including the recent
execution of the Government Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), and the
initial payment of LUF 3 grant to the Council, as detailed in paragraph 1.2 of the
report.

Ollerton Town Centre Regeneration Scheme

b) approves the reallocation of £450,000 of the capital budget of £500,000
approved by Cabinet on 10 December 2024, to revenue budget, as detailed in
paragraph 2.5 of the report, funded by the LUF 3 grant;

c) approves the addition of £68,000 within the Capital Programme, financed by
grant, as detailed in paragraphs 1.5 and 1.6 of the report; and

d) approves the addition of a £322,000 revenue budget, financed by grant, as
detailed in paragraphs 1.5 and 1.6 of the report.

Clipstone Regeneration Scheme

e) approves the reallocation of the capital budget of £200,000 approved by Cabinet
on 10 December 2024, to revenue budget, as detailed in paragraph 2.6 of the
report, funded by the LUF 3 grant; and

f)  notes the additional £40,000 revenue budget, funded by Government granted
LUF 3 capacity funding, as detailed in paragraph 1.13 of the report.

Reasons for Decision:

The recommendations within the report aim to prevent further delays of both
Ollerton and Clipstone projects, supporting the scheme to meet an anticipated March
2028 LUF 3 spend deadline. Without the provision of additional funding to progress
key workstreams, the ability to meet a March 2028 spend deadline is further
compromised and would present a subsequent risk regarding potential loss of
funding.

Options Considered:

Consideration has been given as to whether both Ollerton and Clipstone should be
placed into a secondary paused status, until the outstanding risks and matters noted
in this report are resolved. This approach is not recommended at this stage, as by
pausing both projects again, it is unlikely that either scheme will be able to defray the
LUF 3 funds by March 2028, preventing transformational change to be delivered to
the Ollerton and Clipstone communities. Furthermore, the budgets requested within
this report are required to finalise the outstanding matters detailed in this report, and
therefore progression is not possible without additional funding.

Agenda Page 215



262

263

STRATEGIC HOUSING AND EMPLOYMENT LAND AVAILABILITY ASSESSMENT
METHODOLOGY

The Business Manager — Planning Policy & Infrastructure presented a report which
presented the draft Strategic Housing and Employment Land Availability Assessment
(SHELAA) methodology and sought approval of the document for public consultation.
The National Planning Policy Framework required all local authorities to prepare a
SHELAA to identify a sufficient mix of sites for housing and employment. In order to
assess each site, it was necessary for a methodology document to be prepared. This
was attached as Appendix 1 to the report. The draft methodology document had been
considered by the Planning Policy Board in February who had recommended it to the
Cabinet for approval.

AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet approve:

a) the proposed contents of the Strategic Housing and Employment Land Availability
(SHELAA) Assessment Methodology at Appendix 1 to the report; and

b) undertaking the public consultation for a period of six weeks with relevant
stakeholders on the proposed Methodology.

Reasons for Decision:
To allow the District Council to consult on the draft SHELAA Methodology.

Options Considered:
There is no formal requirement to consult on SHELAA methodology, but it is
considered that by doing so it will ensure the site assessment process is robust.

BASSETLAW, NEWARK & SHERWOOD COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY
(KEY DECISION)

The Business Manager — Public Protection presented a report which sought approval
for a new Bassetlaw and Newark & Sherwood Community Safety Partnership Strategy.
Each Community Safety Partnership (CSP) was required to have in place a Strategy
and a delivery plan setting out key themes within the CSP. The Bassetlaw and Newark
& Sherwood CSP was attached as Appendix 1 to the report, with the delivery plan at
Appendix 2. The key themes in the Strategy were: serious violence against women and
girls and domestic abuse; anti-social behaviour; vulnerability and contextual
safeguarding; community cohesion; and neighbourhood crime. It was noted that the
Strategy had been formally adopted by Bassetlaw District Council.

AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet approve the adoption of the new Community
Safety Strategy.

Reasons for Decision:

To ensure Newark and Sherwood District Council meet the requirement from the
Community Safety Partnership by adopting the strategy. This directly links to the
reduction of Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour Objective from the Community Plan.

Agenda Page 216



264

265

Options Considered:
Community Safety Partnerships are required to have a strategy in place. This
document has been adopted by Bassetlaw. There are no other alternative options.

DOMESTIC ABUSE POLICY (KEY DECISION)

The Business Manager — Public Protection presented a report which sought approval
for a four-week public consultation period on a draft Domestic Abuse Policy, prior to
formal approval. It was noted that every local authority in Nottinghamshire had
committed to seek accreditation through the Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance which
was being supported and funded by Nottinghamshire County Council. The draft policy
was attached as Appendix 1 to the report and this set out what people could expect
when contacting the Council and how the Council would support those impacted by
domestic abuse. The draft policy would be shared with the Tenant Engagement Board,
Engaged Tenants and key stakeholders, alongside the proposed public consultation.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

a) approval be given for a four-week period public consultation for the draft
Domestic Abuse Policy; and

b) delegated authority be given to the Portfolio Holder for Public Protection &
Community Relations in consultation with the Director - Communities &
Environment to approve any amendments resulting from the consultation.

Reasons for Decision:

e To ensure compliance with the requirements of the Domestic Abuse Housing
Alliance Accreditation;

e To continue to seek improvements for those facing Domestic Abuse; and

e The recommendations link directly to the Community Plan Objectives of Reducing
Crime ad Anti-Social Behaviour.

Options Considered:
A Domestic Abuse Policy is required to be in place in order to ensure compliance with
the Domestic Abuse Housing Alliance Accreditation, there are no alternative options.

COMMUNITY PLAN REFRESH (KEY DECISION)

The Transformation and Service Improvement Officer presented a report which
proposed a refreshed Community Plan for 2023-27 for recommendation to Full
Council. The Community Plan was the key direction setting document used to outline
the priorities and vision of the Council for a four-year term. The current Plan had been
in place formally since December 2023 and senior Members and Portfolio Holders had
been reviewing progress against the Plan and challenging what was outstanding as a
priority and account for any emerging priorities which had arisen since the
development of the Plan. The refreshed Community Plan was attached as Appendix 1
to the report, with the changes being highlighted in Appendix 2.

Agenda Page 217



266

As part of the refresh, it was proposed to adapt and broaden out the action which
described the Motion for the Ocean, to instead to outline the Council’s ambition to
work in conjunction with statutory authorities to promote good river and waterway
health. The refreshed Community Plan had been presented to the Policy and
Performance Improvement Committee at their meeting held on 10 March 2025, at
which they recommended approval.

AGREED (with 6 votes for and 1 abstention) that:

a) the refreshed Community Plan 2023-2027 be referred to Full Council for approval
and adoption;

b) the £45,000 budget that was allocated towards activities for Motion for the
Ocean as part of the 2025/26 revenue budget setting, be re-allocated into the
Flooding Defence Reserve to fund a further Community Resilience Grant Scheme
in 2025/26; and

c) the transfer of £10,000 from the Cleaner, Safer, Greener reserve to
Environmental Services to allow the organisation of day-to-day activities around
the commitment to grow ocean literacy (Motion for the Ocean) be approved.

Reasons for Decision:

The Community Plan 2023-2027 is the key document which will set the vision and
direction of the Council during a four-year term. As such it is necessary that this
document is refreshed throughout the four year term, to ensure the plan reflects the
projects and initiatives which are ongoing or yet to be delivered.

Options Considered:
To not refresh the Community Plan for 2023-2027.

MANSFIELD CREMATORIUM REDEVELOPMENT (KEY DECISION)

The Assistant Director — Legal & Democratic Services presented a report which sought
approval of the resolution by the Mansfield and District Joint Crematorium Committee
(of which the Council is a constituent member) to redevelop Mansfield Crematorium
and to approve the financial arrangements for the Council’s contribution to the cost of
redevelopment.

The Crematorium required either significant refurbishment or replacement, as was
detailed in the exempt appendix to the report. The Joint Committee had carefully
considered the available options and on 24 February 2025 unanimously resolved to
endorse refurbishment, subject to approval by each constituent authority. It was
reported that both Mansfield and Ashfield District Council’s had resolved to endorse
refurbishment and approve the applicable capital expenditure arrangements.

AGREED (unanimously) that Cabinet approve:

a) Option C the high level refurbishment of Mansfield Crematorium as detailed in
Exempt Appendix A to the report, and commencement of the refurbishment
project;

Agenda Page 218



b) the allocation of the Usable Reserves to partially cover the VAT liability on the
development, limiting the financial impact on each authority area for the
refurbishment programme, as set out in Annex A within Exempt Appendix A to
the report;

c) the remaining total contribution by the Council, to pay the remaining VAT liability
and year one deficit, as set out in paragraphs 2.45, 2.46 and Annex A within
Exempt Appendix A to the report; and

d) an increase to the Capital Programme by £211,900, funded by the Change
Management Reserve, to fund the Council’s contribution towards the high-level
refurbishment works as suggested in Option C.

Reasons for Decision:
To ensure ongoing performance, viability and reputation of the Mansfield
Crematorium.

Options Considered:

The Mansfield and District Joint Crematorium Committee has considered alternatives
including new build, sale, closure and a lower-level refurbishment. These are all
explored in detail in the exempt appendix to the report.

Meeting closed at 7.25 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 219



Agenda Iltem 18c

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Policy & Performance Improvement Committee held in the Civic
Suite, Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Monday, 10 March 2025 at
6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor M Pringle (Chair)
Councillor N Ross (Vice-Chair)

Councillor N Allen, Councillor CBrooks, Councillor R Holloway,
Councillor S Michael, Councillor D Moore, Councillor P Rainbow,
Councillor M Spoors, Councillor T Thompson and Councillor T Wendels

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor A Brazier, Councillor A Freeman, Councillor J Hall, Councillor
ABSENCE: R Jackson and Councillor K Roberts

82 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair advised that the meeting was being recorded and live streamed from Castle
House.

83 DECLARATION OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

There were no declarations of interest.

84 MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 10 FEBRUARY AND 17 FEBRUARY 2025

The minutes from the meetings held on 10 and 17 February 2025 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

85 BUILDING SAFETY POLICY

The Committee considered the report presented by the Director — Housing, Health &
Wellbeing which sought to share with Members the draft Building Strategy Policy
which now included how tenants and leaseholders in Council owned homes could
raise safety concerns together with the Council’s own responsibilities to keep homes
warm, safe and decent.

As reported, the aim of the Policy was to set out how the Council met the
requirements of the Building Safety Act 2022, the Fire Safety Act 2021 and other
legislative and regulatory changes that had been introduced and proposed following
the Grenfell tragedy and how it discharged those duties to residents and other
stakeholders to keep residents and buildings safe.

It was also reported that there was a separate Policy for tenants and residents called
“Safety in the Home” which set out how the Council managed their health and
building safety responsibilities. This Policy outlined how the Council managed all risks
identified to ensure effective action plans were in place to mitigate those risks as soon
as reasonably practicable for all residents living in those buildings, employees and
contractors who would work in and around those buildings and members of the
public.

Agenda Page 220



86

In responding to a query about what process was in place should there be a lift failure
at one of the Council’s housing with care facilities, the Director advised that this was
set out in the Fire Safety Strategy.

AGREED  (unanimously) that the Building Safety Policy be endorsed.

COMPLIANCE UPDATE - HOUSING SERVICES

The Committee considered the report presented by the Director — Housing, Health &
Wellbeing which sought to provide Members with the performance position as at 31
December 2024 (Q3) against the Council’s legal and regulatory landlord
responsibilities for a range of building safety measures which included: fire
protection; gas; asbestos; electrical; and water. The report also summarised details of
the Council’s housing stock. The information was presented in a new format with
regard to compliance, including actions to rectify identified issues. It was reported
that the range of the Red/Amber/Green (RAG) ratings had been shortened as
recommended by external auditors and the Regulator of Social Housing with the
changes detailed at paragraph 2.4 of the report.

Performance exceptions were listed at paragraph 3 of the report and these included:
Domestic Gas Servicing; Fire Safety Checks; Fire Door Inspections; Domestic Asbestos
& Communal; Water Safety; Stair Lifts & Hoists; EICR Electrical Certification; and Solid
Fuel & Qil Servicing.

In responding to a query raised about the number of Red ratings within the
performance exceptions, the Director advised that consideration was being given to
whether additional resources were required. She also noted that some of the
exceptions listed had a very low level of tolerance and that it would only take 1 or 2
issues to put the compliance rating into amber or red.

In relation to incidents of damp and mould, a Member queried whether the Council
were aware of the primary causes and whether these were prioritised. The Director
advised that consideration was being given as to whether the compliance criteria
should be broadened to include this. Work was ongoing to introduce Awab’s Law but
the reason for incidents of damp and moult could be due to a variety of reasons for
example: a cold spot on an external wall; issues with ventilation. The Council
employed a Damp & Mould Surveyor and also operated a 24 hour emergency
response. She noted that the number of complaints had increased, in part due to the
Council actively engaging with tenants to ask them questions about this.

In closing the debate, the Chair referred to the annual fire risk assessment and the
work undertaken in relation to fire door repairs and also welcomed the inhouse
challenges to the housing teams in a drive to improve service provision.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

a) the exceptions to performance of the housing service compliance
functions be noted; and

Agenda Page 221



87

88

b) the new format for performance for Q3 2024/2025 onwards be
noted.

PROJECTED GENERAL FUND AND HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT TO
31 MARCH 2025 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

The Committee considered the report presented by the Business Manager — Financial
Services which provided Members with the forecast outturn position for the
2024/2025 financial year for the Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account revenue and capital budgets. The report also provided Members with
information as to the performance against the approved estimates of revenue
expenditure and income and on major variances from planned budget performance,
in accordance with the Council’s Constitution.

Details were provided as to the current position (as at 31 December 2024) variances.
Table 1 showed a favourable variance on service budgets against the revised budget
of £1.023m, with an overall favourable variance of £0.250m that would require
transferring to the General Fund reserves. Table 3 provided an overview of projected
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Outturn for 2024/25 with an unfavourable variance
on the net cost of HRA Services against the revised budget of £0.061m and an
increase in the forecast transfer to the Major Repairs Reserve of £0.500m. Details of
the overview of the Projected Capital Outturn 2024/25 were also provided.

In considering the report, a Member queried as to the increase in variation to the
budget for the remedial works at the Newark Castle. The Business Manager advised
that he would provide a written response.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

a) the General Fund projected favourable outturn variance of £0.250m
be noted;

b) the Housing Revenue Account projected favourable outturn variance
of £0.500m to the Major Repairs Reserve be noted; and

c) the Capital Programme forecast Outturn of £42.162m be noted.

COMMUNITY PLAN PERFORMANCE FOR QUARTER 3

The Committee considered the report presented by the Transformation & Service
Improvement Officer which presented to Members the Quarter 3 Community Plan
Performance Report (October to December 2024). Members were asked to review
the Reports attached as Appendix 1 together with the Compliance Report attached as
Appendix 2.

In considering the report, a number of queries were raised and responded to in
relation to ASB; adaptations; and increase in rent arrears. In relation to footfall
indicators Members queried whether there was data available that would enable an
IP address to be split and whether there was a charge for the removal of graffiti on
commercial premises. Members were advised that a written response would be
provided.

Agenda Page 222



89

90

AGREED (unanimously) that the Community Plan Performance Report for Quarter 3
be noted.

COMMUNITY PLAN REFRESH

The Committee considered the report presented by the Transformation & Service
Improvement Officer which presented to Members the refreshed Community Plan
2023/2027. It was reported that the Community Plan was the key direction setting
document used to outline the priorities and vision for the Council for a four-year term.
Portfolio Holders, committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs had been working to review
progress against the Community Plan as it entered the start of the third year and this
had led to the document being refreshed as detailed in paragraphs 2 and 3 of the
report.

AGREED  (unanimously) that the refreshed Community Plan 2023/2027 be endorsed
and forwarded to Cabinet for consideration at their meeting on 1 April

2025.

PRESENTATION BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The Committee considered the presentation delivered by the Portfolio Holder for
Sustainable Economic Development.

Detailed within the presentation was reference to work undertaken in relation to the
areas which fell within the Portfolio Holders remit. These broadly included: within
Economic Growth & Visitor Economy - Business Support & Investment Skills; social
Mobility, Pride in Place & Place Making; within Planning Development — planning
applications; street naming; land charges; agenda forum; Council and Regeneration
Projects; Conservation Ecology Leaders; national planning targets (both major and
minor); within Planning Policy & Infrastructure — development and production of
planning policy documents; spatial planning support of priorities; and infrastructure.

The presentation also provided Members with future proposals for the delivery,
reform and reshaping of policies and strategies to enable development and
regeneration within the district.

In considering the presentation, Members raised a number of queries.

Social Mobility - a Member requested statistical information as to NSDC’s ranking
within the whole country to enable comparisons to be made on the Council’s progress
to improve this.

Education & Skills — the Portfolio Holder advised that conservations were ongoing
with Nottinghamshire County Council to develop this area of work.

Capacity to Deliver on all Projects — was this prioritised and was there sufficient
resource to deliver? The Portfolio Holder advised that the Economic Growth Team
had the expertise to deliver on the projects and had the ability to pivot on projects as
priorities changed.

Agenda Page 223



91

92

High Street Support — what did this mean in practical terms? The Portfolio Holder
advised that this was about high street regeneration. A team of Business Advisors
were able to support businesses to develop.

Visitor Economy — a Member commented that the Council must ensure that
promotion of our district was a priority to ensure that visitors were aware of what was
on offer. The Portfolio Holder advised she would raise this with the Visitor &
Marketing Manager for a response.

Results of 2022 Residents Survey — what was being done to bridge the gap between
the most important services and residents’ opinions. The Portfolio Holder advised
that there had been 11 crossovers and they were being addressed regardless of
whether they were highlight as priorities of residents.

AGREED (unanimously) that Councillor Claire Penny, Portfolio Holder for
Sustainable Economic Development be thanked for her presentation.

UPDATE ON DIGITAL STRATEGY REFRESH WORKING GROUP

The Committee considered the verbal update of the Chair of the Review of the Digital
Strategy Working Group, Councillor Neil Ross.

Councillor Ross advised that the final meeting of the Working Group had taken place
and listed the key learning taken from the work of the group: the importance of
keeping the customer at heart; there must be a balance between analogue and digital
communication; acknowledgement that there was poor digital connectivity in certain
areas of the district; digital connectivity and infrastructure was essential going
forward; acknowledgement of the progression of 5G; acknowledgement of emerging
technologies e.g. Al and the need for a flexible approach; how to best engage with
communities; digital poverty; how best to measure success and achievements; future
benchmarking by comparing to neighbouring authorities; ability to merge systems
ready for local government reorganisation. Members were advised that the next step
was a presentation of the Digital Framework Strategy to the June 2025 meeting of the
Committee.

In considering the verbal update, a Member queried whether anything specific had
been discussed in relation to provision into social housing. Councillor Ross advised
that maximum connectivity was vital but that the Council were unable to control the
installation of infrastructure to achieve that. He added that if individual connectivity
was not possible, consideration could be given to providing this at community centres.

NOTED the verbal update presented by Councillor Neil Ross, Chair of the Digital
Strategy Refresh Working Group.

CABINET FORWARD PLAN - FEBRUARY TO MAY 2025

NOTED the Forward Plan of the Cabinet for the period February to May 2025.

Agenda Page 224



93 MINUTES OF CABINET MEETING HELD ON 18 FEBRUARY 2025

NOTED the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 18 February 2025.

94 PROVISIONAL ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA

NOTED the provisional items for future meetings of the Policy & Performance
Improvement Committee.

Meeting closed at 7.50 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 225



Agenda Item 18d

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Policy & Performance Improvement Committee held in the Civic
Suite, Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Monday, 14 April 2025 at
6.00pm.

PRESENT: Councillor M Pringle (Chair)
Councillor N Ross (Vice-Chair)

Councillor N Allen, Councillor A Brazier, Councillor C Brooks, Councillor
A Freeman, Councillor J Hall, Councillor R Jackson, Councillor D Moore,
Councillor P Rainbow, Councillor K Roberts and Councillor T Wendels

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor R Holloway, Councillor M Spoors and Councillor T Thompson
ABSENCE:

95 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair advised that the meeting was being recorded and live streamed from Castle
House.

96 DECLARATION OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

There were no declarations of interest.

97 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10 MARCH 2025

The minutes from the meeting held on 10 March 2025 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

98 NEWARK TOWN CENTRE MASTER PLAN

The Committee considered the presentation jointly delivered by the Business
Manager and Strategy Manager — Economic Growth & Visitor Economy and the Senior
Planner, Planning Policy which sought to update Members on the Newark Masterplan
and Design Code.

The presentation set out the timeline of the Masterplan to-date and provided a
summary of the results of the survey which had been undertaken. The structure of
the Masterplan was outlined and the six key themes therein, namely: a market town;
a skilled and creative town; a riverside town; a thriving town; an active and accessible
town; and a town of discovery. Within the town there were nine characters areas
listed as: The Medieval Core; Friary; Barnby Gate; the College Quarter; North Gate
Station Quarter; North Gate; Mill Gate and Sconce; Riverside; and London Road.

A summary of the design code was noted as a set of simple, concise and illustrated
design requirements and that it provided clear rules and standards for new
development in each of the aforementioned character areas. It was also noted that
the code was mandatory and struck a balance between providing clear rules but not

Agenda Page 226



99

100

restricting high quality creative design. The code was supplemented by looser
‘guidance’ should coding not be possible. The design code would be taken forward as
a supplementary planning document and would be a material consideration in
planning decisions.

Stage 2 was a consultation of the Masterplan and the Design Code which would run
for a period of 6 weeks in May and June 2025. There would also be an exhibition,
explaining how the Masterplan had been developed together with an explanation of
the Design Code process. The next steps after Stage 2 would be to finalise the
documents in the summer of 2025 with reports being presented to the Policy &
Performance Improvement Committee and Cabinet in September 2025 with
implementation by the end of the year.

The Chair of the Committee thanked the Officers for their presentation noting the
importance of maximising tourist provision in the town.

AGREED that the presentation be noted.

ATTENDANCE AT COMMITTEE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS

The Committee considered the report of the Transformation & Improvement Officer
which sought Members approval for the change in approach for Portfolio Holders
when attending Committee. A summary of the attendance by Portfolio Holders
during the 2024/2025 municipal year was detailed in the report with paragraph 2
listing the proposed change in approach and the timetable for Portfolio Holders
attendance.

In considering the report, the Chair asked Members of the Committee to put forward
any areas they would wish to particularly scrutinise within the portfolio areas so that
these could be communicated with the Portfolio Holder, enabling them to prepare a
presentation for their attendance at Committee.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

a) the changes to the approach that Portfolio Holders take when
attending Committee be approved; and

b) the proposed schedule of attendance by Portfolio Holders, subject
to their availability, be noted.

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK

The Committee considered the joint report of the Transformation & Service
Improvement Manager and the Senior Transformation & Service Improvement Officer
which sought to provide Members with an update on the Performance Framework
and indicators that would be used to monitor and measure performance against the
refreshed Community Plan. The report also shared the results of the recent
Assurance Review of Performance Management, which were attached at Appendix 3
to the report.

Agenda Page 227



101

102

103

104

AGREED  (unanimously) that:

a) the Corporate Planning, Performance Management and Assurance
Framework and the refreshed performance indicators be noted; and

b) the findings of the recent assurance review of performance
management be noted.

POLICY & PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME FOR
2025/2026

The Committee considered the report of the Democratic Services Officer which sought
to provide Members with an outline of the Committee’s Work Programme for the
2025/2026 Municipal Year.

Details of the topics discussed at the Committee’s workshop held on 10 March 2025
and which had been put forward for inclusion in the work programme were listed at
paragraph 1.2 of the report. The current work programme was appended to the
report with a proposal that the items detailed in paragraph 1.2 be included. Members
were also requested to consider any further topics they may wish to discuss at a
future meeting.

In presenting the report, the Director — Customer Services & Organisational
Development suggested that an invitation be extended to the Department for Work &
Pensions (DWP) to attend a future meeting of the Committee to enable Members to
better understand the DWP’s decision in relation to provision in the Ollerton area.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

a) the topics listed for inclusion in the Work Programme, as listed in
paragraph 1.2 of the report, be approved; and

b) an invitation to attend a future meeting of the Committee be
extended to the Department for Work & Pensions, as detailed

above.

CABINET FORWARD PLAN - APRIL TO JULY 2025

NOTED the Forward Plan of the Cabinet for the period April to July 2025.

MINUTES OF CABINET (PERFORMANCE) MEETING HELD ON 11 MARCH 2025

NOTED the Minutes of the Cabinet (Performance) meeting held on 11 March
2025.

PROVISIONAL ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

NOTED the provisional items for future meetings of the Policy & Performance
Improvement Committee.

Agenda Page 228



Meeting closed at 6.27 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 229



Agenda Item 18e

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Planning Committee held in the Civic Suite, Castle House, Great
North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Thursday, 13 March 2025 at 4.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor A Freeman (Chair)
Councillor D Moore (Vice-Chair)

Councillor A Amer, Councillor C Brooks, Councillor L Dales, Councillor
S Forde, Councillor P Harris, Councillor K Melton, Councillor E Oldham,
Councillor P Rainbow, Councillor M Shakeshaft, Councillor L Tift and
Councillor T Wildgust

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor S Saddington
ABSENCE:

115 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair informed the Committee that the Council was undertaking an audio
recording of the meeting and that it was being live streamed.

116 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

Councillors L Dales, A Freeman and K Melton declared an other registrable interest for
any relevant items, as they were appointed representatives on the Trent Valley
Internal Drainage Board.

117 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13 FEBRUARY 2025

AGREED that the minutes from the meeting held on 13 February 2025 were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

118 CLIPSTONE HOLDING CENTRE, MANSFIELD ROAD, CLIPSTONE - 24/01714/FULM

The Committee considered the report of the Business Manager — Planning
Development, which sought the erection of buildings for industrial purposes following
demolition with associated landscaping, car and cycle parking, pedestrian and
vehicular accesses.

Members considered the presentation from the Business Manager — Planning
Development, which included photographs and plans of the proposed development.

A schedule of communication was circulated prior to the meeting which detailed
correspondence received following publication of the agenda from Natural England
and the Agent, including updated plans.

A letter from Nottinghamshire County Council was circulated to the Planning
Committee Members and an adjournment of five minutes was taken to read the
letter. The motion to adjourn for five minutes was moved by Councillor Dales and
seconded by Councillor Moore. There was no material planning matters raised in the

Agenda Page 230



119

letter, which affected the nature of the report.

The letter confirmed that the Highway Authority accepted in-principle the site access
and on-site layout details shown on drawing number 102-450/(P)102B. Further
details on the Travel plan (TP) were presented in the letter. The Highway Authority
also made recommendations that a number of conditions, informatives and
obligations be included in the Planning Committee report which were detailed in the
letter. It was confirmed in the letter that subject to the inclusion of a construction
management condition (suggested wording set out in the letter), approval of the
travel plan condition included in the committee report and agreement on planning
obligations (contributions towards travel plan monitoring and bus stop
improvements), the Highways Authority had no objection to the planning application.
The Business Manager advised that should Members be minded to approve, the
decision should include a condition for the construction management plan and a
condition ensuring agreement on the planning obligations.

Mr C Lindley, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

Members whilst considering the application welcomed the regeneration of the area
and the job opportunities this would create. The planting as detailed in the report
appeared to be complementary and a lot of trees had also been retained. The
permeable car parking surface was also complemented alongside many positive
environmental design features.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

(a) planning permission be approved subject to the
conditions contained within the report;

(b) the additional conditions as detailed in the late schedule of
communication circulated to Members at the start of the
meeting concerning the Construction Management Plan, the
wording to be delegated to the Business Manager — Planning
Development; and

(c) an additional condition requiring a S106 agreement to be
entered into, the wording to be delegated to the Business
Manager — Planning Development.

Councillor P Rainbow left the meeting at this point.

REVIEW AND UPDATE OF THE PROTOCOL FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE AND
PLANNING SCHEME OF DELEGATION

The Committee considered the report of the Business Manager — Planning
Development and Principal Legal Officer — Commercial, which suggested amendments
to the Protocol for Planning Committee and Planning Scheme of Delegation.

The Principal Legal Officer confirmed that there were a couple of typographical errors
in the first paragraph of the report. The sentence should read: The last full review
was undertaken in 2023-2024 and changes adopted on 8 April 2024.

Agenda Page 231



120

121

122

A Planning Committee Member workshop was held on the 4 February 2025 to review
and discuss the Protocol and Scheme. It was broadly agreed that the arrangements
were working well, but some clarity was sought around the referral provisions within
the Protocol. Key observations were detailed within the report. The suggested
amended Scheme of Delegation and Planning Protocol were attached as appendices
to the report.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

(a) the amendments to the Protocol for Planning Committee
and Scheme of Delegation be approved; and

(b) confers delegated authority to officers to format, update and

publish the amended Protocol for Planning Committee and
Planning Scheme of Delegation.

APPEALS LODGED

AGREED that the report be noted.

APPEALS DETERMINED

AGREED that the report be noted.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Committee considered the report of the Director for Planning & Growth relating
to the performance of the Planning Development Business Unit over the three-month
period October to December 2024 (Quarter 3). Performance had continued to be met
and exceeded, despite challenges within and without the organisation.

The Planning Department undertook a range of activities including the processing of
planning applications and associated appeals, planning enforcement, conservation
and listed building advice, tree applications, pre-application advice as well as other
service areas including land charges, street naming and numbering and management
of the building control service for the Council. The report related to the planning
functions of the service area.

The Planning Committee Chair thanked the Business Manager — Planning
Development and the Development Control team for their work.

AGREED that the report be noted.

Meeting closed at 5.39 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 232



Agenda Item 18f

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Audit and Governance Committee held in the Civic Suite, Castle
House, Great North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Wednesday, 16 April 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor R Holloway (Chair)
Councillor S Michael (Vice-Chair)

Councillor R Cozens, Councillor S Forde, Councillor J Hall, Councillor
S Haynes and Councillor C Penny and Mr C Richardson (Non-Voting Co-

Optee)
ALSO IN Councillor | Brown
ATTENDANCE:
APOLOGIES FOR Councillor P Farmer, Councillor A Freeman, Councillor P Harris,
ABSENCE: Councillor M Shakeshaft and Councillor T Thompson

156 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

Other than the Council recording in accordance with usual practice, there were no
declarations of intention to record the meeting.

157 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

That no Member of Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting.

158 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 FEBRUARY 2025

AGREED that the minutes from the meeting held on 19 February 2025 be approved as
a correct record and signed by the Chair.

The Chair informed the meeting that report item 10 would be taken after item 5.

159 ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY MEMORANDUM 2024/25

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial
Services presenting the External Audit Strategy Memorandum for the 2024/25
Statement of Accounts work for Members to review and comment.

The representative from Mazars, Mark Surridge presented the External Auditor’s
report having joined the meeting through Teams and Livestreamed.

The External Audit Strategy Memorandum at Appendix A of the report sets out the
proposed work of the Council’s external auditors for 2024/25, relating to the audit of
the financial statements and the commentary on the Council’s Value for Money
arrangements.

AGREED (unanimously) that the External Audit Strategy Memorandum be noted.

Agenda Page 233



160

161

162

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT

The Committee considered the report from the Safety and Risk Manager providing an
update to Members highlighting the Council’s 2025/26 Strategic Risk Register and its
current status.

The report highlighted that in accordance with the Risk Management Policy, a
facilitated strategic risk workshop was undertaken with the Senior Leadership Team
(SLT) in February 2025. This workshop evaluated all existing strategic risks and
identified emerging risks for the forth coming year.

AGREED (unanimously) that the Committee noted amendments to the Strategic Risk
Register and highlighted any issues of concern.

PROJECTED GENERAL FUND AND HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT REVENUE AND
CAPITAL OUTTURN REPORT TO 31 MARCH 2025 AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial
Services to update with the forecast outturn position for the 2024/25 financial year
for the Council’s General Fund and Housing Revenue Account revenue and capital
budgets. The report showed performance against the approved estimates of revenue
expenditure and income.

The report ensured the Council has overall financial sustainability for the current
financial year compared to the budgeted position.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

(a) the Committee noted the General Fund projected favourable outturn variance
of £0.250m;

(b) the Committee noted the Housing Revenue Account projected favourable
outturn variance of £0.500m to the Major Repairs Reserve;

(c) the Committee noted the Capital Programme revised budget and financing of
£42.166m; and

(d) the Committee noted the Prudential indicators at Appendix A.

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2024/2025

The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Business Manager for
Financial Services providing Members with updates made to the Council’s accounting
policies in relation to the closedown of the 2024/2025 financial year.

The report provided a review at Appendix A with reference to not a lot of change to
policies.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members approved the amended Statement of

Agenda Page 234



163

164

165

166

Accounting Policies for 2024/2025.

UNDERLYING PENSION ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2024/2025 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Business Manager for
Financial Services providing Members with information regarding the assumptions
made by the pension fund actuary in calculating the IAS 19 (International Accounting
Standard 19 - Employee Benefits) figures to be reported in the 2024/2025 Statement
of Accounts.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members noted and approved the assumptions used in
the calculation of pension figures for 2024/2025.

UNDERLYING VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2024/2025 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Business Manager for
Financial Services providing Members with information regarding the assumptions
made by the Valuers in calculating the figures to be reported in the 2024/25
Statement of Accounts, as per the revaluation model approach taken by the Council
under IAS 16 (International Accounting Standard 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment).

AGREED (unanimously) that Members noted and approved the assumptions used in
the calculation of asset valuation figures for 2024/2025.

COUNTER-FRAUD ACTIVITIES FROM 1 MAY 2024 TO 31 MARCH 2025

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial
Services informing Members of counter-fraud activity undertaken since the last
update reported on 1 May 2024.

The report gave an element of the role of the Audit & Governance Committee is to
provide assurance to the Council that its anti-fraud arrangements are operating
effectively. In order to do this, counter-fraud activity reports are brought to the
Committee twice a year. These reports detail the number of cases detected, amounts
lost, the outcome of cases and amounts recovered, together with any other counter
fraud work that has been undertaken.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members noted the report.

FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial
Services informing Members of the update of the Fraud Risk Register undertaken
during March 2025.

The report reminded Members that a fraud risk assessment was first undertaken in
June 2014 and a fraud risk register produced and presented to the Audit and Accounts
Committee.

The fraud risks are assessed annually and the register updated. The amended Fraud

Agenda Page 235



167

168

Risk Register as at April 2025 was attached at Appendix A to the report.

The exempt appendix was not discussed in the open meeting or the exempt discussed
during the meeting.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members noted the content of the report.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

The Committee considered the joint report of the Assistant Director Legal &
Democratic Services, Monitoring Officer and the Business Manager for Financial
Services which attached the Committee’s Work Plan for consideration.

The Committee noting that an additional Committee meeting would take place on 7
May 2025, to consider the Governance reports.

AGREED (unanimously) that the Work Plan be noted.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 7 MAY 2025

Meeting closed at 6.57 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 236



Agenda Item 18g

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Audit and Governance Committee held in the Civic Suite, Castle
House, Great North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Wednesday, 7 May 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor R Holloway (Chair)
Councillor S Michael (Vice-Chair)

Councillor R Cozens, Councillor S Forde and Councillor S Haynes

ALSO IN Councillor N Allen and Councillor P Rainbow

ATTENDANCE:

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor P Farmer, Councillor A Freeman, Councillor J Hall, Councillor
ABSENCE: P Harris, Councillor CPenny, Councillor M Shakeshaft and Councillor

T Thompson and Mr C Richardson (Non-Voting Co-Optee)

169 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

Other than the Council recording in accordance with usual practice, there were no
declarations of intention to record the meeting.

170 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

That no Member of Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting.

171 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 APRIL 2025

AGREED that the minutes from the meeting held on 16 April 2025 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

172 REVIEW OF CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial
Services to review the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, approve the revisions
where appropriate and recommend to Council for adoption.

The Contract Procedure Rules were last reviewed in May 2022 when the Council
adopted the Cabinet system of Governance, the report advised they were due for a
review and refresh.

The Contract Procedure Rules have been reviewed in conjunction with Welland
Procurement with suggested changes from the updates to the Procurement Act 2023,

together with their knowledge of Contract Procedure Rules from other authorities.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members considered and commented upon the revised
Contract Procedure Rules and recommended to Council for approval.

173  REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PROCEDURE RULES

Agenda Page 237



174

175

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Financial
Services to review the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules, approve the revisions
where appropriate and recommend to Council for adoption.

The Financial Procedure Rules were last reviewed in May 2022 when the Council
adopted the Cabinet system of Governance, they are therefore due for a review and a
refresh.

The Financial Procedure Rules have been reviewed in conjunction with the S151
Officer to update where appropriate and clarify any relevant sections, with no

material changes to the Financial Procedure Rules as a result of this review.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members considered and commented upon the revised
Financial Procedure Rules and recommend to Council for approval.

OUTCOME OF HOUSING OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATION (REF: 202324726)

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Housing
Services to inform Members of the outcome of an investigation where the
Ombudsman found fault with the Council.

A resident had complained to the Housing Ombudsman regarding various issues
relating to the Council’s handling of:

e Noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and inappropriate staff conduct
e Complaints

The Housing Ombudsman determined there to be maladministration in one area and
service failure in two areas:

e Maladministration in respect of the landlord’s response to the resident’s
reports of ASB
e Service failure in respect of the landlord’s complaint handling

The report advised that Corporate ASB training has been added to the 2025/2026
programme and will include the lessons learnt from this determination. Training will
take place following the implementation of the new housing management system in
May 2025.

The report highlighted that findings of maladministration are published regularly on
the Housing Ombudsman Service website along with spotlight reports which focus on
specific issues or service areas to raise awareness and help landlords improve.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members noted the report, and the lessons learnt.

OUTCOME OF HOUSING OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATION (REF: 202333701)

The Committee considered the report from the Business Manager for Housing
Services to inform Members of the outcome of an investigation where the

Agenda Page 238



176

Ombudsman found fault with the Council.

A resident had complained to the Housing Ombudsman regarding various issues
relating to the Council’s handling of:

* Noise nuisance, anti-social behaviour and inappropriate staff conduct
e Services covered by the service charge not being provided
e Complaints

The Housing Ombudsman determined there to be maladministration in one area and
service failure in two areas:

e There was maladministration in relation to the landlord’s handling of the
resident’s reports about noise nuisance, ASB and inappropriate staff conduct

e There was service failure in relation to the landlord's handling of the resident’s
report about services covered by the service charge not being provided

e There was service failure in relation to the landlord's complaint handling

Corporate ASB training has been added to the 2025/2026 programme and will include
the lessons learnt from this determination. Training will take place following the
implementation of the new housing management system in May 2025.

The report highlighted that findings of maladministration are published regularly on
the Housing Ombudsman Service website along with spotlight reports which focus on
specific issues or service areas to raise awareness and help landlords improve.

AGREED (unanimously) that Members noted the report, and the lessons learnt.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PEER REVIEW - CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE

The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Director Legal & Democratic
Services and Monitoring Officer informing the meeting of the recommendations from
the Local Government Association Peer Challenge that have been delegated to Audit
& Governance Committee.

At its meeting of 18 February 2025, Cabinet considered the findings of the Local
Government Association Peer Challenge and agreed the formation of a working group
tasked with an action plan to address those findings. The Chair and Vice Chair of Audit
& Governance Committee were appointed to the group. At its first meeting on 25
February, the group agreed for Audit & Governance Committee to action the
following recommendations:

1.1.1  Review the audit, governance, and overview and scrutiny functions of
the Council to maximise councillor engagement and council
productivity

1.1.2  Strengthen and enhance the Annual Governance Statement

1.1.3  Strengthen the application of the national Code of Conduct

1.1.4  Establish a Councillor development group

1.1.5  Ensure councillors understand the longer-term budget pressures

1.1.6  Establish an ongoing councillor development programme

Agenda Page 239



177

A progress report is due to be submitted to the working group in May, with a view to
progress on the entire action plan being reviewed with the Local Government
Association around September 2025.
AGREED (unanimously) that Committee:
(a) notes progress on the recommendations from the Local Government
Association Peer Challenge that have been delegated to Audit & Governance
Committee; and

(b) updates the Committee’s Work Plan accordingly.

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION

The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Director Legal & Democratic
Services and Monitoring Officer with proposals for amendments to the Council’s
Constitution following consideration by an informal Audit & Governance Committee
working party.

Amendments and updates endorsed by this Committee will be recommended to Full
Council for approval at the Annual Meeting in May and the Council’s Independent
Remuneration Panel will be asked to undertake a review in respect of any changes in
Committee Terms of Reference.

The Committee noted training on procedure rules for Members in June, and an
addition to Appendix | was circulated at the meeting with additional wording for the
Acquisitions and Disposals Policy:

2.5.3 Where it is decided to negotiate a disposal to a single party (identified by
paragraph 2.5.2) rather than offer it on the open market then this needs to be
referred to in any decision. When negotiations take place with the interested
party in order to reach an agreed sale price and the provisions of paragraph
2.7.1 still apply.

AGREED (unanimously) that Audit & Governance Committee:

(a) recommends the Constitutional amendments set out in Appendices A, B, E, G, |
and J to Full Council for approval;

(b) endorses the adoption of templates for motions and amendments as
illustrated in Appendices C and D subject to approval by Full Council of the
relevant amendments to Full Council Procedure Rules:

(c) recommends a reduction in membership of Audit & Governance Committee to
9 members to Full Council for approval;

(d) endorses amendments to arrangements for Audit & Governance as set out in
paragraph 2.9 of the report;

Agenda Page 240



178

(e) request that Officers explore options for more regular meetings with the
auditors to assist with Audit & Governance Committee Member development;

(f) recommends that Policy & Performance Improvement Committee re-issues
guidance to all Members as set out in paragraph 2.11 of the report;

(g) updates its work programme to include feedback at least annually on meetings
between the Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee, and the Chair and Vice
Chair of Policy & Performance Improvement Committee;

(h) recommends the addition of 'Principal Legal Officer’ to the list of Officers with
authority to seal legal documents on behalf of the Council, to Full Council for
approval; and

(i) approves the review of the sections of the Constitution set out in paragraph
2.26 of the report, with any proposals for amendment being brought to this

Committee as soon as practicable.

CONDUCT AND PUBLIC SERVICE

The Committee considered the report from the Assistant Director Legal & Democratic
Services and Monitoring Officer on progress on implementation of the Full Council
resolution ‘Conduct and Public Service’ made on 15 October 2024.

Members discussed the possibility of the Council hosting a conference to promote
good conduct in public service with the aim of encouraging people to enter public life.
There were mixed views about the merits of hosting a conference, and some concerns
were raised about the potential cost, and whether a conference properly falls within
the Council’s remit.

The report proposed to convene a further workshop to focus on review and update of
the Councillor Social Media Protocol. Officers to also explore the cost and resource
implications of raising awareness of the Local Government Association’s ‘Debate not
Hate’ campaign.

AGREED by 4 Members ‘For’ and 1 ‘Against’ that Committee:

(a) notes that proposals for Member training in respect of standards of conduct
will be taken forward in the Member Training Protocol workstream;

(b) agrees to give further consideration to amendments to the Code of Conduct
for Councillors at a future date;

(c) agrees to convene one further workshop on the Conduct and Public Office
topic focussing on social media;

(d) notes that Officers will explore the cost and resource implications of
supporting the Local Government Association’s Debate not Hate Campaign;
and

Agenda Page 241



179

180

(e) notes that further enquiries will be made regarding the possibility of hosting a
conference regarding good conduct in public office.

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

The Committee considered the joint report of the Assistant Director Legal &
Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer and the Business Manager for Financial
Services which attached the Committee’s Work Plan for consideration.

The Chair noted 8 reports currently in the Work Plan including the additional Conduct
and Public Service in Social Media and Local Code of Corporate Governance.

The Committee were concerned with the recent cyber incidents affecting large named
companies such as Marks & Spencer, the Committee requested that Dave Richardson,
Business Manager for ICT & Digital Services attends the next Audit & Governance
Committee to provide an update to the LGA Newark and Sherwood District Council
Cyber 360 Progress Report. Councillor Haynes would also email Dave Richardson with
relevant questions before the next meeting in preparation of the Committee.

Councillor Michael asked if a date had been set for this year’s Treasury Management
Training, however the relevant officers to ask were not present, the date to be
provided following this meeting.

AGREED (unanimously) that the Work Plan be noted.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 2 JULY 2025

Meeting closed at 7.04 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 242



Agenda Item 18h

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of General Purposes Committee held in the Castle House, Great
North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Thursday, 20 March 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor J Hall (Chair)
Councillor L Tift (Vice-Chair)

Councillor N Allen, Councillor L Brazier, Councillor S Michael, Councillor
D Moore, Councillor K Roberts, Councillor M Spoors and Councillor
T Wildgust

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor A Brazier, Councillor D Darby, Councillor R Jackson,
ABSENCE: Councillor J Lee, Councillor S Saddington and Councillor P Taylor

41 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair advised that the proceedings were being recorded by the Council and that
the meeting was being livestreamed and broadcast from the Civic Suite, Castle House.

42 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

NOTED that no Member or Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting.

43 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2024

AGREED that the minutes from the meeting held on 12 December 2024 were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

44 NEWARK COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Committee considered the report presented by the Business Manager — Elections
& Democratic Services which sought Members consideration of the initial submissions
following the first stage of the Community Governance Review of Newark Town
Council and also to consider the draft proposal for further public consultation.

The report set out that the boundaries for Newark Town Council were last reviewed in
2017. However, the East Ward still had minimal electors with no respect of significant
development ahead of the next scheduled elections in 2027. In addition, the South
Ward continued to see development growth and an increase in electors. Following
Committee’s approval of the timetable for review the first stage of consultation had
been held with the responses therefrom attached as Appendix A to the report.
Paragraph 2.0 of the report provided a summary of the proposals following the
consultation which were to rename the South Ward to the Middlebeck Ward and to
address some of the elector ratios ahead of the elections scheduled to take place in
2027.

In considering the report, Members raised no queries or concerns with the proposals
as detailed in Appendix B to the report.

Agenda Page 243



45

46

AGREED (unanimously) that the Draft Proposals, as set out at Appendix B to the
report, for the second and final stage of public consultation, be approved.

ADOPTION OF A PERMANENT PAVEMENT LICENSING SCHEME

The Committee considered the report presented by the Environmental Health &
Licensing Manager which sought approval for the adoption of the Permanent
Pavement Licence scheme to replace the current temporary scheme. Approval was
also sought for the fees for pavement licences together with delegated authority
being approved for the Business Manager — Public Protection to determine
applications.

The report set out that a Pavement Licence permitted a pub, bar, restaurant, café,
snack bar, coffee shop, or ice cream parlour to place street furniture in an approved
location on the highway — defined as generally being footpaths restricted to
pedestrians or roads and places to which vehicular access is restricted or prohibited.
The designated area would be solely to provide an area for the serving and
consumption of food and drink outdoors at such establishment. It was reported that
the maximum fee for a Temporary Pavement Licence was £100, however the Council
had opted to charge a fee of £50.00, with a renewal fee of £25.00. Paragraph 1.8 of
the report detailed the proposed changes from the temporary scheme to the
permanent scheme.

In considering the report Members did not raise any queries or concerns with the
proposals as detailed within the report.

AGREED (unanimously) that:

a) the Permanent Pavement Licence Scheme replace the temporary
scheme be approved;

b) the proposed fees for Pavement Licences be approved; and
c) delegated authority be given to the Business Manager — Public
Protection to determine applications, as within the Temporary

Scheme — be approved.

UPDATE ON PERFORMANCE AND ENFORCEMENT MATTERS

The Committee considered the report of the Senior Licensing Officer, which set out
the range and number of license applications received during the period October to
December 2024 in relation to Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers, Private
Ambulance Drivers together with House to House and Street Collections.

In considering the report, Members queried as to the reason for there not being any
returns for House to House and Street Collections. In response Officers advised that
no returns had been submitted but that an update would be provided. It was noted
that a street collection had been carried out in Southwell with a Member querying
whether the failure to supply the return would jeopardise any future applications.
The Senior Licensing Officer advised she would contact the organisation in question.

Agenda Page 244



In response to whether the issue of taxis being able to pick up disabled people at
Newark Hospital, the Senior Licensing Officer advised that the situation was
unresolvable at present.

AGREED unanimously that the report be noted.

47 MINUTES OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S SUB-COMMITTEE

NOTED the minutes of the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Sub-Committee
held on 6 December 2024.

Meeting closed at 6.12 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 245



Agenda Iltem 18i

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Licensing Committee held in the Castle House, Great North Road,
Newark, NG24 1BY on Thursday, 20 March 2025 at 6.13pm.

PRESENT: Councillor J Hall (Chair)
Councillor L Tift (Vice-Chair)

Councillor N Allen, Councillor L Brazier, Councillor S Michael, Councillor
D Moore, Councillor K Roberts, Councillor M Spoors and Councillor
T Wildgust

APOLOGIES FOR Councillor A Brazier, Councillor D Darby, Councillor R Jackson,
ABSENCE: Councillor J Lee, Councillor S Saddington and Councillor P Taylor

46 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Chair advised that the proceedings were being recorded by the Council and that
the meeting was being livestreamed and broadcast from the Civic Suite, Castle House.

47 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

NOTED that no Member or Officer declared any interest pursuant to any statutory
requirement in any matter discussed or voted upon at the meeting.

48 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2024

AGREED that the minutes from the meeting held on 12 December 2024 were
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

49 CONSTITUTIONAL CHANGES FOR THE LICENSING AND GENERAL PURPOSES
COMMITTEES

The Committee considered the report presented by the Principal Legal Officer which
provided Members with details of the proposed changes to the remit of both the
General Purposes and Licensing Committees and also sought their consideration as to
merging the two committees into one single committee.

The report provided a summary of the remits of the two committees and noted that
the Council’s Audit & Governance Committee were undertaking a review of the
Council’s Constitution, which included a review of the General Purposes and Licensing
Committees. It was further reported that an informal working group met in October
2024 to undertake a desktop review of the current committee terms of reference.
The proposed changes resulting from that were a clarification the terms of reference
and remove functions that were no longer relevant. The suggestion of merging the
two committees was also discussed with the opinion being reached that a single
committee was preferable.

In considering the report, Members agreed that the proposal to merge the two
committees be supported.

Agenda Page 246



50

51

52

53

AGREED (unanimously) that:
a) the contents of the report be noted; and

b) the proposal to merge the General Purposes and Licensing
Committees into a single committee be supported.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN DECISION OUTCOME REPORT

The Committee considered the report presented by the Business Manager — Public
Protection which provided Members with details of the outcome of an investigation
where the Ombudsman found fault with the Council.

The report set out the background to the Ombudsman’s findings, which had been as a
result of a complaint lodged by a resident in relation to the time it had taken the
Council to act in respect of a statutory noise nuisance. The actions taken in response
to the nuisance were documented in the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman final decision statement which was attached as Appendix 1 to the report
which had also been presented to the Audit & Governance Committee in December
2024. Paragraph 4.0 of the report advised that when a complaint was upheld, it was
important that lessons were learnt, details of which were reported in paragraph 4.2 of
the report.

In considering the report, Members raised the issue of receiving complaints direct
from residents, querying whether they would also receive information from licensing
enforcement as to what investigations and/or enforcement actions were currently
being undertaken. The Business Manager advised that should Members receive a
complaint directly from a resident, they should refer this to the Licensing Team for
action.

AGREED (unanimously) that the report and lessons learnt be noted.

MINUTES OF LICENSING HEARING HELD ON 11 DECEMBER 2024

NOTED the Minutes of the Licensing Hearing held on 11 December 2024 in respect
of Club X, 18 Castle Gate, Newark.

MINUTES OF LICENSING HEARING HELD ON 23 DECEMBER 2024

NOTED the Minutes of the Licensing Hearing held on 23 December 2024 in
respect of the Roaring Meg, Barnby Gate, Newark.

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICES (OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2024)

NOTED the Temporary Event Notices received and acknowledged between 1
October until 31 December 2024.

Agenda Page 247



54 UPDATE ON PERFORMANCE & ENFORCEMENT MATTERS

NOTED the various activities undertaken by the Licensing Team in relation to the
different types of licensing matters covered by the Licensing Act 2003
between the period 1 October to 31 December 2024.

Meeting closed at 6.34 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 248



Agenda Iltem 18;j

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of Executive Shareholder Committee held in the Civic Suite, Castle
House, Great North Road, Newark, NG24 1BY on Tuesday, 11 March 2025 at 6.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor P Peacock (Chair)

Councillor R Cozens, Councillor LBrazier, Councillor S Crosby,
Councillor S Forde, Councillor P Taylor, Councillor CPenny and
Councillor J Kellas

ALSO IN Councillor N Allen, Councillor S Haynes and Councillor P Rainbow
ATTENDANCE:

APOLOGIES FOR
ABSENCE:

17 NOTIFICATION TO THOSE PRESENT THAT THE MEETING WILL BE RECORDED AND
STREAMED ONLINE

The Leader and Chair advised that the proceedings were being audio recorded and
live streamed by the Council.

18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

Councillor S. Forde declared an interest in Item 5- Active4Today Performance
Quarter 3 as he was a Director of Actie4Today.

The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer declared an interest is
Items 6 and 8 as he was a Director of Arkwood Developments Ltd.

19 MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 3 DECEMBER 2024

The minutes from the meeting held on 3 December 2024 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

20 ACTIVEATODAY PERFORMANCE QUARTER 3

The Health Improvement and Community Relations Manager was in attendance to
present a report detailing the performance of Active4Today for the period 1 April —
January 2025.

Members heard that the Company was performing well with growth at Newark and
Blidworth Sites offsetting losses at Southwell and Dukeries sites. Overall membership
had risen to 12,001. Costs were lower than anticipated for the period and the Active
Reserve had risen from £590,188 to £640,188. Latest forecasting set the subsidy per
user at 7pence. Members noted details of the activities undertaken during the
reporting period and the draft Business Plan for 2025/26 which had been approved by
the Actived4Today Board on 15 January 2025. The Business Plan set the management
fee at £109,390 for 2025/26.

Agenda Page 249



21

22

23

The Committee welcomed the report and the positive financial position.

AGREED (unanimously) That the Executive Shareholder Committee note the
performance of Active4Today up to period 10, 2024-25 and approve the Business Plan
2025 - 2026 as detailed in Appendix 4.

Reasons for Decision:

To ensure that the shareholder has assurance and oversight of the company’s
performance ensuring that the company continues to deliver the outcomes required
by the Council as aligned to the Councils Community Plan.

Options considered:
Not applicable

ARKWOOD DEVELOPMENTS PERFORMANCE QUARTER 3

The Managing Director- Arkwood was in attendance to present the performance
report for quarter 3 2024/25 and a presentation updating Members on recent
progress with developments and an update on the pipeline. Members noted the
report.

AGREED (unanimously)

That Members note the Arkwood Performance Report (attached as the Appendix to
the report) and consider company’s performance against its targets and objectives
highlighting any areas of high performance and identifying areas for improvement.

Reasons for Decision:
To ensure appropriate review of the Performance of the Councils wholly owned
Housing Development Company (Arkwood).

Options considered:
Not applicable

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Agreed that under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the
grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

ARKWOOD DEVELOPMENTS BUSINESS PLAN

The Executive Shareholder Committee considered the exempt report in relation
to the Arkwood Developments Business Plan for 2025-2030.

(Summary provided in accordance with Section 100C(2) of the Local
Government Act 1972).

Agenda Page 250



Meeting closed at 8.28 pm.

Chair

Agenda Page 251



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 252



	Agenda
	8 Minutes from the meeting held on 6 March 2025 and the Extraordinary Meeting held on 19 March 2025
	06.03.25 - Minutes - Appendix A Questions from the Public and Members
	06.03.25 - Minutes - Appendix B Revene Budget and Council Tax Setting for 2025-26
	Minutes , 19/03/2025 Full Council

	12 Political Composition of the Council and Allocation of Seats on Committees to Political Groups
	20.05.25 - Political Composition - Appendix A_Matrix

	13 To Allocate Chairs, Vice-Chairs and Members to Committees etc.
	14 Community Plan 2023 - 2027
	20.05.25 - Community Plan Refresh - Appendix 1

	15 Review of the Council's Constitution
	15a Appendix A - Revised Financial Procedure Rules
	15b Appendix B - Revised Contract Procedure Rules
	15c Appendix C - Revised Petitions Scheme
	15d Appendix D - Revised Council Procedure Rules
	15e Appendix E - Proposed Motion Template
	15f Appendix F - Proposed Motion Amendment Template
	15g Appendix G - Proposed Licensing Committee Terms of Reference
	15h Appendix G(i) - Proposed Licensing Committee Terms of Reference - Showing Changes
	15i Appendix H - Proposed Planning Policy Board Terms of Reference
	15j Appendix I - Proposed Acquisitions and Disposals Policy
	15k Appendix J - Proposed Planning Committee Terms of Reference
	16 Call-In Annual Report
	18a Cabinet - 11 March 2025
	18b Cabinet - 1 April 2025
	18c Policy and Performance Improvement Committee - 10 March 2025
	18d Policy and Performance Improvement Committee - 14 April 2025
	18e Planning Committee - 13 March 2025
	18f Audit and Governance Committee - 16 April 2025
	18g Audit & Governance Committee - 7 May 2025
	18h General Purposes Committee - 20 March 2025
	18i Licensing Committee - 20 March 2025
	18j Executive Shareholder Committee - 11 March 2025
	Exempt Minutes , 11/03/2025 Executive Shareholder Committee




